
2018
April 1, 2017 – March 31, 2018

Annual Report



https://www.sonyfh.co.jp/en/financial_info/annualreport

Company Name Abbreviations
The following abbreviations for company names are used in this 
report.

Sony Financial Holdings Inc. SFH, Sony Financial Holdings
Sony Life Insurance Co., Ltd. Sony Life
AEGON Sony Life Insurance Co., Ltd. AEGON Sony Life Insurance
SA Reinsurance Ltd. SA Reinsurance
Sony Assurance Inc. Sony Assurance
Sony Bank Inc. Sony Bank
Sony Payment Services Inc. Sony Payment Services
SmartLink Network Hong Kong Limited SmartLink Network Hong Kong
Sony Lifecare Inc. Sony Lifecare
Lifecare Design Inc. Lifecare Design
Proud Life Inc. Proud Life
Sony Financial Ventures Inc. Sony Financial Ventures

Disclaimer 
Statements made in this annual report concerning the current 
plans, expectations, strategies and beliefs of the Sony Financial 
Group. Any statements contained herein that are not historical 
facts are forward-looking statements or pro forma information. 
Forward-looking statements may include—but are not limited 
to—words such as “believe,” “anticipate,” “plan,” “strategy,” “expect,” 
“assume,” “forecast,” “predict,” “propose,” “intend” and “possi-
bility,” which describe future operating activities, business per-
formance, events or conditions. Forward-looking statements, 
whether spoken or written, may also be included in other materi-
als released to the public. These forward-looking statements 
and pro forma information are based on assumptions, decisions 
and judgments made by the management of Sony Financial 
Group companies, and are based on information that is currently 
available to them. As such, they are subject to various risks and 
uncertainties, and actual business results may vary substantially 
from the forecasts expressed or implied in forward-looking state-
ments. Consequently, investors are cautioned not to place 
undue reliance on forward-looking statements. Sony Financial 
Group companies are under no obligation to revise forward-looking 
statements or pro forma information in light of new information, 
future events or other findings. The information contained in this 
annual report does not constitute or form part of any offer for 
sale or subscription of or solicitation or invitation of any offer to 
buy or subscribe to any securities, nor shall it or any part of it 
form the basis of or be relied on in connection with any contract 
or commitment whatsoever in Japan or abroad. 

• “Lifeplanner” and “Karte” are registered trademarks of Sony 
Life.

• “SURE” and “ZiPPi” are registered trademarks of Sony 
Assurance.

• “MONEYKit” is a registered trademark of Sony Bank.
• “Sony Bank GATE” is a registered trademark of Sony 

Corporation.
• Company names and product names that appear in this report, 

other than those mentioned above, are trademarks or regis-
tered trademarks of the respective company.

• The Sony Financial Group refers to the financial group that 
comprises Sony Financial Holdings Inc., Sony Life Insurance 
Co., Ltd., Sony Assurance Inc., Sony Bank Inc., Sony Lifecare 
Inc., as well as their subsidiaries and affiliates.

• Unless otherwise indicated, figures less than the indicated unit 
in this material have been truncated, while ratios and percent-
age changes have been rounded off.

• Fiscal 2008–fiscal 2020 represent the fiscal years ended/end-
ing March 31, 2009–2021.
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About
Sony Financial Holdings

We believe that every employee’s contribu-
tion is important to develop our ideal of a 
fi nancial services company. We will thus foster 
an open corporate culture where employees 
can freely express their individuality and 
demonstrate their abilities to the fullest.

Put the Customer First

We will provide fi nancial products and 
services that satisfy customers by 
embracing their individual views, to 
ensure that we help them lead prosper-
ous lives with fi nancial security.

Strive for Originality

We will constantly strive to come up 
with fresh ideas from basic principles 
as we pursue creativity and innovation, 
instead of merely following custom and 
convention.

Give Back to Society

We believe that a special commitment to 
the public good is demanded of a fi nancial 
services company. Conscious of this, we will 
realize our vision by upholding the highest 
level of ethics and a strong sense of purpose, 
and thereby give back to society. In addition, 
we will fulfi ll our responsibilities as a good 
corporate citizen and member of society.

Corporate Vision

The Sony Financial Group seeks to become the most highly trusted fi nancial services 
group by customers. To this end, the Group will combine many different fi nancial functions 
(savings, investment, borrowing and protection) to provide high-value-added fi nancial 
products and high-quality fi nancial services that meet every customer’s fi nancial needs.

Corporate Philosophy

Sony Financial Holdings Inc. is a fi nancial holding company with three 

primary subsidiaries: Sony Life Insurance Co., Ltd., Sony Assurance Inc. and 

Sony Bank Inc.

Foster an Open 
Corporate Culture
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   Aug. 1979   Sony Prudential Life Insurance Co., Ltd., is established (currently Sony Life)

   Jun. 1998   Sony Insurance Planning Co., Ltd., is established (currently Sony Assurance)

   Apr. 2001   Sony Bank Inc. (Sony Bank) is established

1970s 1980s 1990s 2000s 

Sony Financial Holdings was established 
in 2004 as a corporate spin-off from 
Sony Corporation. Also, SFH is the fi rst 
holding company in Japan with both 
insurance and banking businesses under  
one umbrella.

History of the Sony Financial Group

 Sony Assurance

 Sony Bank

 Sony Life

 Apr. 1981

Sony Prudential Life Insurance 
commences operations with 
launch of Lifeplanner system

 Jul. 1987

Sony Prudential Life Insurance 
agrees to terminate joint venture 

 Apr. 1991

Changes its name to 
Sony Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

 May 2001

Sony Life’s Lifeplanner sales 
employees begin selling auto-
mobile insurance of Sony 
Assurance

 Sep. 1999

Sony Insurance Planning changes its 
name to Sony Assurance Inc.
Sony Assurance launches sales of auto-
mobile insurance (over the Internet in 
September and by telephone in October)

 Jun. 2002

Sony Assurance launches 
sales of “SURE” medical 
insurance with emphasis 
on cancer coverage

 Jun. 2001

Sony Bank commences operations. 
Launches MONEYKit service site. 
Starts handling deposits, investment 
trusts and card loans

 Sep. 2001

Sony Bank begins handling 
foreign-currency deposits

 Mar. 2002

Sony Bank begins handling 
mortgage loans

2 Sony Financial Holdings Inc. Annual Report 2018



 Oct. 2007

SFH is listed on the First Section of 
Tokyo Stock Exchange

 Jan. 2016

Sony Bank launches Sony 
Bank WALLET, a cash card 
with Visa debit function

Apr. 2004   Sony Financial Holdings Inc. is established as a fi nancial holding company

2010s 

 Apr. 2011

SFH conducts stock split and adopts 
share unit system

 Nov. 2013

SFH acquires Senior Enterprise Corpora-
tion (currently Lifecare Design Inc.) as a 
subsidiary and enters nursing care business

 Apr. 2014

Sony Lifecare Inc. is established as a 
holding company to oversee nursing 
care business

 Apr. 2016

Lifecare Design Inc. opens Sony Lifecare Group’s 
fi rst nursing care home

 Jul. 2018

SFH establishes Sony Financial 
Ventures Inc. as an investment subsidiary 

 Jul. 2017

Sony Lifecare Inc. acquires Yuuai Holdings 
Co., Ltd. as a subsidiary
(In Aug. 2017, Yuuai Holdings Group 
undertakes corporate consolidation and 
changes its name to Proud Life Inc.)

 Sony Financial Holdings

 Dec. 2004

Sony Life’s Lifeplanner sales 
employees begin to accept 
mortgage loan applications 
as agents of Sony Bank

 Aug. 2007

Sony Life establishes AEGON 
Sony Life Planning Co., Ltd. 
(currently AEGON Sony Life 
Insurance Co., Ltd.) 

 Dec. 2007

Sony Life is approved to 
conduct banking agency 
business on behalf of 
Sony Bank

 Oct. 2009

Sony Life establishes SA Reinsurance 
Ltd. in British Bermuda as a reinsur-
ance company specializing in variable 
annuities 

 Jun. 2017

Sony Life establishes wholly owned 
subsidiary Sony Life Singapore Pte. 
Ltd. in Singapore
(In Aug. 2017, Sony Life establishes 
Sony Life Financial Advisers Pte. 
Ltd., a joint venture, with Starts 
Securities Co., Ltd.)

 Dec. 2009

AEGON Sony Life Insurance commences 
operations. Sony Life’s Lifeplanner sales 
employees begin selling individual 
variable annuities

 Oct. 2004

Sony Assurance debuts fi re 
insurance to customers 
taking out mortgage loans 
from Sony Bank

 Jan. 2009

Sony Assurance offers pet 
insurance through alliance with 
Anicom Insurance, Inc.

 Jan. 2017

Sony Assurance launches “ZiPPi” 
medical insurance covering actual 
inpatient expenses

 Jun. 2018

Sony Assurance begins selling 
overseas travel insurance

 Jul. 2011

Sony Bank acquires 57% equity 
interest in SmartLink Network, 
Inc. (currently Sony Payment 
Services Inc.)

 Aug. 2017

Sony Bank launches Sony Bank 
GATE, an investment-type crowd 
funding platform

 Jun. 2010

Sony Bank opens its fi rst 
over-the-counter branch—
Housing Loan Plaza (currently 
CONSULTING PLAZA)
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A Message from the President
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Let me express my deepest appreciation to all stakeholders 
for the continued support and interest you have extended 
to the Sony Financial Group.

 In fiscal 2017, ended March 31, 2018, the business 
environment continued to present challenges, including 
long-term interest rates in Japan that remained low. How-
ever, the Sony Financial Group performed well, with efforts 
to improve profitability and enrich the customer service 
menu leading to steady growth in business volume for all 
three core business segments. 
 Given the low interest rate environment in Japan, Sony 
Life emphasized activities aimed at raising profitability on 
an economic value basis. The Company’s approach included 
efforts to enrich the lineup of U.S. dollar-denominated 
insurance products and reinforce consulting sales and 
follow-up. Sony Assurance steadily increased policies for 
mainstay automobile insurance and implemented measures 
to boost service quality, such as the launch of SECOM 
Accident On-site Rush Service. Sony Bank built up the bal-
ance of mortgage loans and steadily expanded the number 
of Sony Bank WALLET cash cards with Visa debit function 
in 11 currencies. 

 A look at consolidated results of the Sony Financial 
Group for fi scal 2017 shows that ordinary revenues increased 
8.8%, to ¥1,503.6 billion, ordinary profit increased 0.8%, to 
¥66.8 billion, and profit attributable to owners of the parent 
was up 24.7%, to ¥51.8 billion. Consolidated adjusted 
ROE, a key performance indicator, reached 6.1%, up 2.2 
points from a year earlier. 

 In light of such factors as changes in the business 
environment, the Group formulated a new three-year 
medium-term business plan, effective from fiscal 2018. 
The three years of the new medium-term business plan will 
be a time for strategic moves from a long-term perspective 
to secure further growth by taking full advantage of changes 
that will occur 10 years into the future. Also, in formulating 
the new medium-term business plan, the Group recognized 
two points—“customer-first” and “response to changes”—
of major significance to the Group. 

 Over the next three years, the Group will emphasize 
“customer-first” business operation more strongly, and 
Sony Financial Holdings will reinforce governance structure 
over Group companies. In addition, the Group will create 
opportunities through its “response to changes” in the 
operating environment, namely, technological progress 
and a new social landscape, and lay a solid foundation 
for future growth. 
 These measures should drive growth for 10 years and 
even 20 years into the future, and during that time, we will 
strive to be a group that earns and keeps the trust of our 
customers. 

 With regard to dividends to shareholders for fiscal 2017, 
the payout was raised ¥5 per share over the fiscal 2016 
level, to ¥60 per share. We aim for steady increases in 
dividends in line with earnings growth over the medium to 
long term. In determining dividends, we place more impor-
tance on economic value-based profit indicators that are 
more suitable for evaluating the growth of the life insurance 
business, in addition to statutory profit. The dividend fore-
cast for fi scal 2018 is ¥62.50 per share, up ¥2.50 from 
fi scal 2017. 

 We will continue to seek the sustainable growth of the 
Sony Financial Group and raise corporate value, as we 
contribute to the development of society.

July 2018

Shigeru Ishii
President and Representative Director

We will steadily leverage growth achieved through stronger 
existing businesses, while we make strategic moves from 
a long-term perspective to secure further growth by taking full 
advantage of changes that will occur 10 years into the future.
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Life 
Insurance 
Business

Strategic Highlights
•   Strengthen provision of death protection
•   Expansion into corporate market
•   Expand Lifeplanner channel

Main Products
•   Death-protection insurance
•   Living benefit insurance, educational endowment 

insurance, medical insurance and others

Main Sales Channels
•   Lifeplanner sales employee
•   Partner (independent agency)

   Business expansion through tailor-made insurance design and sales approach 
and after-sales consultations based on life planning

   ALM (Asset Liability Management) to match insurance liability characteristics 
to reduce interest rate risk pertaining to liabilities of insurance policies with 
long-term maturities

   Financial soundness to meet future capital requirements

Sony Life

Distinctive Business Portfolio
The Sony Financial Group seeks to differentiate itself by 

creating new business models unlike those of industry peers 

and provides customers with reasonable, convenient and 

high-quality products and services. Going forward, the Group 

will strive to strengthen the presence of each company in its 

respective market.

STRENGTH
Business Portfolio
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Banking 
Business

Strategic Highlights
•   Reinforce foreign currency deposits
•   Provide products and services for asset management

Main Products
•   Foreign currency deposits
•   Mortgage loans
•   Sony Bank WALLET cash card with Visa debit 

function in 11 currencies

Main Sales Channels
•   Internet
•   Banking agency

   Lineup of highly convenient, high-quality products 
leveraging advantages of the Internet

   Business operations with high customer 
satisfaction

Sony Bank

Non-life 
Insurance 
Business

   Reasonable premiums matched to risk on 
individual basis

   Excellent accident response, with high-quality 
customer center and website services

Sony Assurance

Strategic Highlights
•   Continue to grow in automobile insurance
•   Expand business categories outside 

automobile insurance
•   Improve customer services and operating 

efficiency, mainly through utilizing 
leading-edge technology and renovations 
to our core business systems

Main Products
•   Automobile insurance
•   Medical insurance (term-type insurance 

covering actual expenses, whole life 
insurance covering predetermined amounts)

Main Sales Channels
•   Internet
•   Telephone

7Sony Financial Holdings Inc. Annual Report 2018
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Consistently Strong

GROWTH

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2011 2012 2014 2015 2016 2017 20182010 2013

653.2

758.7 759.2
822.1

860.3

1,002.2

1,078.0

1,320.4
1,352.3 1,362.0 1,381.6

1,503.6

978.9

1,259.0

12.2

25.3
18.3

44.5
34.2

76.8 74.6 76.1

90.0

71.1
66.3 66.8

84.3
79.2

SFH established 
in April 2004

Listed (First Section, 
Tokyo Stock Exchange)

 in October 2007

Lehman Shock

Sony Life implemented asset liability 
management (ALM) review and switched 
to stable profit-generating structure less 
susceptible to financial market fluctuations 

Bank of Japan introduced a policy of 
“Quantitative and Qualitative Monetary 
Easing with Negative Interest Rates”

SFH (Consolidated)
Ordinary Revenues/Ordinary Profi t
Gained customer loyalty through innovation 
in a market, which led to sustainable growth

Ordinary revenues

¥1,503.6 billion

Ordinary profi t

¥66.8 
           billion

(For the years 
ended March 31,)

Steady Growth
The Sony Financial Group has steadily expanded business 

volume by securing the loyalty of customers in each business 

that makes up its distinctive business portfolio. Going forward, 

the Group seeks to achieve medium- to long-term growth by 

providing high-quality products and services matched to the 

individual financial needs of each customer.
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2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2011 2012 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

10,352.1

11,471.8

12,401.4

2010 2013

182.8

263.0 270.1 261.6
204.8

294.8
347.8

467.0

550.6
604.3 601.1 625.4

269.4

435.4
3,282.2

3,917.0
4,323.7

4,977.4
5,313.6

6,597.1

7,241.4

8,841.3

9,545.8

6,001.0

8,096.1

SFH established 
in April 2004

Listed (First Section, 
Tokyo Stock Exchange)

 in October 2007

Total Assets/Net Assets
Expand asset scale by raising policy amount 
in force and balance of deposits

(As of March 31,)

Total assets

¥12,401.4 billion

Net assets

¥625.4 
             billion 
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Steady GrowthConsistently Strong GROWTH2C

Consultations draw on Sony Life’s very 
own software “LiPSS” and create life-
planning tables designed to realize 
customers’ dreams and hopes. 

2014 2015 2018201720162013201220112010200920082007200620052004200320022001200019971994199119881980 19851982

0.7
0.20.04

3.9

1.9

10.9

37.7

39.0

40.9

43.1

47.2

45.3

36.0

34.7

33.4
32.5

31.4

30.2

29.0

27.8

26.2

24.7

23.4

21.5

18.8

Total assets: ¥5 trillion

Total assets: ¥3 trillion

Total assets: ¥1 trillion

Changed name to 
Sony Life Insurance

April 1981
Business commenced

August 1979
Sony Prudential Life 
Insurance Co., Ltd. 
established

Life Insurance Business

Sony Life (Non-consolidated)
Policy Amount in Force*1

A consultation led by a Lifeplanner 
sales employee

¥47.2 
trillion

(As of March 31,)*1 Total amount of individual life insurance and individual annuities
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Various benefi ts and 
services are attached 
to Sony Bank WALLET, 
including cash back on 
domestic purchases, 
discounts, purchase 
protection insurance 
and compensation for 
unauthorized use. 

Sony Assurance 
maintains No. 1 spot 
in direct insurance for 
15 consecutive years 
(as of March 31, 2017)

1.3

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 20182017201620032002200120001999

30.3

23.6

16.2

7.5

37.4

44.9
50.1

54.6

60.8
67.0

72.8
78.3

82.5
87.3

90.4
94.3

107.0

99.0

   premiums written for automobile insurance 
   among major direct non-life insurers*2

   with emphasis on cancer treatment

June 1998
Sony Insurance Planning Co., Ltd. 
established

Began sales of ZiPPi medical insurance covering actual 
   inpatient expenses 

   automobile insurance for 15 straight years among 
   major direct non-life insurers*2

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 20182017201620032002

0.4
0.2

0.1

0.7
0.9

1.1

1.5

1.8

2.1

2.4
2.6

2.8
2.9 3.0

3.2

3.9

3.6

Total assets: ¥2 trillion

Loan balance exceeded ¥1 trillion

Deposit balance exceeded ¥2 trillion

Deposit balance 
exceeded 
¥1 trillion

April 2001
Sony Bank Inc. established
Business commenced in June

Non-life Insurance Business

Sony Assurance
Direct Premiums Written

Banking Business

Sony Bank (Non-consolidated)
Retail Balance*3

¥107.0
 billion

¥3.9
 trillion

(For the years ended March 31,)*2  “Major direct non-life insurers” refers to non-life insurers selling automobile insurance primarily via 

direct sales channels as of March 31 of each year.

(As of March 31,)*3  Sum of deposits, investment trusts and personal loan balances, including securities brokerage and 

mediated discretionary investment contracts from fi scal 2017
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Sales tie-up through Sony Life’s Lifeplanner 
sales employees
Lifeplanner sales employees handle products of Group 
companies, such as automobile insurance from Sony 
Assurance and mortgage loans from Sony Bank. 
     In fi scal 2017, the volume of automobile insurance 
sold along the Lifeplanner channel represented 4% of 
the number of new policies by Sony Assurance, while 
the volume of mortgage loans along this sales route 
represented 16% of the amount of new loans 
extended by Sony Bank. 

Inspiring the

FUTURE

Sustainable, stable growth 
at Group companies

We aim to achieve sustainable, stable growth by 
utilizing inherent company strengths and 
expanding business volume.

1

▶Page 6: Vision and Strategies: Strength

▶Page 8: Vision and Strategies: Growth

Create synergies 
through cooperation among 

Group companies

2

Seeking to Maximize Corporate Value
The Sony Financial Group seeks to build closer ties to 

customers and, through the management strategies described 

below, the Group will strive to maximize corporate value from 

a medium- to long-term perspective.

We will raise the synergistic effect created as a corporate 
group and provide appealing, high-value-added products 
and services that conventional fi nancial institutions have not 
been able to provide. So as to realize it, we place more impor-
tance on growth at each Group company and on efforts 
aimed at enhancing intra-company cooperation to facilitate 
access to products and services as well as sharing and 
mutual use of respective sales channels and infrastructure.
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Emphasize customer-first 
business operations and 

reinforce Group governance
The Group has emphasized customer-fi rst business operations 
in line with a corporate philosophy that dates back to the Group’s 
earliest days. SFH and its three core subsidiaries—Sony Life, Sony 
Assurance and Sony Bank—have all disclosed a customer-fi rst 
business operations policy and strive to maintain appropriate 
business operations. In addition, SFH continuously reinforces the 
governance structure for Group companies. 

4

▶Page 20: Vision and Strategies   The Sony Financial Group

Entry into new business domains 
that transcend our existing framework
Focusing on business domains related to existing businesses, 
we will strive to steadily expand business volume by continuing 
to enrich our lineup of products and services to meet customer 
expectations. 
     The Sony Financial Group added the nursing care business 
to its corporate portfolio in November 2013 and is steadily pur-
suing new activities to fuel growth over the medium to long 
term. Also, advances in technology have created an excellent 
backdrop for launching innovative fi nancial services, a trend that 
is gaining momentum. Under these circumstances, we estab-
lished a subsidiary in July 2018 to invest in venture companies 
with strengths in such areas as Fintech. 

3

▶Page 30: Vision and Strategies   Nursing Care Business
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90%

3%
7%

77%

2%

21%

81%

11%

10%

Note:  Ratios for each business segment are shown as a percentage of consolidated 
Sony Financial Holdings performance. 

For the years ended March 31, 2009 2010

Ordinary revenues ¥   860,323 ¥   978,991

Ordinary profi t 34,253 84,373

Profi t attributable to owners of the parent 30,722 48,126

Comprehensive income — 71,066

As of March 31, 

Total assets 5,313,677 6,001,088

Net assets 204,897 269,439
Consolidated capital adequacy ratio 
(Domestic standard) (Note 1) (Note 2) 13.32% 12.05%

Consolidated solvency margin ratio (Note 1) — —

For the years ended March 31, 

Ordinary revenues ¥   765,910 ¥   881,798

Ordinary profi t 32,409 80,099

Net income 33,783 46,138

As of March 31, 

Total assets 3,810,929 4,286,540

Net assets 140,730 191,312

Non-consolidated solvency margin ratio (Note 1) 2,060.5% 2,637.3%

For the years ended March 31, 

Ordinary revenues ¥     61,882 ¥     68,174

Ordinary profi t 2,178 2,565
Net income (loss) (1,556) 1,604

As of March 31, 

Total assets 86,698 98,340

Net assets 13,678 15,482

Non-consolidated solvency margin ratio (Note 1) 993.0% 1,018.5%

For the years ended March 31, 

Ordinary revenues ¥     33,361 ¥     30,500

Ordinary profi t 414 2,930

Net income (loss) (710) 1,646

As of March 31, 

Total assets 1,411,956 1,612,186

Net assets 46,264 58,989
Non-consolidated capital adequacy ratio 
(Domestic standard) (Note 1) (Note 2) 13.37% 12.09%

Sony Financial Group’s Financial Highlights
(SFH Consolidated and Primary Subsidiaries)

Sony Financial Holdings (Consolidated)

Sony Life (Non-consolidated) 

Sony Assurance 

Sony Bank (Non-consolidated) 

Composition by Business Segment
(For the year ended March 31, 2018)

Notes: 1. Calculated based on rules in force at the respective dates.
 2.  Capital adequacy ratio has been calculated by applying foundation internal ratings-based 

(FIRB) approach from March 31, 2017.

Life Insurance Business
Non-life Insurance Business
Banking Business

Ordinary Revenues Ordinary Profi t Total Assets
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Credit Rating Agencies Sony Financial Holdings Sony Life Sony Bank

Rating and Investment 
Information (R&I)

Issuer rating

AA–
Insurance claims paying ability

AA

Japan Credit Rating 
Agency (JCR)

Long-term issuer rating

AA–

S&P Global Ratings (S&P)
Insurer financial strength rating

A+
Counterparty credit rating

Long-termA  Short-termA-1

Millions of yen

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

¥1,002,201 ¥1,078,070 ¥1,259,041 ¥1,320,456 ¥1,352,325 ¥ 1,362,044 ¥ 1,381,667 ¥ 1,503,630

76,860 74,625 79,252 76,136 90,062 71,103 66,326 66,843

41,716 32,812 45,064 40,504 54,419 43,355 41,621 51,895

31,963 60,376 96,225 44,794 90,707 71,105 21,433 52,207

6,597,140 7,241,414 8,096,164 8,841,382 9,545,868 10,352,114 11,471,845 12,401,446

294,877 347,800 435,444 467,050 550,672 604,377 601,139 625,406

10.96% 10.14% 9.88% 12.02% 11.91% 10.70% 14.39% 18.58%

— 1,380.3% 1,520.6% 1,563.8% 1,634.9% 1,637.1% 1,632.9% 1,748.7%

¥ 900,091 ¥ 967,400 ¥1,142,274 ¥1,197,109 ¥1,223,827 ¥ 1,230,141 ¥ 1,243,739 ¥ 1,351,076

73,176 69,436 74,659 69,205 79,665 60,792 60,180 56,338

40,220 31,426 42,444 37,063 42,524 37,096 35,185 45,134

4,723,332 5,222,846 5,952,750 6,624,903 7,301,350 8,035,408 8,873,613 9,567,689

215,387 264,836 342,333 369,230 432,526 482,195 473,589 492,787

2,900.1% 1,980.4% 2,281.8% 2,358.7% 2,555.0% 2,722.8% 2,568.8% 2,624.3%

¥ 74,166 ¥ 80,096 ¥ 84,711 ¥ 89,864 ¥ 93,022 ¥ 96,905 ¥ 102,333 ¥ 110,092

2,144 2,859 2,371 3,003 4,209 4,680 4,996 6,574

1,297 1,299 1,454 1,664 2,233 2,586 3,515 4,821

109,382 118,612 127,421 142,714 157,919 172,323 186,537 204,362

16,772 18,009 19,934 21,418 24,741 28,305 29,409 33,189

981.4% 557.8% 504.2% 527.6% 629.6% 693.5% 730.8% 782.1%

¥ 29,521 ¥ 30,075 ¥ 31,351 ¥ 33,994 ¥ 35,714 ¥ 34,892 ¥ 35,105 ¥ 36,270

3,377 4,033 4,282 5,845 7,298 5,857 4,634 6,557

2,054 2,340 879 3,585 4,634 3,912 3,176 4,474

1,761,830 1,890,503 2,005,081 2,056,704 2,062,525 2,126,564 2,424,236 2,635,028

59,971 62,796 67,811 72,774 77,064 77,428 81,332 85,729

10.84% 11.58% 11.98% 11.72% 10.65% 9.89% 9.75% 10.45%

Credit Ratings  (As of July 1, 2018)
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FY2017 
Actual

FY2020
Medium-term targets

Ordinary revenues ¥1.50 trillion ¥1.76 trillion

Ordinary profit ¥66.8 billion ¥77 billion

Profit attributable to owners of the parent ¥51.8 billion ¥50 billion

US-GAAP operating income*1 ¥178.9 billion ¥180 billion

Consolidated adjusted ROE 6.1%*2 Approx. 7%

*1  The fi gures for fi scal 2017, ended March 31, 2018, are rounded to the nearest ¥100 million. The fi gures for fi scal 2020, ending March 31, 2021, include expected 
changes in actuarial assumptions that are not affected by fi nancial markets, and do not include expected gains/losses on sale of securities according to the 
change of available-for-sale securities recognition, which are reported at fair value in the US GAAP from fi scal 2018, ended March 31, 2019 onward.

*2  Actual results for fi scal 2017 exclude the effect of a change to the insurance risk measurement method and other revisions at Sony Life.

for FY2020TARGETS

Sony Financial Group

FY2020
FY2018

Medium-term 
Business Plan
The operating environment surrounding the Group is expected to remain challenging. The situation is largely due 
to a shrinking market, refl ecting a net decrease in the population and downward pressure on profi tability, parallel-
ing the low interest rate situation. Particularly the speed of technological innovation, including Fintech, is amazing, 
and the danger grows more likely every day that existing fi nancial services will be made obsolete as companies 
from different sectors enter the fi nance industry. In addition, management at fi nancial institutions has placed 
more importance on a customer-oriented approach to business operations. 
 In this operating environment, the Sony Financial Group will steadily strengthen existing businesses, while we 
make a new approach with a long-term perspective to secure further growth by taking full advantage of changes 
that will occur 10 years into the future. The Group’s growth strategy focuses on two key points: customer-fi rst 
and response to changes. With this in mind, the Group will support customers’ fi nancial activities overall, 
beyond the existing business value chain, to provide reliable services and access to the newest technologies.

Key Points in New Medium-term Business Plan

Customer-first —Further promote the customer-first business operation 

Response to Changes — Establish a foundation that allows us to take full advantage 
of changes (technological advancements, social or regulatory 
changes, etc.) to secure further growth 

▶Page 21: Calculation of Consolidated Adjusted ROE
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MANAGEMENT MESSAGES

Yuichiro Sumimoto

President, Representative Director
Sony Bank

Page

28

Page

22

Page

18

Page

26

Shigeru Ishii

President, Representative Director
Sony Financial Holdings

Tomoo Hagimoto

President, Representative Director
Sony Life

Atsuo Niwa

President, Representative Director
Sony Assurance

Sony Financial Group

Sony Assurance

Sony Bank

Sony Life
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1.50
1.38 66.866.3

6.1%

3.9%

FY2017
Actual

FY2016
Actual

FY2020
Target

FY2017
Actual

FY2016
Actual

FY2020
Target

FY2017
Actual

FY2016
Actual

FY2020
Target

Approx. 7%¥77 billion
¥1.76 trillion

Business 
Volume

Performance

*3  The fi gures prior to fi scal 2017, ended March 31, 2018, exclude the impact of a revision in the insurance risk measurement method and 
others for Sony Life.

%

The Group’s three core subsidiaries are expected to 
continue to expand business volume through fi scal 2020, 
ending March 31, 2021. Consolidated ordinary revenues 
and ordinary profi t in fi scal 2020 should both increase over 
those of fi scal 2017. In addition, our goal for consolidated 
adjusted ROE, of which Sony Life’s core ROEV constitutes 
a major portion, is about 7% in fi scal 2020. 

Shigeru Ishii
President, Representative Director

Sony Financial Holdings

107.0
3.9

¥55 trillion
¥120 billion ¥5.0 trillion

47.2

CAGR*2

Approx. 5%
CAGR*2

Approx. 4%
CAGR*2

Approx. 8%

FY2017
Actual

FY2020
Target

FY2017
Actual

FY2020
Target

FY2017
Actual

FY2020
Target

Sony Financial Group

Business Volume and Performance

Sony Life
Policy amount in force

Sony Assurance
Direct premiums written

Sony Bank
Retail balance*1

Trillions of yen

Trillions of yen

Trillions of yenBillions of yen

Billions of yen

Ordinary revenues (consolidated) Ordinary profi t (consolidated) Consolidated adjusted ROE*3

*1   Sum of yen deposits, foreign currency deposits, investment trusts, securities brokerage, mediated discretionary investment contracts and personal loan 
balances

*2 CAGR: Compound Annual Growth Rate
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Life Insurance

Enhance consulting-based 
sales and follow-ups
▶Page 22: Sony Life

Non-life Insurance

Maintain growth in auto-
mobile insurance while 
diversifying portfolios for 
the non-life insurance 
category 
▶Page 26: Sony Assurance

Banking

Achieve growth in foreign 
currency deposits and 
mortgage loans through 
enhanced proposal capa-
bilities and alliance network
▶Page 28: Sony Bank

Nursing Care

Ensure steady post-startup 
progress
▶Page 30:  Nursing care 

business

Group Growth Strategy

The growth strategy of the Sony Financial Group builds on organic growth, through stronger existing business and new initiatives 
described in the new medium-term business plan that will lay the foundation for growth into the future.

1. Utilize Fintech
To effectively provide higher quality fi nancial services to customers, Group companies will actively incorporate new technologies, 
including machine learning and other AI technologies, into operations through alliances within the Group as well as with outside 
parties. This will help get us closer to customers.

2. Establish investment subsidiary
In July 2018, SFH established Sony Financial Ventures Inc., an investment subsidiary. Sony Financial Ventures invests in 
venture companies with strengths in the related businesses of Group companies, including Fintech and health care. By investing, 
we aim to reinforce existing Group businesses and facilitate the creation of new businesses, through tie-ups and joint activities 
between venture companies and Group companies, besides capturing fi nancial returns. 

3. Build physical and digital channels
The Sony Financial Group boasts the strengths of a real sales channel through Sony Life and a digital sales channel through 
Sony Assurance and Sony Bank. We will take advantage of both channels without losing the characteristics that distinguish 
each format through stronger connections within the Group as well as through M&A and alliances. 
 As a group, we will get closer to customers and enhance our function by analyzing data on customers’ consumption and 
behavioral patterns. This will enable us to better match fi nancial services to customers’ needs and create a closer presence 
between customers and ourselves.

Growth Through Stronger Existing Businesses

New Initiatives for Further Growth
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• Sony Life: Core ROEV

• Sony Assurance: Adjusted ROE

• Sony Bank: ROE

•   Insurance business: Solvency margin ratio

•   Banking business: Capital adequacy ratio

•   Management on a regulatory basis and on the 
basis of economic value

Capital efficiency (profitability) indicators

Soundness indicators

Risk

Return

Capital

Capital efficiency 
(profitability)

Soundness

Capital policy
Dividend policy

Customer-fi rst Business Operation Policy (Summary)

Based on its vision and philosophy, the Sony Financial Group pursues business operations from a customer-first 
perspective. SFH has clarified this initiative as its customer-first business operation policy, and Sony Life, Sony 
Assurance and Sony Bank will each go further to establish business operation policies fine-tuned to respective 
activities. 
 The policy that SFH has set as well as the policies in place at Group companies will be reviewed periodically, 
taking into account such factors as changes in the operating environment. In addition, SFH, as a financial holding 
company, will confirm that the content of the customer-first business operation policy is appropriate, and will monitor 
the activities at Group companies, based on their policies, to ensure proper business operations. SFH will offer 
whatever support and guidance is necessary, as required. 
 At the same time, Group companies will verify the status of their own initiatives on customer-first business 
operations and regularly report to the Board of Directors or other oversight structures and will also provide status 
updates on a regular basis.

Further Strengthen Group Governance

The Sony Financial Group’s responses to the Corporate Gov-
ernance Code have included the introduction of a restricted 
stock compensation system, the evaluation of the effective-
ness of the Board of Directors through a third party and an 

increase in the number of independent outside directors. The 
Group will continue to promote initiatives aimed at further 
strengthening the governance structure. 

Promote Group ERM

A group-oriented ERM (Enterprise Risk Management) frame-
work has been introduced into the Sony Financial Group. 
It aims to balance and optimize capital, risk and return by 
extending comprehensive risk management structures already 
in place at each company throughout the whole organization 
and to instill the idea of improved capital effi ciency in manage-
ment across the Group. This ERM framework will help the 

Group achieve stable growth and maximize medium- to long-
term corporate value. The Group is working to build a PDCA 
cycle through the formulation, implementation and monitoring 
of business plans based on risk appetite. Furthermore, we are 
trying to raise Group ERM even higher while keeping related 
regulatory trends in sight. 
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Calculation of Consolidated Adjusted ROE

Group companies’ adjusted ROE and ROE as well as consolidated adjusted ROE are presented below.

Calculation of Sony Life’s core ROEV:

 New business value + Expected existing business contribution

 MCEV* as of the beginning of the fi scal year less dividends paid plus MCEV* as of the end of the fi scal year, divided by two

Calculation of Sony Assurance’s adjusted ROE:

 Net income (loss) + Provision amount for catastrophe reserve 
 and its provision amount for reserve for price fl uctuations, in each case after taxes

 The average amount of net assets plus the sum of catastrophe reserve
 and its reserve for price fl uctuations during the fi scal year, in each case after taxes

Calculation of Sony Bank’s ROE:
 Profi t (loss) attributable to owners of the parent

 The average amount of net assets during the fi scal year

Calculation of Consolidated adjusted ROE for fi scal 2017:

     Consolidated adjusted ROE = Consolidated adjusted profi t ÷ consolidated adjusted capital

 Sony Life: New business value + expected existing business contribution
 + Sony Assurance: Net income (loss) + provision amount for catastrophe reserve and 
 its provision amount for reserve for price fl uctuations, in each case after taxes 
 + Sony Bank: Profi t (loss) attributable to owners of the parent

 Sony Life: MCEV* as of the beginning of the fi scal year less dividends paid plus MCEV* as of the end of the fi scal year, divided by two 
 + Sony Assurance: The average amount of net assets plus the sum of catastrophe reserve and 
 its reserve for price fl uctuations during the fi scal year, in each case after taxes 
 + Sony Bank: The average amount of net assets during the fi scal year

  * Sony Life discloses Market Consistent Embedded Value (“MCEV”). Sony Life’s MCEV is calculated in compliance with the European Insurance CFO 
Forum Market Consistent Embedded Value Principles©** (“MCEV Principles”), the international standard in disclosing MCEV, published by the CFO Forum 
comprising CFOs from major insurance companies in Europe.

**Copyright© Stichting CFO Forum Foundation 2008

FY2017
Actual

FY2020
Medium-term targets

Consolidated adjusted ROE* 6.1% Approx. 7%

   (Sony Life) Core ROEV* 5.9% 6% or more

   (Sony Assurance) Adjusted ROE 16.1% Approx. 13%

   (Sony Bank) ROE 5.5% 6.8%

* The fi gures for fi scal 2017 exclude the impact of a revision in the insurance risk management method and others for Sony Life.

Consolidated Adjusted ROE

Since each company of the Sony Financial Group differs by 
industry such as insurance and banking, each Group company 
calculates its “Adjusted ROE” based on adjusted profi t and 
adjusted capital to realize its corporate value and capital effi -
ciency. By fi scal 2020, as the medium-term target, Sony Life’s 

core ROEV should be 6% or more. For Sony Assurance, 
adjusted ROE should reach around 13% by that time, while 
Sony Bank should show ROE of 6.8%. On a consolidated 
basis, achievement of these medium-term targets will lead to a 
consolidated adjusted ROE of about 7%. 
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Tomoo Hagimoto
President, Representative Director

Sony Life

Activities for Growth in Fiscal 2018 and Beyond

Further strengthen our 
business foundation

•  Pursue quality in the Lifeplanner channel
•  Achieve steady recovery in the independent agency channel

Provide new value
•  Expand coverage (new medical insurance) 
•  Evolve customer-fi rst service (Fintech) 

Steadily grow corporate 
value •  Realize growth in profi t on the basis of economic value

Sony Life
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Channel-specifi c Strategy: Lifeplanner 
Channel

Stringent recruitment and enhancing education 
and training

Sales through Sony Life’s Lifeplanner channel represent 
about 80% of all new policies, and sales are growing steadily. 
At Sony Life, brisk recruitment is pushing the number of 
Lifeplanner sales employees higher every year. As of March 
31, 2018, it had reached 5,142. Lifeplanner productivity 
continues at a high level.
 Going forward, we will apply stricter selection criteria in 
the recruitment process of Lifeplanner candidates, including 
an enhanced interview process. In addition, through regular 
communication with the head offi ce and standard application 
of best practices, we will raise the level of education and 
training at branch offi ces and reinforce education and train-
ing, including initial training. 
 Through these measures, we will steadily expand the 
team lineup while improving the quality of Lifeplanner sales 
employees, and by March 31, 2021, the number of Lifeplanner 
sales employees should exceed 5,700.
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4,329
4,612

4,933 5,142

108

Over 5,700
100

FY2016
Actual

FY2017
Actual

FY2014
Actual

FY2015
Actual

FY2020
Outlook

Number of Lifeplanner sales employees         Productivity
as of the end of the fiscal year

Broad area/corporate

Close ties to local 
communities

100
108

92

77

100

Independent agency 
channel

Lifeplanner channel

4.7
5.1 4.9

5.2

Medium-term target
¥6.0 trillion

FY2016
Actual

FY2017
Actual

FY2014
Actual

FY2015
Actual

FY2020
Target

FY2016
Actual

FY2017
Actual

FY2014
Actual

FY2015
Actual

FY2020
Target

Number of Lifeplanner Sales Employees*1 and 
Productivity*2

*1  The fi gure includes the number of contracted Lifeplanner sales employees 
and those rehired on a fi xed-term contract basis after retirement. 

*2  Productivity is indexed to FY2014 = 100, calculated on the basis of new 
policy amount.

*1  New policy amount is indexed to FY2014 = 100 *2  Individual life insurance and annuities

Sony Life’s New Policy Amount*2 
Trillions of yen

New Policy Amount Index*1 
(Independent Agency Channel) 

Channel-specifi c Strategy: Independent Agency Channel

Sales through Partners (independent agencies) at Sony Life 
account for about 20% of all new policies. 
 We will broaden the range of support matched to type of 
business—either independent agencies with close ties to the 

local community or large, corporate independent agencies—
as well as strengthen training of Supporters (independent 
agencies’ sales staff), and we will promote measures aimed 
at achieving a recovery in new policy amount.

Enhancing consulting sales and follow-up 
capabilities

Sony Life encourages the Lifeplanner channel to utilize 
LiPSS, a simulation tool for designing the coverage that cus-
tomers need to achieve their life plans, as well as Karte, 
which collects, updates and keeps data obtained through 
communication with customers. These approaches underpin 
enhanced consulting sales and follow-up capabilities based 
on customer needs, as Lifeplanner sales employees are able 
to visualize the basis for recommendations to customers and 
provide protection along the lines of customer intentions. In 
addition, they can check on and optimize coverage through 
post-contract consulting and follow-up activities, which will 
drive the value provided by Lifeplanner sales employees 
even higher. 
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1.4

1.6*1

Core ROEV
6% or more

Over
¥1.8 trillion*2

FY2016
Actual

FY2017
Actual

FY2020
Target

MCEV
Trillions of yen

*1  Following revisions, including insurance risk measurement method, effective 
from fi scal year ended March 31, 2018 onward

*2 Based on interest rate level at end of March 2018.

Expanding Provided Value—Launch of New Medical Insurance and Evolution of 
Customer Services Through Fintech

At Sony Life, we provide protection to our customers with 
a focus on death protection products. Amid a persistently 
low-interest situation in Japan, we began selling a new U.S. 
dollar-denominated product in October 2017 that utilizes 
comparatively higher interest rates on U.S. dollar-denomi-
nated investments, compared with current low returns on 
yen-denominated investments, to give customers suffi cient 
protection at reasonable costs. Also, in the medical insurance 
fi eld, we launched two products in July 2018 with coverage 
better suited to the changing environment of on-site medical 
care to meet the medical protection needs of customers. 

The two medical insurance products highlight, respectively, 
a focus on insurance premiums and a fondness for saving, 
and thereby address the needs of a wide range of customers. 
 In addition, from a medium-term perspective, we are 
working to strengthen proposal-making capabilities by apply-
ing advances in Fintech. We are keen to use AI to make 
objective proposals and to improve service quality on both 
sales and follow-up fronts by promoting the development of 
AI responses using the life plans, dreams, ideas and other 
customer data obtained through consulting activities. 

Achieving Profi t Growth on an Economic Value Basis

At Sony Life, we emphasize medium-term profi t growth on an 
economic value basis as an indicator of performance since it 
tracks more closely to the actual growth of the life insurance 
business. Our MCEV was ¥1,633.2 billion, as of March 31, 
2018, and we expect to surpass ¥1,800 billion by March 31, 
2021. We see new business value and expected existing 
business contributions as the foundation for growth in corpo-
rate value obtained through insurance underwriting. We 
defi ne the ratio of the total sum of new business value and 
expected existing business contributions to MCEV, as a mea-
sure of capital effi ciency (profi tability), also called core ROEV. 
We anticipate a core ROEV of 6% or more in fi scal 2020. 
 Sony Life continues to commit to customer-fi rst business 
operations and efforts to strengthen the compliance system 
while working to achieve medium-term profi t growth on an 
economic value basis.
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FY2017
Actual

FY2020
Medium-term targets

Policy amount in force ¥47.2 trillion ¥55 trillion

Number of Lifeplanners*1 5,142 Over 5,700

MCEV*2 ¥1.6 trillion Over ¥1.8 trillion

Core ROEV*3 5.9% 6% or more

Ordinary profit (life insurance business) ¥54.1 billion ¥62 billion

*1  The fi gures include the number of contracted Lifeplanner sales employees and those rehired on a fi xed-term contract basis after retirement.
*2 Medium-term targets for fi scal 2020 are based on interest rate levels as of March 31, 2018.
*3 Results for FY2017 exclude impact from revisions, such as change in insurance risk measurement method.

“Karte”  for Higher Quality Consulting and Follow-up 

Sony Life’s Karte is an electronic database of customer infor-
mation and history collected during proposal- and contract-
making and follow-up efforts. 
 
 Lifeplanner sales employees give shape to customers’ 
expectations for the distant future—discussed at the time a 
policy is drawn up—and accompany customers as they pro-
ceed with life. 
 Therefore, even after a policy is signed, whenever 
Lifeplanner sales employees meet with customers, they ask 
how customers are doing and inquire about their concerns. 
By consistently recording this information in Karte, they can 
pinpoint future balances of income and expenditure and offer 
suggestions, such as policy adjustments to match life events 
that could be several years into the future. 

 Please refer to Review of Operations: Life Insurance Business on page 36.

Fiscal 2020 Medium-term Targets

Karte

History of procedures

Changes in customer status

Insurance policy 
   content

Required coverage
and recommendation

reason

Future balances of income
                  and expenditure

Result of life planning 

Customer’s ideas 
           and dreams

Customer demands for life insurance

Customer information
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Atsuo Niwa
President, Representative Director
Sony Assurance

Activities for Growth in Fiscal 2018 and Beyond

maximize value to customers and reduce operating costs by 
applying leading-edge technologies, such as Fintech, and doing 
large-scale renovation of core business systems.
 Going forward, we will take a thorough approach in providing 
high-quality products and services from a customer-fi rst perspec-
tive, and respond to anticipated changes in the operating environ-
ment and strive to maintain steady growth and high profi tability. 

*PHYD: Pay How You Drive

Sony Assurance recorded ordinary profi t of ¥6.5 billion in fi scal 
2017, the fi fth consecutive year of record-breaking results, an 
upward trend maintained since fi scal 2013. This achievement 
refl ects higher revenues, paralleling favorable sales of mainstay 
automobile insurance, as well as a lower loss ratio. Going for-
ward, we will strive to make customers feel more at ease with 
direct insurance and build reliable brand power by reinforcing 
product appeal and service quality, and we will expand market 
share with an emphasis on active approaches of effective mar-
keting and communication practices. In the area of progressive 
products, we will continue to pursue development of new 
PHYD-type* telematics insurance products using smartphones 
through alliances with Yahoo Japan Corporation (Yahoo! Japan) 
and the Sony Group. 
 At the same time, Sony Assurance is working to transition 
from a structure that relies heavily on automobile insurance to 
a structure featuring multiple products that will underpin stable 
revenues over the long term. In the medical insurance fi eld, we 
currently sell a predetermined-amount medical insurance 
product specifi cally for cancer and another product for actual 
hospital inpatient expenses. Going forward, we will maintain 
our emphasis on enhanced product appeal to better meet the 
diversifying medical needs of our customers. In the new fi re 
insurance fi eld, we have expanded further into new areas of 
non-life insurance, where we can put the originality of our 
products and our strength in direct insurance. As part of this 
push, in June 2018, we launched sales of an Internet-only, 
risk-segmented overseas travel accident insurance product 
distinguished by attractive, economical premiums. We will use 
this product to capture new customers but will also seek to 
create a synergistic effect through cross-marketing products 
in existing categories to travel insurance customers.
 Another objective is to improve products and services to 

Sony Assurance

Continue to grow and 
expand share of automobile 
insurance

•  Strengthen customer confi dence in direct insurance by improving product 
capabilities and service quality and conducting effective marketing; establish 
“a trusted brand”

•  Improve products, marketing and services using leading-edge technology

Expand business categories 
outside automobile 
insurance

•  Aim to establish a foundation for stable long-term earnings and promote categorical 
expansion 

•  Medical insurance fi eld: strengthen and expand products, respond to diverse needs
•  New fi re insurance fi eld: use strength in direct business to expand into new domains

Maximize customer value

•  Strengthen customer retention by improving the customer experience and offering 
high-quality services 

•  Increase ability to acquire new policies by improving product and service specs to 
raise perceived quality

Reform operations and 
improve operating efficiency

•  Track medium- to long-term changes in operating environment and utilize leading-
edge technology to raise operating effi ciency and heighten cost competitiveness 

•  Reform operations and aim to improve ability to respond to customer needs through 
large-scale renovations to our core business systems
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93.8%
89.8

91.0%

93.0 96.9
102.3

110.0

3.0

4.2 4.2 4.6

7.6

4.9

8.1

6.5

10.0

7.1

90.4% 90.6% 89.2%

Ordinary revenues
Sum of two ratios

Net premiums 
written 
(automobile)

Net premiums 
written 
(other than 
automobile)

Investment 
income

Ordinary profit

Adjusted 
ordinary profit

FY2016FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2017 FY2016FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2017

Trends of Ordinary Revenues
Billions of yen

Ordinary Profit and Sum of Two Ratios
Billions of yen

Note: Adjusted ordinary profi t = Ordinary profi t + Provision for catastrophe reserve
         Sum of two ratios = E.I. loss ratio + Net expense ratio
         E.I. loss ratio = (Net losses paid + Provision for reserve for outstanding losses and claims + Loss adjustment expenses) / Earned premiums
         Net expense ratio = Expenses related to underwriting / Net premiums written

FY2017
Actual

FY2020
Medium-term targets

Direct premiums written ¥107.0 billion ¥120 billion

Sum of two ratios
   [E.I. loss ratio]
   [Net expense ratio]

89.2%
[60.7%]
[28.5%]

Sum of two ratios  
89% 

Ordinary profit ¥6.5 billion ¥7 billion

Adjusted ordinary profit* ¥10.0 billion ¥11 billion

Adjusted ROE 16.1% Approx.13%

* Adjusted ordinary profi t = Ordinary profi t + Provision for catastrophe reserve

 Please refer to Review of Operations: Non-life Insurance Business on page 44.

Fiscal 2020 Medium-Term Targets

27Sony Financial Holdings Inc. Annual Report 2018

Vision and S
trategies



Sony Interactive Entertainment Inc., Takashimaya Co., Ltd. and 
others on Sony Bank WALLET, and we will seek additional 
alliances in pursuit of enhanced convenience for customers, 
including enhanced functions for the Sony Bank WALLET 
app. We will put greater effort into highlighting the conve-
nience of Sony Bank WALLET, namely, the use of foreign 
currency deposits on overseas travel and overseas business 
trips, as well as the low service charge, on the way to our 
goal of a foreign currency deposit balance of ¥530 billion 
by March 31, 2021. 
 In the mortgage loan business, interest rates remain low, 
and increasingly fi erce competition is making it diffi cult to 
capture customers. Sony Bank aims to make our fi xed-rate 
products more competitive and introduce a new group credit 
life insurance. We will also start using AI in provisional 
screening for mortgage loans and achieve greater conve-
nience for customers by honing our competitive edge. We 
will continue to expand our alliance channel with real estate 
companies and banking agencies in pursuit of a personal 
loan balance of ¥2.1 trillion by March 31, 2021, with the 
largest component of this balance being mortgage loans. 
 Also, to be chosen more frequently by customers, we 
have to fi ne-tune our proposal-making capabilities. We are 
working to draw on the advantages afforded by digital mar-
keting to analyze customer characteristics and preferences 
and then recommend products matched to identifi ed needs 
at just the right time. Going forward, we will emphasize the 
development of apps that facilitate life-planning simulations 
and investment product suggestions by smartphone as well 
as enhanced face-to-face proposals at CONSULTING PLAZA. 
 In addition to the above, we will constantly seek to raise 
operating effi ciency, including concentrating resources into 
high-value-added business activities, as we work toward an 
ROE of 6.8% by March 31, 2021.

To fuel growth into the future, Sony Bank continues to focus 
on its foreign currency deposit and mortgage loan businesses. 
In the foreign currency deposits business, the balance at 
March 31, 2018, exceeded ¥400 billion, refl ecting successful 
efforts to highlight the appeal of interest rates on U.S. dollar 
term deposits as well as the popularity of Sony Bank WALLET, 
for which the number of cards issued as of March 31, 2018, 
topped 370,000. At Sony Bank, we have forged alliances with 

Yuichiro Sumimoto
President, Representative Director

Sony Bank

Sony Bank

Activities for Growth in Fiscal 2018 and Beyond

Increase product strength 
and improve service

•  Improve convenience of Sony Bank WALLET cash card with Visa debit function 
in 11 currencies, and expand tie-ups

•  Strengthen competitiveness of mortgage loans
•  Offer convenience through banking apps 
•  Expand investment options through crowd funding

Improve proposal-making 
capability

•  Strengthen digital marketing
•  Implement digital consulting
•  Expand consulting, both over the Internet and face to face

Conduct operational reform 
and utilize Fintech

•  Begin using AI in provisional screening for mortgage loans
•  Promote alliances using open API
•  Improve operational effi ciency through implementation of RPA
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FY2017
Actual

FY2020
Medium-term targets

Retail balance (non-consolidated)* ¥3.9 trillion ¥5.0 trillion

Gross operating profit ¥24.6 billion ¥33.5 billion

Ordinary profit ¥7.1 billion ¥9.7 billion

ROE 5.5% 6.8%
Reference: Sony Payment Services Inc. business results

Sales ¥3.6 billion ¥5.1 billion

Ordinary profit ¥0.6 billion ¥1.2 billion

* Sum of yen deposits, foreign currency deposits, investment trusts, securities brokerage, mediated discretionary investment contracts and personal loan balances

1.13

1.31

348.0
404.6

530

1.4
1.5

2.1

0.91

0.94

0.22
0.37

36.2

43.2

3.2
6.0

Mortgage loans

Condominium loans 
for investment 
purposes

Fees and 
commissions

Interest income

Other operating 
income

Other personal loans

FY2020
Target

FY2017
Actual

FY2016
Actual

FY2020
Target

FY2017
Actual

FY2020
Target

FY2017
Actual

FY2020
Target

FY2017
Actual

FY2016
Actual

 Interest spread       Yield on investment       Yield on financing

Trends in Foreign Currency Deposit Balance
Billions of yen

Trends in Personal Loan Balance
Trillions of yen

Interest Spread
%

Ordinary Revenues (Sony Bank non-consolidated)
Billions of yen

 Please refer to Review of Operations: Banking Business on page 50.

Fiscal 2020 Medium-term Targets

29Sony Financial Holdings Inc. Annual Report 2018

Vision and S
trategies



Sony Lifecare, a holding company overseeing activities in the 
nursing care business, seeks to realize a “Life Focus” con-
cept—the pursuit of a fulfi lling long life—and promotes expan-
sion of business, particularly nursing care homes, under two 
brands. SONARE, handled by Lifecare Design, caters to upper 
middle-class seniors, and Hanakotoba, handled by Proud Life, 
aims at the largest market segment. 
 In SONARE operations, Sony Lifecare is focused on con-
structing nursing care homes in the Tokyo metropolitan area, 
where demand is expected to grow even higher, and is pre-
paring for the planned opening of its third facility—SONARE 
Shakujii—in November 2018. The company will continue to 
emphasize initiatives that solidify SONARE as a high-quality 
brand with appealing originality. In Hanakotoba operations, 
Proud Life is making preparations to establish new facilities to 
complement its current network of 26 nursing care homes and 
thus expand its business base.  
 Future efforts will be directed toward delivering solutions 
to address the needs of a diversifying nursing care home 

services market through a lineup of SONARE and Hanakotoba 
facilities. In addition, both Sony Lifecare and Proud Life 
will work to create a synergetic effect between respective 
brands and effectively utilize management resources within 
the group. 

SONARE Shakujii, a nursing care home, scheduled to open in November 2018

Initiatives for Nursing Care Business Growth

Nursing Care Business

Trends in Japan’s Nursing Care Market

Status of Aging Population
The number of seniors aged 65 or older in Japan (“seniors”) reached 35.19 million as of November 1, 2017, and represented 
27.8% of the total population. Both the number and percentage are record highs. In the most recent census, the ratio of 
seniors to total population was 1 to 3.6 , up from 1 to 4.7 a decade previously, as of November 1, 2007, with one in three 
citizens likely to be in the senior category by 2036, along with the decline of the population. 
 Nursing care needs are also rising, refl ecting the aging society. The status of nursing care benefi ts in fi scal 2016, ended 
March 31, 2017, broke previous records, in terms of people receiving benefi ts—5.61 million people—and in terms of the 
total cost of nursing care—¥10,180.4 billion. Of note, the total cost of nursing care, on a fi scal year basis, surpassed the 
¥10 trillion mark for the fi rst time. 

Government working on system to ensure access to high-quality, efficient nursing care services
In April 2018, the government revised nursing care compensation, an offi cial rate applied to nursing care services, with total 
compensation showing upward movement—0.54%—for the fi rst time in six years. 
 The basic stance taken by the government in the recent revision highlights four themes: 1) promoting a community-based 
integrated care system; 2) realizing high-quality nursing care services that support the self-reliance of seniors and prevent 
existing health issues from becoming more serious; 3) ensuring the availability of diverse human resources and improving 
productivity; and 4) ensuring the stability and sustainability of the system by standardizing and prioritizing nursing care 
services. 
 Of these, promoting a community-based integrated care system—which the government has tapped as an approach 
allowing seniors to receive continuous and consistent nursing care services in a familiar location, to the extent possible—is 
intended to enhance assessment of activities that link nursing care to medical treatment. In addition, from the perspective 
of enabling seniors to be self-reliant and preventing serious health consequences, emphasis was placed on rehabilitation 
and systems to evaluate providers whose services maintain and improve the conditions of persons requiring care. 

Sources:  “Population Estimates,” Statistics Bureau, Ministry of Internal Affairs and Communications; “Population Projections for Japan,” National Institute 
of Population and Social Security Research; “Nursing Care Expenses,” All-Japan Federation of National Health Insurance Organizations; “Annual 
Report on the Aging Society: 2017,” Cabinet Offi ce; Cabinet decision materials; various council meeting materials (Ministry of Health, Labour and 
Welfare); and other documents
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Review of Operations and 
Analysis of Operating Performance
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Segment Performance Highlights 

Ordinary
revenues 1,196.6 1,223.9 1,230.2 1,243.9 1,351.2

For the years ended March 31,

Ordinary
profit 67.2 78.3 60.2 56.8 54.1

For the years ended March 31,

Total
assets 6,619.3 7,301.0 8,033.3 8,873.4 9,566.0

As of March 31,

Ordinary
revenues 36.4 38.4 37.9 38.5 39.9

For the years ended March 31,

Ordinary
revenues 89.8 93.0 96.9 102.3 110.0

For the years ended March 31,

Ordinary
profit 5.6 7.3 5.9 5.0 7.1

For the years ended March 31,

Ordinary
profit 3.0 4.2 4.6 5.0 6.5

For the years ended March 31,

Total
assets 2,068.7 2,074.6 2,140.2 2,438.8 2,651.1

As of March 31,

Total
assets 142.7 157.9 172.3 186.5 204.3

As of March 31,

Life Insurance Business    Details: P36

Non-life Insurance Business    Details: P44

Banking Business    Details: P50
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Operating Results
During fi scal 2017, the Japanese economy continued to recover. Global demand for IT products drove external demand, 
while a stable recovery in the employment situation fueled internal demand. The current economic recovery, which began in 
December 2012, has now surpassed the Izanagi economic boom (1965–1970) to become Japan’s second-largest postwar 
period of economic growth. However, early 2018 was marked by a growing sense of uncertainty regarding the overseas 
political and economic situations, and fi nancial markets were characterized by instability, with the yen appreciating and stock 
prices falling. 
 In bond markets, yields on 10-year Japanese government bonds (JGBs) ranged between negative 0.02% and positive 
0.09%. The domestic long-term interest rate was still low.
 In foreign exchange markets, the yen traded near ¥112 to the U.S. dollar from April 2017 to early January 2018. From 
October, debates on tax reform in the United States prompted expectations of a rise in interest rates. And it caused the yen 
to depreciate to the ¥114 level against the U.S. dollar, though since mid-January 2018, the yen had appreciated into the 
¥104 level against the U.S. dollar at one point in late March.
 Amid these circumstances, the Sony Financial Group sought to become the fi nancial services group most highly trusted 
by customers. To this end, we undertook a variety of measures to maintain a sound fi nancial base, reinforce and expand our 
product and service offerings in order to deliver high-value-added products and high-quality services to each of our custom-
ers, and enhance our internal control system.
 Ordinary revenues increased 8.8% year on year, to ¥1,503.6 billion, owing to increases in ordinary revenues from all the 
businesses: life insurance, non-life insurance and banking businesses. Ordinary profi t increased 0.8% year on year, to ¥66.8 
billion. By business segment, ordinary profi t from the life insurance business decreased, ordinary profi t from the non-life 
insurance and banking businesses rose. Profi t attributable to owners of the parent was up 24.7% year on year, to ¥51.8 
billion. This increase was due to a gain on disposal of fi xed assets from a sale of the real estate held for investment of ¥13.2 
billion in the life insurance business, which was recorded in extraordinary gains in fi scal 2017. 
 Segment results are amounts before consolidation adjustments and are described below.

Life Insurance Business     Ordinary revenues grew 8.6% year on year, to ¥1,351.2 billion, due to higher income from 
insurance premiums, owing to a steady rise in the policy amount in force. Ordinary profi t decreased 4.7% year on year, to 
¥54.1 billion, due to a higher provision of policy reserve relating to the acquisition of new policies refl ecting a revision in the 
standard yields used for calculating policy reserves and lower gains on sale of securities in the general account. On the other 
hand, gains/losses related to market fl uctuations for variable life insurance* improved year on year, which partially offset the 
negative impact of the above-mentioned decreases in ordinary profi t. 

*  The total of (a) the provision of policy reserves for minimum guarantees for 
variable life insurance according to market fl uctuations and (b) net gains/losses 
on derivative transactions to hedge market risks for products

Non-life Insurance Business     Ordinary revenues 
expanded 7.6% year on year, to ¥110.0 billion, owing to an 
increase in net premiums written for mainstay automobile 
insurance. Ordinary profi t increased 31.5% year on year, to 
¥6.5 billion, due to a decline in the loss ratio, driven mainly 
by a lower car accident ratio.

Banking Business     Ordinary revenues rose 3.7% year 
on year, to ¥39.9 billion, due to increases in interest income 
on loans in line with a favorably growing balance of mortgage 
loans and on investment securities. Ordinary profi t grew 
41.4% year on year, to ¥7.1 billion, due to a decrease in 
operating expenses, especially in advertising expenses for 
the card loan business.

SFH (Consolidated)
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Fiscal 2018 Forecast
For fiscal 2018, ending March 31, 2019, all business segments are again expected to sustain growth, fueled by 
expanding business volume. Ordinary revenues and ordinary profit should maintain an upward path, driven mainly by 
the life insurance business. 
 In the life insurance business, the outlook for higher ordinary revenues in fiscal 2018 is based on expectations of a 
favorable shift in revenues, including insurance premiums, over those of fiscal 2017, while the outlook for higher ordinary 
profit is based on expectations of an increase in profit paralleling expansion in policies in force, an increase in gains on 
the sale of securities as well as an improvement in net gains/losses on derivative transactions to hedge market risk 
related to available-for-sale securities. 
 Profit attributable to owners of the parent should, like ordinary profit, rise, despite the possibility of reduced 
extraordinary profit. 

Billions of yen

For the years ended March 31,
2018

Actual
2019

Forecast Change

Ordinary revenues ¥1,503.6 ¥1,578.0 +4.9%

Of which, life insurance business 1,351.2 1,416.1 +4.8%

Of which, non-life insurance business 110.0 112.3 +2.0%

Of which, banking business 39.9 42.8 +7.2%

Ordinary profit 66.8 83.0 +24.2%

Of which, life insurance business 54.1 70.9 +30.9%

Of which, non-life insurance business 6.5 6.5 (1.1%)

Of which, banking business 7.1 7.0 (2.0%)

Profit attributable to owners of the parent 51.8 55.0 +6.0%

Financial Position
As of March 31, 2018, total assets amounted to ¥12,401.4 billion, up 8.1% from March 31, 2017. Among major components of 
assets, securities—mostly Japanese government bonds—
amounted to ¥9,581.2 billion, up 8.2%, and loans came to 
¥1,785.8 billion, up 3.8%. 
 Total liabilities were ¥11,776.0 billion, up 8.3% from March 
31, 2017. Major components of liabilities included policy 
reserves and others of ¥8,763.3 billion, up 8.0%, and deposits 
of ¥2,159.2 billion, up 4.3%. 
 Total net assets settled at ¥625.4 billion, up 4.0% from 
March 31, 2017. This included net unrealized gains on 
available-for-sale securities, net of taxes, which decreased 
¥0.8 billion, to ¥133.9 billion.

Cash Flow Status
Net cash provided by operating activities in fi scal 2017 reached ¥819.7 billion, mainly on higher contributions from insurance 
premiums in the life insurance business. This was up ¥127.2 billion, or 18.4%, year on year, mainly because the increase in loans, 
including mortgage loans, in the banking business was smaller in fi scal 2017.
 Net cash used in investing activities came to ¥680.8 billion, largely because cash used to acquire securities exceeded cash 
provided by proceeds from the sale and redemption of securities in the life insurance and banking businesses. This was up ¥56.0 
billion, or 9.0%, year on year, largely refl ecting a decrease in collateral for securities lending transactions in the life insurance 
business in fi scal 2017, compared with an increase in fi scal 2016. 
 Net cash used in fi nancing activities amounted to ¥14.4 billion, despite proceeds from the issuance of corporate bonds, as 
this amount was overshadowed by payments for cash dividends. Net cash used in fi nancing activities was down ¥19.5 billion, 
or 57.4%, year on year, owing to proceeds from the corporate bond issuance in fi scal 2017.
 Due to the above factors, cash and cash equivalents at March 31, 2018, came to ¥393.1 billion, up ¥124.7 billion, or 
46.5%, from March 31, 2017. 
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Risk-monitored Loans 
Millions of yen

As of March 31, 2017 2018

Category

 Bankrupt loans ¥   176 ¥     91

 Non-accrual delinquent loans 1,580 1,075

 Restructured loans 1,227 842

Total ¥2,984 ¥2,009

Consolidated Solvency Margin Ratio 
Millions of yen

As of March 31, 2017 2018

(A) Total consolidated solvency margin ¥1,308,134 ¥1,381,575

Common stock, etc. 443,155 470,030

Reserve for price fl uctuations 46,182 48,135

Contingency reserve 82,564 90,025

Catastrophe reserve 17,542 20,970

General reserve for possible loan losses 490 416

Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities and net deferred gains or losses on hedging instruments, net of taxes 
   (before tax deductions) x 90% (100% if losses) 164,792 163,989

Net unrealized gains on real estate x 85% (100% if losses) 30,847 30,023

Total amount of unrecognized net actuarial gain (loss) and unrecognized prior service cost (before subtracting tax effects) (3,874) (2,724)

Amount excluded from deferred tax assets — —

Unallotted portion of reserve for policyholders’ dividends 442 377

Deferred tax assets (after deducting amount excluded) 83,929 90,359

Subordinated debt and surplus components of premium reserve 453,092 482,261

Total solvency margin of small-amount short-term insurers — —

Deductible items 11,031 12,290

(B) Total consolidated risk      (  R12+R52 +R8+R9)2+(R2+R3+R7)2+R4+R6 160,221 158,006

Insurance risk (R1) 24,169 24,337

Ordinary insurance risk (R5) 11,370 12,395

Major catastrophe risk (R6) 1,033 1,036

Third-sector insurance risk (R8) 8,541 8,587

Insurance risk of small-amount short-term insurers (R9) — —

Assumed interest rate risk (R2) 31,462 32,566

Minimum guarantee risk (R7) 18,140 20,137

Asset management risk (R3) 99,441 93,730

Business management risk (R4) 6,030 6,199

Consolidated solvency margin ratio (A)/{(1/2)x(B)} x 100 1,632.9% 1,748.7%

Notes: 1. Figures are calculated in accordance with Article 210, Paragraph 11-3 and Paragraph 11-4 of the Ordinance of Enforcement of the Insurance Business 
Act of Japan, and FSA Notifi cation No. 23 (2011). 

 2. Minimum guarantee risk is calculated based on the standardized method. 
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Life Insurance Premium Volume Share by Country

2017
US$2.7 trillion Policy amount in force (left scale)            Sony Life’s share (right scale)
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Source: Swiss Re Institute, sigma No 3/2018
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**The above graph indicates individual life insurance.
Source: “Insurance,” by Hoken Kenkyujo (Insurance Research Institute), and 
            data officially disclosed by individual life insurers

Sony Life
Industry scale

Life Insurance Business

Business Environment
Japan’s life insurance market is the third largest in the world 
on an insurance premium income basis, with a global share 
of about 12%. Although the domestic life insurance market 
has been contracting since the late 1990s, industrywide pol-
icy amount in force for individual life insurance stood at ¥852 
trillion* as of March 31, 2018, indicating that the life insurance 
market remains signifi cantly large. A steadily falling birthrate 
and aging population have precipitated a shift in protection 
needs, from death-protection insurance to individual annuities 
and third-sector insurance, such as medical and nursing care 
insurance. Nevertheless, at ¥732 trillion* as of March 31, 2018, 
death-protection insurance policies accounted for more than 
80% of individual life insurance policy amount in force. 
 In fi scal 2017, despite a signifi cant rise in the domestic 
stock market fueled by enhanced business results from Jap-
anese companies, long-term interest rates hovered low, 
nearly on a par with fi scal 2016. 
 In April 2017, the standard yield used for calculating pol-
icy reserves dropped, refl ecting the low interest rate situation, 
and a series of premium increases was implemented on 
some products, such as whole life insurance and educational 
endowment insurance, which are susceptible to changes in 
the investment environment. In addition, in April 2018, the 
Standard Mortality Table was revised for the fi rst time in 11 
years, and life insurance companies are revising insurance 
premiums, particularly term life insurance, while taking into 
account the competitive environment. 
 In other developments, the fi nance industry is required 
to make business operations more customer oriented. This 
extends to companies that engage in the life insurance busi-
ness, as well, and it is vital that we adhere to “Principles for 
Customer-oriented Business Conduct,” the guideline shown 
by FSA, and work harder to provide better insurance products 
and services. 
 Also, against the backdrop of progress in information and 
communications technology, the fi nance industry is accelerat-
ing efforts to draw on the power of Fintech. In the insurance 
industry, an off-shoot of Fintech has emerged—InsurTech—

that supports the health of policyholders with smartphones, 
wearable devices, artifi cial intelligence and other technology 
innovations, and also streamlines offi ce work related to insur-
ance administration in line with workstyle reform.

*Source:  “Summary of Life Insurance Business,” The Life Insurance Association of 
Japan’s website 

Sony Life’s Activities 
Sony Life has expanded sales of insurance products center-
ing on death protection, despite a shrinking death-protec-
tion insurance market. This is primarily a refl ection of suc-
cessful measures to strengthen consulting-based sales 
through Lifeplanner sales employees and Partners (indepen-
dent agencies). In fi scal 2017, given the low interest rate 
environment in Japan, the company took steps to enrich 
its menu of highly appealing U.S. dollar-denominated insur-
ance products and maintain its ability to provide necessary 
protection, and rolled out sales of these products. In regard 
to asset management, Sony Life pursued asset manage-
ment opportunities corresponding to liability characteristics. 
Toward this end, the company continued to invest in 
ultralong-term government bonds and, seeking to diversify 
its investment portfolio in the low interest rate environment, 
also invested in ultralong-term Japanese corporate bonds, 
including Fiscal Investment and Loan Program (FILP) 
agency bonds. In addition, Sony Life invested in foreign 
bonds corresponding to the sales volume of U.S. dollar-
denominated insurance. 
 Sony Life has always endeavored to provide products 
and services from a customer perspective, guided by a 
basic mission that states, “We will work for our customers’ 
fi nancial security and stability by offering optimal life insur-
ance products and high-quality services.” Refl ecting and 
pursuing this commitment, the company drafted and 
announced its “Customer-fi rst Business Operation Policy” 
in June 2017. Putting this policy into practice, Sony Life will 
ensure thorough economic value-based revenue and risk 
management, expand business volume through new policy 
capture and strive to enhance corporate value. 

Review of Operations
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Recent Topics

New Policy Amount
Billions of yen, %

Policy Amount in Force
Billions of yen, %

Rank        Company name  Results     Share Rank        Company name   Results     Share
1 A 5,464.1 9.5 1 B 138,147.7 16.2
2 B 5,214.3 9.1 2 J 102,446.7 12.0
3 Sony Life 4,912.1 8.6 3 K 71,751.2 8.4
4 C 4,033.7 7.0 4 L 64,557.6 7.6
5 D 3,937.5 6.9 5 A 52,359.7 6.1
6 E 3,530.1 6.2 6 Sony Life 45,892.4 5.4
7 F 2,972.2 5.2 7 C 37,800.2 4.4
8 G 2,831.3 4.9 8 F 36,408.7 4.3
9 H 2,629.2 4.6 9 E 33,985.9 4.0

10 I 2,261.7 3.9 10 G 29,665.8 3.5

Note:  Individual life insurance (as of March 31, 2018)
The above table is prepared by Sony Life Insurance from data offi cially disclosed by individual life insurers.

Industry Position

June and August 2017:  

Established Singapore Subsidiary and Joint Venture
Sony Life established Sony Life Singapore Pte. Ltd. in June 
2017 and its subsidiary Sony Life Financial Advisers Pte. Ltd. 
with Starts Securities Co., Ltd. in August. Both parties will 
develop the fi nancial advisory business in Singapore.

October 2017:  

Launched Two U.S. Dollar-denominated Products
Sony Life debuted two U.S. dollar-denominated products to 
capture higher interest rates than those denominated in yen. 
These products carry exchange rate risk, but customers who 
accept the risk will be taking an effi cient route toward building 
protection. “U.S. Dollar-denominated Single Premium Whole 
Life Insurance (Non-notifi cation Type)” can also be used to 
handle succession of assets. “U.S. Dollar-denominated Living 
Benefi t Whole Life Insurance (Living Standard Type)” provides 
coverage for death and major disability as well as the three 
major diseases* and coverage for specifi ed disabilities and 
conditions requiring long-term care.
*  Cancer (excluding intraepithelial carcinoma), acute myocardial infarction and stroke

July 2018:  

Sales Start for “Medical Benefi t” and “Medical Benefi t 
Return”
Given changes in the medical industry’s environment, Sony 
Life launched two new medical insurance products that better 
meet customers’ medical protection needs. “Medical Benefi t 
(comprehensive medical insurance (no surrender value) 18, 
non-participating)” expands basic protection, such as hospital-
ization and surgery, and clarifi es terms of payment in addition 
to extensive protection against three diseases*. “Medical Ben-
efi t Return (comprehensive medical insurance with special pro-
vision for health refund benefi t (no surrender value) 18, non-
participating)” provides the same coverage but also is a 
response to customers who like to build their savings, as it 
pays out a health refund benefi t equivalent to insurance premi-
ums paid if there is no hospitalization or other claims, up to the 
age specifi ed. By enriching the product lineup, Sony Life will 
continue to meet the needs of a wide range of customers. 
*  Cancer (including intraepithelial carcinoma), cardiovascular disease and cerebrovas-

cular disease
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Analysis of Operating Performance

SFH’s life insurance business consists of Sony Life, a wholly owned subsidiary of SFH, and AEGON Sony Life Insurance and 
SA Reinsurance—both equity-method affi liates 50% owned by Sony Life. 

Sony Life accounts for most of SFH’s life insurance business. Below is an analysis of the non-consolidated operating 
performance of Sony Life.

New Policy Amount 
New policy amount is the total policy amount of new insurance policies.

Billions of yen

For the years ended March 31, 2017 2018 Change

New policy amount ¥4,957.5 ¥5,287.9 +6.7%

 Individual life insurance 4,765.2 4,912.1 +3.1%

 Individual annuities 192.2 375.8 +95.5%

Annualized premiums from new policies 78.1 73.0 (6.5%)

 Medical protection, living benefi t 
   protection and other products 15.7 12.9 (17.4%)

Number of new policies (1,000 policies) 513 540 +5.2%

Main Points  The new policy amount increased, buoyed by favorable 
sales of family income insurance and U.S. dollar-denominated 
insurance. Annualized premiums from new policies declined, despite brisk sales of U.S. dollar-denominated insurance, variable life 
insurance and individual annuities, owing to a drop in sales of such products as term life insurance and living benefi t protection.

Policy Amount in Force
Policy amount in force refers to the total amount of coverage that Sony Life provides to individual policyholders. 

Billions of yen

As of March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Policy amount in force ¥45,334.1 ¥47,253.4 +4.2%

 Individual life insurance 44,313.3 45,892.4 +3.6%

 Individual annuities 1,020.8 1,360.9 +33.3%

Annualized premiums from 
  insurance in force 820.8 848.8 +3.4%

 Medical protection, living benefi t 
   protection and other products 187.4 191.8 +2.4%

Number of policies in force 
  (1,000 policies) 7,308 7,569 +3.6%

Main Points  Sony Life’s policy amount in force for individual life insurance and individual annuities has grown steadily since the com-
pany commenced operations. 

Sales of Products (Percentage Composition)
For the years ended March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Whole life insurance 17.0% 17.5% +0.5pt

Term life insurance 70.3% 63.9% (6.4pt)

Endowment and educational endowment 
  insurance, and individual annuities 6.9% 9.5% +2.6pt

Variable life insurance 5.3% 8.7% +3.4pt

Medical and other types of insurance 0.5% 0.4% (0.1pt)

Main Points  Death-protection insurance products* accounted for about 90% of the new policy amount in fi scal 2017.
* Here, the new policy amount for death-protection insurance products represents the total new policy amount after deducting new policy amounts for endowment 
insurance, educational endowment insurance, individual annuities and medical insurance. 
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Lapse and Surrender Rate 
The lapse and surrender rate shows the ratio derived by dividing the amount of lapses and surrenders, not adjusted for policy 
amount decreases, increases and reinstatements, by the pol-
icy amount in force at the beginning of the fi scal year. 

For the years ended March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Lapse and surrender rate 4.27% 4.97% +0.70pt 

Main Points  The lapse and surrender rate rose, mainly because 
of premium revisions on family income insurance and other prod-
ucts introduced in February 2018, as some customers cancelled 
existing policies and took out new policies.

Income from Insurance Premiums and Insurance Claims and Other Payments 
Income from insurance premiums is revenue received mainly from insurance premiums paid by policyholders and is a major com-
ponent of revenue for life insurance companies. Insurance claims and other payments are payouts based on insurance policies, 
including insurance claims, insurance benefi ts, annuity payments and surrender payments.

Billions of yen

For the years ended March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Income from insurance premiums ¥956.7 ¥1,059.2 +10.7%

Insurance claims and other payments 372.4 436.5 +17.2%

Of which, insurance claims 84.1 92.3 +9.7%

Of which, insurance benefi ts 98.2 119.2 +21.4%

Of which, annuity payments 12.0 12.5 +4.5%

Of which, surrender payments 168.4 199.2 +18.3%

Main Points  Income from insurance premiums increased, 
refl ecting a favorable trend in policy amount in force as well as steady sales of U.S. dollar-denominated single premium whole life 
insurance since the product’s debut in October 2017.

Asset Management (General Account)
Sony Life’s investment policy is to identify the characteristics of insurance liabilities, based on the asset-liability management (ALM) 
approach, and prioritize investment in assets suited to such characteristics. Specifi cally, to deal with long-term liabilities—that is, life 
insurance policies—the company properly controls the inherent risk in insurance liabilities associated with fl uctuating interest rates 
by investing mainly in Japanese government bonds (JGBs) with ultralong-term maturities. At the same time, the company limits 
investment into risk assets, such as stocks.

Main Points  In fi scal 2017, Sony Life continued to invest primarily in ultralong-term bonds. The ratio of Japanese government and 
corporate bonds stood at 89.5% as of March 31, 2018, in real terms, refl ecting the inclusion of bonds invested in money held in trust. 
Going forward, Sony Life will continue to properly control the interest rate risk associated with insurance liabilities by investing most 
of the new funds generated by income from insurance premiums and other sources in ultralong-term bonds. Sony Life also promotes 
diversifi cation of investment assets, such as an increase in investments in ultralong-term corporate bonds including Fiscal Investment 
and Loan Program (FILP) agency bonds, as well as an increase in investment in U.S. Treasury bonds following an increase in U.S. 
dollar-denominated insurance policies.
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For the years ended March 31,

Billions of yen

2017 2018

As of March 31, Amount Composition Amount Composition

Japanese government and corporate bonds ¥6,828.7 86.6% ¥7,281.1 86.3%
Japanese stocks 37.6 0.5% 38.4 0.5%
Foreign bonds 274.3 3.5% 366.5 4.3%
Foreign stocks and other securities 31.5 0.4% 30.3 0.4%
Money held in trust 273.8 3.5% 270.5 3.2%
Policy loans 180.3 2.3% 189.4 2.2%
Real estate 117.5 1.5% 92.3 1.1%
Cash and deposits, call loans 40.8 0.5% 40.8 0.5%
Other 99.1 1.3% 129.1 1.5%
Total ¥7,884.0 100.0% ¥8,438.8 100.0%
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Interest Income and Dividends 

For the years ended March 31,

Billions of yen

Interest Income and Dividends
Interest income and dividends is primarily composed of investment income. It includes interest income from deposits, inter-
est income and dividends from securities, interest income from loans and income from real estate for rent.

Billions of yen

For the years ended March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Interest income from deposits ¥    0.0 ¥    0.0 +681.5%
Interest income and dividends from 
securities 130.7 140.4 +7.4%
 Of which, Japanese government 
   and corporate bonds 121.1 125.2 +3.4%
 Of which, Japanese stocks 0.5 0.5 +7.4%
 Of which, foreign securities 8.8 13.9 +57.3%
Interest income from loans 6.3 6.6 +3.7%
Income from real estate for rent 10.8 10.2 (5.4%)
Total, including others ¥148.2 ¥157.7 +6.4%

Main Points  Interest income and dividends rose, paralleling an increase in assets for investment due to expanding business volume.

Unrealized Gains and Losses on Securities 
Unrealized gains and losses on securities* refers to the differences between the carrying amounts of securities and their fair values. 
When the fair value of an asset is higher than its carrying amount, the sale of the asset at fair value would result in a gain on the 
sale. Consequently, unrealized gains can function as a provision for various risks. A portion of unrealized gains and losses on 
securities is included in the numerator (total solvency margin) used in calculating the solvency margin ratio (please see page 43). 
* Unrealized gains or losses on securities lists the total of unrealized gains or losses on held-to-maturity securities, policy-reserve-matching bonds and available-for-sale 
securities, with fair values for securities other than securities held for trading. The total amount of securities includes securities included in money held in trust.

Billions of yen

As of March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Unrealized gains on securities in the 
  general account ¥1,644.9 ¥1,786.7 +141.7 
Unrealized gains on held-to-maturity 
  securities 1,445.5 1,582.6 +137.0 
Unrealized gains on 
  policy-reserve-matching bonds 25.9 34.8 +8.9 
Net unrealized gains on 
  available-for-sale securities 173.3 169.1 (4.2)
 Of which, unrealized gains on 
   Japanese government and 
   corporate bonds 160.7 155.0 (5.6)
 Of which, unrealized gains on 
   Japanese stocks 13.3 16.9 +3.5 
 Of which, unrealized gains on 
   foreign securities (0.8) (2.9) (2.0)

Main Points  With no major shifts in domestic interest rates, unreal-
ized gains on securities in the general account remained stable.
(Reference: On March 31, 2018, SFH assumed unrealized gains on Japanese 
stocks to be zero when the Nikkei Stock Average was ¥7,513 and the TOPIX 
index was 601 points.)

Ordinary Revenues, Ordinary Profi t and Net Income
Billions of yen

For the years ended March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Ordinary revenues ¥1,243.7 ¥1,351.0 +8.6%
Ordinary profi t 60.1 56.3 (6.4%)
Net income 35.1 45.1 +28.3%

Main Points  

Ordinary revenues increased, owing to higher income, from insur-
ance premiums, refl ecting a steady rise in policy amount in force.
Ordinary profi t decreased, owing to a higher provision of policy 
reserves paralleling acquisition of new policies due to revision in the 
standard yields and a drop in gains on the sale of securities in the general account. Note that gains/losses* associated with market fl uctuations 
on variable life insurance improved year on year, partially offsetting the negative impact of the above-mentioned drop in ordinary profi t.
*  The total of (a) the provision of policy reserves for minimum guarantees for variable life insurance according to market fl uctuations and (b) net gains/losses on 

derivative transactions to hedge market risks for products

Net income increased, refl ecting the recognition of gain on disposal of fi xed assets from the sale of real estate held for investment purposes 
under extraordinary gains.
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Core Profi t
Core profi t is an indicator of the profi t-earning capacity of the primary insurance business over a one-year period. Primary insurance 
business refers to the management of insurance premiums received from policyholders, along with investment income to pay insurance 
claims, benefi ts and annuities, as well as to making and then investing policy reserve provisions for future payments. Ordinary profi t in the 
statements of income is calculated by adding the total amount of core profi t, capital gains and losses including gains and losses on the 
sale of securities, and one-time gains and losses. 
Note:  Sony Life, like most life insurers organized as stock companies, primarily 

sells non-participating life insurance. These products provide policyholders 
with insurance coverage without dividend payment and are thus based 
on discounted premiums. By contrast, life insurers organized as mutual 
companies typically offer participating policies. The funds used for 
policyholder dividends in these products are included in core profi t as 
surplus. Mutual companies consequently tend to show relatively higher 
core profi t than stock companies of similar scale. 

Billions of yen

For the years ended March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Core profi t ¥83.8 ¥81.3 (2.9%)

Main Points  Core profi t decreased, despite higher profi t from accumulated policies in force and a rise in the positive spread, mainly 
because of an increase in the provision of policy reserves relating to the acquisition of new policies due to a revision in the 
standard yield.

Breakdown of Ordinary Profi t (Core Profi t)
Millions of yen

For the years ended March 31, 2017 2018

Core profi t (A) ¥ 83,831 ¥ 81,384 
 Capital gains 16,114 9,894 
  Income from money held in trust, net — —
  Income from trading securities, net 134 —
  Gains on sale of securities 1,308 0 
  Gains on derivatives, net — —
  Foreign exchange gains, net 14,670 —
  Other capital gains — 9,894 
 Capital losses 32,276 27,357 
  Losses on money held in trust, net — —
  Losses on trading securities, net — 8 
  Losses on sale of securities — 0 
  Devaluation losses on securities — —
  Losses on derivatives, net 30,050 11,403 
  Foreign exchange losses, net — 15,280 
  Other capital losses 2,226 664 
 Net capital gains (losses) (B) (16,162) (17,463)
Core profi t plus net capital gains (losses) (A) + (B) 67,669 63,920 
 Other one-time gains 1 —
  Gains from reinsurance — —
  Reversal of contingency reserve — —
  Reversal of specifi c reserve for possible loan losses 1 —
  Others — —
 Other one-time losses 7,490 7,582 
  Losses from reinsurance — —
  Provision for contingency reserve 7,296 7,451 
  Provision for specifi c reserve for possible loan losses — 23 
  Provision for reserve for loan losses from borrowers in specifi c foreign countries — —
  Write-off of loans — —
  Others 193 107 
 Net other one-time gains (losses) (C) (7,488) (7,582)
Ordinary profi t (A) + (B) + (C) ¥ 60,180 ¥ 56,338 

Notes: 1. Core profi t for fi scal 2017 (A) includes income gains of ¥4,490 million in income from money held in trust along with interest income and dividends of 
¥11 million in income from trading securities, net. Other capital gains consist of reversal of policy reserves and others of ¥9,894 million for currency 
market fl uctuations of products denominated in foreign currencies, while other capital losses consists of impairment losses of ¥664 million from 
investment partnerships. “Others” of other one-time losses consists of provision of additional policy reserve of ¥107 million.

 2. Core profi t for fi scal 2016 (A) includes income gains of ¥4,493 million in income from money held in trust along with interest income and dividends 
of ¥17 million in income from trading securities, net. Other capital losses consists of provision of policy reserves and others of ¥1,560 million for 
currency market fl uctuations of products denominated in foreign currencies and impairment losses of ¥665 million from investment partnerships. 
“Others” of other one-time losses consists of provision of additional policy reserve of ¥193 million.
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Positive Spread 
Life insurers use a portion of the premiums received from poli-
cyholders to accumulate policy reserves for the payment of 
future claims. These policy reserves assume an annual return 
based on a fi xed interest rate. This interest rate is known as 
the assumed interest rate. A positive spread occurs when the 
actual investment yield is higher than the average assumed 
interest rate and vice versa for a negative spread. 

Billions of yen

For the years ended March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Positive spread ¥15.4 ¥17.7 +14.9%

Average assumed interest rate 2.00% 1.97% (0.03pt)

Investment yield (general account) 1.81% 1.63% (0.18pt)

Investment yield for core profi t 2.24% 2.22% (0.02pt)

Main Points  Positive spread increased, owing to a drop in the 
average assumed interest rate resulting from the acquisition of 
new policies. 

Non-performing Assets

Main Points  Sony Life’s asset assessment is shown in the above table. The company does not have any risk-monitored loans (loans 
for which repayment conditions are not ordinary). Moreover, all fi gures are classifi ed as normal loans listed in the loans by borrower 
category.
 As of March 31, 2018, Sony Life’s receivables comprised mainly securities lent and loans*. Securities lent amounted to ¥235.8 
billion, with the securities loaned for secured transactions recorded as securities lending transactions with cash collateral. The loan 
balance* was ¥189.4 billion, consisting largely of policy loans, which are limited to recoverable surrender values.

* Life insurers earn interest income by lending a portion of their assets under asset management. Loans are categorized as either policy loans provided as a service to 
customers or as commercial loans. The loan balance comprises the sum of these two categories.

Risk-monitored Loans Loans by Borrower Category 

Billions of yen

As of March 31, 2017 2018

Category

 Bankrupt loans ¥— ¥—

 Non-accrual delinquent loans — —

 Past-due loans (3 months or more) — —

 Restructured loans — —

Total ¥— ¥—

Billions of yen

As of March 31, 2017 2018

Category

 Bankrupt and quasi-bankrupt loans ¥     — ¥     —

 Doubtful loans — —

 Sub-standard loans — —

 Normal loans 431.3 428.3

Total ¥431.3 ¥428.3

Formula for Calculating Positive Spread

(Investment yield for core profi t1 – Average assumed interest rate2) 
×

General account policy reserves3

||
Positive spread

1.  Investment yield for core profi t is the yield on general account policy reserves after 
subtracting the interest portion of provision for reserve for policyholders’ dividends 
from the general account investment returns included in core profi t. 

2.  Average assumed interest rate is the assumed yield on general account policy reserves. 
3.  General account policy reserves are calculated based on the following formula for 

policy reserves in the general account, excluding contingency reserve:
(Policy reserves at beginning of period + policy reserves at end of period – 
assumed interest) x 1/2 
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Non-consolidated Solvency Margin Ratio 
The solvency margin ratio is an indicator of payment ability. Life insurers accumulate policy reserves to prepare for the payment 
of future claims, allowing them to adequately respond to risks within a normally anticipated range. However, unpredictable events 
can occur as a result of changes in the environment, including major disasters and stock market crashes. The solvency margin 
ratio is one measure used by regulatory authorities to monitor 
whether an insurer has the ability to pay in response to the risk 
of such unpredictable events.
As of March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Non-consolidated solvency 
  margin ratio 2,568.8% 2,624.3% +55.5pt

Main Points  Sony Life’s non-consolidated solvency margin ratio 
has remained at a high level.

Millions of yen
As of March 31, 2017 2018

(A) Total solvency margin ¥1,176,229 ¥1,233,854
Common stock, etc. 324,181 344,039
Reserve for price fl uctuations 46,005 47,929
Contingency reserve 82,463 89,915
General reserve for possible loan losses 0 0
[Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities (before tax deductions) and net deferred gains 
  or losses on hedging instruments (before tax deductions)] x 90% (100% if losses) 159,672 156,011
Net unrealized gains on real estate x 85% (100% if losses) 30,847 29,830
Amount excluded from deferred tax assets — —
Unallotted portion of reserve for policyholders’ dividends 442 377
Deferred tax assets 82,980 88,661
Excess amount of policy reserves based on Zillmer method 495,984 525,389
Subordinated debt — —
The portion of the excess amount of policy reserves based on Zillmer method and subordinated debt that 
  is not included in the margin (42,891) (43,128)
Deductible items (3,457) (5,171)

(B) Total risk    (R1+R8)2+(R2+R3+R7)2+R4 91,576 94,030

Insurance risk (R1) 24,169 24,337
Third-sector insurance risk (R8) 8,541 8,587
Assumed interest rate risk (R2) 31,356 32,452
Minimum guarantee risk (R7) 18,140 20,137
Asset management risk (R3) 33,554 32,953
Business management risk (R4) 2,315 2,369

(C) Solvency margin ratio [(A)/{(1/2)x(B)}] x 100 2,568.8% 2,624.3% 

Notes: 1.  The above fi gures are calculated based on provisions in Articles 86 and 87 of the Ordinance for Enforcement of the Insurance Business Act of Japan 
and the Ministry of Finance Public Notice No. 50 (1996). 

  2. Minimum guarantee risk is calculated based on the standardized method. 

AEGON Sony Life Insurance: Over-the-counter (OTC) Sales of Individual Annuity Products at Banks 
Sony Life began sales of individual variable annuity products in December 2009 through AEGON Sony Life Insurance, a 50–50 joint 
venture established with the AEGON Group (headquartered in the Netherlands), to meet annuity needs associated with Japan’s aging 
population and low birthrate. AEGON Sony Life Insurance sells individual annuity products which respond to customers’ needs to help 
save for retirement through Sony Life’s Lifeplanner channel and partner agencies, involving 32 fi nancial institutions*. *As of March 31, 2018

For the years ended March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Number of new policies (1,000 policies) 14 10 (25.2%)

New policy amount (billions of yen) ¥70.8 ¥50.2 (29.1%)

Main Points  The new policy amount decreased year on year.

As of March 31, 2017 2018  Change

Number of policies in force (1,000 policies) 85 92 +7.7%

Policy amount in force (billions of yen) ¥501.7 ¥520.6 +3.8%
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Note: The graph was prepared by Sony Assurance from data officially 
         disclosed by individual non-life insurers.

Note: The graph was prepared by Sony Assurance from data officially disclosed 
          by individual non-life insurers. Amounts for fiscal 2017 are based on 
          published data available up to June 29, 2018.

Sony Assurance

Automobile Insurance Market and Market Share of Major Direct 
Non-life Insurers

For the years ended March 31,

Direct Premiums Written (Automobile Insurance) by Major Direct 
Non-life Insurers 

For the years ended March 31,
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to expand the market share.

*  The fi gures are based on a survey conducted by Sony Assurance from data 
offi cially disclosed by individual non-life insurers.

Sony Assurance’s Activities
Sony Assurance is a direct insurer providing automobile 
insurance, medical insurance and other insurance products 
and services directly to customers through its website and 
customer call centers. Since capturing the No. 1 position** 
for direct premiums written in fi scal 2002, the company has 
maintained this ranking in the direct automobile insurance 
market. To achieve sustainable growth, the company has 
made enhancing customer experience (CX) a top manage-
ment priority. With this in mind, the company strives to 
enhance CX in providing services to customers through all 
points of contact while also continuing to devote efforts 
toward the development of new products and services. In 
automobile insurance, notable activities included an increased 
limit on the personal compensation rider that generously 
reimburses the cost of compensation for damages in ran-
dom accidents of everyday life, such as bicycle accidents, 
as well as the introduction of “ASV (Advanced Safety Vehicle) 
discounts” on insurance premiums for automobiles equipped 
with an automatic braking system***. On the service front, 
Sony Assurance began offering “SECOM Accident On-site 
Rush Service,” which speeds emergency response personnel 
of SECOM Co., Ltd. to the scene of an accident 24/7 anytime, 
to reinforce accident resolution services. In addition, the 
company teamed up with Yahoo! JAPAN to develop new 
telematics insurance products and services. 
 In medical insurance, Sony Assurance increased the num-
ber of medical institutions for “Advanced Medical Treatment 
Insurance—Direct Insurance Claims Payment Service to Medical 
Facilities” and also worked to improve service quality, including 
extended insurance claims offi ce hours on Saturday, Sunday 
and holidays.

Business Environment
Automobile insurance, positioned as Sony Assurance’s core 
product category, accounts for the largest portion of Japan’s 
non-life insurance industry and provides around half of the 
industry’s insurance premium revenues. About 10%* of 
insurance premium revenues in the domestic automobile insur-
ance market is generated from policies sold by direct non-life 
insurance companies (direct insurers), including Sony Assur-
ance, and the remaining 90%* is from policies sold mostly by 
the major non-life insurance companies through nationwide 
agencies. 
 Amid fl at growth in automobile ownership, a consequence 
of such factors as declining birthrate and aging population, 
there have been fewer accidents in recent years, which has 
brought the loss ratio down. As a result, non-life insurance 
companies have seen a recovery in profi tability, prompting a 
drop in insurance premiums. However, this trend has sparked 
heated competition in the market. Meanwhile, the environment 
surrounding automobile insurance is changing. Advances in IT 
have spurred research on telematics in automobile insurance 
and the introduction of policies based on this technology. In 
addition, efforts to make self-driving cars a reality in the future 
are unfolding in both the public and private sectors, along with 
discussions on associated legislation. These developments are 
expected to create a new market landscape, heralded by the 
debut of riders on automobile insurance to deal with accidents 
caused by self-driving cars, and should present non-life insur-
ance companies with new business opportunities. 
 Direct non-life insurance companies, including Sony Assur-
ance, have steadily increased insurance premium revenues, 
underpinned by strong customer support for insurance pre-
mium structures that are comparatively lower than those of 
major non-life insurers selling through nationwide agencies, 
which has translated into higher market shares for direct insur-
ers year after year. Customers’ preference for low prices will 
likely continue, presenting further potential for direct insurers 

Review of Operations

Non-life Insurance Business
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Photo taken on June 20, 2018

 Also, to enhance CX, the company made it possible to 
complete more administrative procedures through its website, 
enhanced the convenience of its smartphone site and improved 
the response quality of customer call center operations. The goal 
was to provide customers with pleasant and valuable services. 

 ** Based on automobile insurance premium revenues of non-life insurers selling 
automobile insurance primarily via direct sales channels since March 31, 
2003 (according to research by Sony Assurance).

*** The increased limit on the personal compensation rider applies to policies 
effective from April 2017, and the introduction of ASV discounts applies to 
policies effective from April 2018. 

Recent Topics
April 2017:

Launched “SECOM Accident On-site Rush Service”
In April 2017, Sony Assurance 
began providing a service at no 
cost to customers to extend 
support immediately after an 
accident, a time when custom-
ers feel very uneasy. In this 
service, SECOM emergency personnel rush to the scene of an 
accident 24/7 anytime, and explain how to respond when an 
accident occurs, listen to issues of concern, contact the police 
and call for an ambulance or tow truck. 
 The service was expanded in November 2017, with SECOM 
emergency personnel on-site to confi rm the situation surround-
ing the accident, listen to comments from the opposite party 
involved in an accident and take photos of the accident scene 
and the cars involved. Sony Assurance will continue to enhance 
customers’ confi dence in direct insurance through higher quality 
services. 

May 2018:

Added Medical Institutions for “Advanced Medical 
Treatment Insurance—Direct Insurance Claims Payment 
Service to Medical Facilities”
Proton beam therapy and heavy particle radio therapy are par-
ticularly costly types of advanced medical treatment, whose 
entire technical fee is self-paid by the patient. Sony Assurance 
provides a service that pays the insured amount directly to the 
medical facilities where such treatment is done. By adding more 

medical facilities to the list of hospitals and other medical insti-
tutions that support this service, the company has enabled 
policyholders to utilize the service at all 18 facilities, as of May 
2018, where advanced medical treatment, namely, proton 
beam therapy and heavy particle radio therapy, are available. 

June 2018:

Started Selling Overseas Travel Insurance   
In June 2018, Sony Assurance began selling Internet-only, 
risk-segmented overseas travel insurance. By offering 
Internet-only products, the company eliminates administrative 
costs on various policy-processing steps, which translates 
into economical premiums for customers. Also, by segmenting 
risks by age as well as travel destination, the company has 
discounted premiums to low-risk customers*. This product 
enables customers to save even more on their premiums 
through customized coverage and a repeater discount. 
 Sony Assurance also leverages the advantages of the Inter-
net to enable customers to complete the majority of policy pro-
cedures online in 24 hours. These include customizing coverage 
categories and policy amounts, getting quotes and making 
applications, and changing policy content after application. 
 Sony Assurance provides various services to support policy-
holders. In the event of an accident or trouble, policyholders can 
access support in Japanese 24/7 by phone or online. In addi-
tion, Sony Assurance offers no-charge calls from 42 countries 
around the world to reduce the cost burden on customers.
*  Age difference can mean that some customers of Sony Assurance’s overseas travel 

insurance are low risk, while other factors are the same. 
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Analysis of Operating Performance

SFH’s non-life insurance business consists of Sony Assurance, a wholly owned subsidiary of SFH.

Below is an analysis of the operating performance of Sony Assurance, which operates SFH’s non-life insurance business.

Policies in Force  
Million policies

As of March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Number of policies in force 
  (Automobile insurance + 
    Medical insurance) 1.89 2.07 +9.7%

Main Points  The number of policies in force increased for 
mainstay automobile insurance.

Net Premiums Written
Net premiums written correspond to net sales at most non-life insurance companies and comprise the premiums received from 
policyholders (direct premiums written), plus or minus reinsurance premiums (adding direct reinsurance premiums received and 
subtracting direct reinsurance premiums paid). 

Billions of yen

For the years ended March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Net premiums written ¥100.2 ¥108.2 +8.0%

 Voluntary automobile insurance 89.7 97.8 +9.1%

 Personal accident insurance* 9.0 8.8 (1.7%)

 Others (Fire + Marine + 
   Compulsory automobile liability) 1.4 1.4 +0.3%

*Including medical insurance 

Main Points  Net premiums written increased in mainstay 
automobile insurance.

Net Loss Ratio
The net loss ratio describes the ratio of the total amount of insurance-claim payments (net losses paid) and damage-survey 
expenses (loss adjustment expenses) to net premiums written.
For the years ended March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Net loss ratio 57.5% 55.9% (1.6pt)

Net loss ratio for automobile insurance 59.5% 57.4% (2.1pt)

Net loss ratio for personal accident 
  insurance* 32.0% 33.7% +1.7pt

*Including medical insurance 

Main Points  The net loss ratio dropped, refl ecting higher net 
premiums written and a lower accident ratio on mainstay 
automobile insurance.
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Net Expense Ratio
The net expense ratio is the ratio of the total expenses for marketing and maintaining insurance to net premiums written. These 
expenses include company operating costs and new product development costs.
For the years ended March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Net expense ratio 28.3% 28.5% +0.2pt

Combined ratio 
  (Net loss ratio + net expense ratio) 85.8% 84.4% (1.4pt)

Main Points  The net expense ratio was basically fl at, owing 
to an increase in operating expenses, including advertising 
expenses.

Underwriting Profi t
Underwriting profi t indicates profi t generated from underwriting insurance. Underwriting profi t is calculated by subtracting from 
underwriting income (net premiums written, etc.) any underwriting expenses (net losses paid and loss adjustment expenses, etc.) 
and operating, general and administrative expenses associated with underwriting, then adding or subtracting other income and 
expenses (corporate taxes associated with compulsory automobile liability insurance, etc.). 

Billions of yen

For the years ended March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Underwriting profi t ¥3.0 ¥4.8 +58.4%

Main Points  Underwriting profi t climbed, refl ecting higher net 
premiums written.

Ordinary Revenues, Ordinary Profi t and Net Income
Billions of yen

For the years ended March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Ordinary revenues ¥102.3 ¥110.0 +7.6%

Ordinary profi t 4.9 6.5 +31.6%

Net income 3.5 4.8 +37.2%

Main Points  

Ordinary revenues rose, owing to an increase in net premiums 
written for mainstay automobile insurance.
Ordinary profi t increased, owing to a drop in the loss ratio, 
which is largely due to a lower accident ratio for automobile 
insurance. 
Net income rose, refl ecting higher ordinary profi t.
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11.6%
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Total Asset Composition and Investment Policy
Sony Assurance’s basic investment policy is to invest primarily in yen-denominated bonds to ensure stable investment returns over 
the medium to long term, taking into account the market environment, asset management risk and other factors.

Billions of yen

As of March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Total assets ¥186.5 ¥204.3 +9.6%

 Cash and deposits 8.9 23.7 +165.6%

 Securities 137.5 145.3 +5.7%

 Tangible fi xed assets 3.3 2.4 (29.2%)

 Intangible fi xed assets 6.5 6.1 (5.1%)

 Other assets 30.1 26.6 (11.5%)

Non-performing Assets 
Sony Assurance’s self-assessment indicates its assets are sound, as shown below.

Risk-monitored Loans  
Billions of yen

As of March 31, 2017 2018

Category

Bankrupt loans ¥— ¥— 

Non-accrual delinquent loans — — 

Past-due loans (3 months or more) — — 

Restructured loans — — 

Total ¥— ¥— 

Loans by Borrower Category 
Billions of yen

As of March 31, 2017 2018

Category

Bankrupt and quasi-bankrupt loans ¥— ¥— 

Doubtful loans — — 

Sub-standard loans — — 

Normal loans — — 

Total ¥— ¥— 
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Non-consolidated Solvency Margin Ratio 
The non-consolidated solvency margin ratio is an important indicator of non-life insurers’ ability to pay claims.

As of March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Non-consolidated solvency margin ratio 730.8% 782.1% +51.3pt

Main Points  Sony Assurance’s non-consolidated solvency 
margin ratio remained at a sound level.

Millions of yen

As of March 31, 2017 2018

(A) Total non-consolidated solvency margin ¥46,724 ¥54,244

Capital or treasury 26,439 28,849

Reserve for price fl uctuations 177 206

Contingency reserve 101 109

Catastrophe reserve 17,542 20,970

General reserve for possible loan losses — —

Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities and net deferred gains or losses on hedging instruments 
  (before tax deductions) 1,514 2,409

Net unrealized gains on real estate — —

Excess refund reserve — —

Subordinated debt — —

The portion of the excess refund reserve and subordinated debt that is not included in the margin — —

Deductible items — —

Others 948 1,698

(B) Total non-consolidated risk    (R1+R2)2+(R3+R4)2+R5+R6 12,786 13,871

Ordinary insurance risk (R1) 11,370 12,395

Third-sector insurance risk (R2) — —

Assumed interest rate risk (R3) 105 114

Asset management risk (R4) 1,431 1,712

Business management risk (R5) 278 305

Major catastrophe risk (R6) 1,033 1,036

(C) Non-consolidated solvency margin ratio [ (A)/{ (B)x (1/2)} ]  x 100 730.8% 782.1%

Note:  The above fi gures are calculated based on provisions in Articles 86 (non-consolidated solvency margin) and 87 (non-consolidated risk) of the Ordinance 
for Enforcement of the Insurance Business Act of Japan and the Ministry of Finance Public Notice No. 50 (1996).
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Sony Bank’s Activities
Sony Bank has placed emphasis on its mortgage loan and 
foreign currency businesses on the strength of its reputation 
for high customer satisfaction. 
 In the domestic mortgage loan market in fi scal 2017, 
construction costs climbed higher, fueled by increasing labor 
costs and rising prices on construction materials, with city 
home prices remaining high. However, new housing starts 
charted a downward path, largely due to a shrinking number 
of households and more homes being built to last longer. 
Mortgage loan interest rates continued to hover low, intensi-
fying competition among fi nancial institutions to attract 
demand for mortgage loans. Under these business condi-
tions, Sony Bank’s mortgage loan balance grew but only 
moderately. Going forward, the company will strive to ensure 
profi tability while steadily building its mortgage loan balance 
through efforts to improve product features and reinforce 
sales channels. 
 In the foreign currency business, Sony Bank has expanded 
its transaction volume by offering reasonable rates and highly 
convenient services centered on foreign currency deposits. 
The company’s foreign currency deposit balance represented 
about 7% of total individual foreign currency deposits at 
domestic banks, as of March 31, 2018, right behind those 
of the major banks. In addition, “Sony Bank WALLET,” a 
cash card with a VISA debit function in 11 currencies, has 
been used in 120 countries around the world, substantiating 
a very positive customer response to the product. Going 
forward, the company will strive to differentiate its foreign 
currency services and develop its customer base.

Business Environment
In Japan, personal fi nancial assets have climbed to approxi-
mately ¥1,880 trillion*, the second highest in the world. Cash 
and deposits account for more than half of this amount, a 
high level even in comparison with those of other developed 
countries. A new social landscape has emerged, paralleling 
the falling birthrate and aging population, changing customer 
lifestyles and bringing advances in technology, namely, prog-
ress in digitization and an expanding e-commerce footprint. 
Against this backdrop, fi nancial institutions are required to 
deliver an extremely diverse array of personal fi nancial asset 
investment services, payment services and other services 
that refl ect these trends. The realm of fi nancial services is 
also being redefi ned by new technologies, such as artifi cial 
intelligence and blockchain, and many fi nancial institutions 
are pursuing research into these technologies. 
 In this environment, Internet banks have achieved steady 
growth on the back of cost-competitiveness and convenient 
services. Even so, the deposit balance at Internet banks 
remains quite small—about 2%** of personal fi nancial 
assets—but as smartphones and tablets continue to be per-
vasive in society, Internet banks will have considerable room 
to expand business volume. That said, in fi scal 2017, interest 
rates entered trended upward in the United States while 
long-term interest rates in Japan hovered low under the Bank 
of Japan’s policy on quantitative and qualitative monetary 
easing with short- and long-term interest rate control. As a 
result, interest rate competition on asset investment and 
mortgage loans among banks is likely to continue.

 *Source: “Flow of Funds Accounts,” issued by the Bank of Japan
**Sources:  Prepared based on the Bank of Japan’s Deposits and Loans 

Market and data offi cially disclosed by various fi nancial institutions. 
Excludes data for shinkin (credit union) banks, credit associations, 
labor credit associations, agricultural cooperatives and certain other 
organizations.

Review of Operations

Banking Business
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Recent Topics
August 2017:

Started Operating “Sony Bank GATE,” Investment-type 
Crowd Funding Platform
Sony Bank is the fi rst bank in Japan to offer an investment-type 
crowd funding platform, “Sony Bank GATE,” which connects 
companies pursuing new businesses with individuals who 
identify with those companies’ goals and want to support 
efforts to succeed. With a view to connecting this type of 
fi nancing to new business creation and other activities, Sony 
Bank will provide investment-type crowd funding that supports 
business operators as a new asset investment option for 
individual customers. 

September 2017:

Opened CONSULTING PLAZA
Sony Bank relocated its Housing Loan Plaza, which had 
extended advice to customers on mortgage loans, enhanced 
the function of the plaza format and opened the venue as 
CONSULTING PLAZA. The company will respond to customer 
needs for advice by enriching the selection of face-to-face 
consulting services and enhancing access to information 
related to asset investment and asset formation. The new 
plaza will also reinforce Sony Bank’s ability to present fi nancial 
solutions.

October 2017:

Began Issuing Takashimaya Platinum Debit Card
In an alliance with Takashimaya Co., Ltd., and Takashimaya 
Credit Co., Ltd., Sony Bank began issuing the “Takashimaya 
Platinum Debit Card,” integrating Takashimaya’s courtesy 
services with the “Sony Bank WALLET” cash card featuring 
VISA debit function in 11 currencies. Strategic alliances such 
as this will help build a larger customer base. 

December 2017:

Began Offering “WealthNavi for Sony Bank” Automated 
Asset Investment Service
Sony Bank teamed up with 
WealthNavi Inc. and began providing 
“WealthNavi for Sony Bank,” an 
automated asset investment service 
customized for Sony Bank customers 
with the WealthNavi robo-advisor 
developed by WealthNavi Inc. With 
this service, customers are able to 
invest in overseas exchange traded 
funds (ETFs), placing even small 
amounts in internationally diversifi ed 
investments in a totally automated 
process. Going forward, Sony Bank 
will provide customers with new 
options for asset investment.
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Analysis of Operating Performance

SFH’s banking business consists of Sony Bank, a wholly owned subsidiary of SFH; Sony Payment Services, a 57%-owned 
subsidiary of Sony Bank; and SmartLink Network Hong Kong, a wholly owned subsidiary of Sony Payment Services.

Consolidated

Ordinary Revenues, Ordinary Profi t and Profi t Attributable to Owners of the Parent
Billions of yen

For the years ended March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Ordinary revenues ¥38.5 ¥39.9 +3.7%

Ordinary profi t 5.0 7.1 +42.2%

Profi t attributable to owners of the 
  parent 3.3 4.7 +42.8%

Non-consolidated
Sony Bank accounts for nearly all of SFH’s banking business. Below is an analysis of the operating performance of Sony 
Bank (non-consolidated). 

Gross Operating Profi t 
Gross operating profi t represents the total income from the four components of income from banking services: net interest income, 
net fees and commissions, net trading income and net other operating income. It is equivalent to the gross profi t (sales minus 
costs) of companies which operate businesses other than fi nancing and an indicator of the amount of profi t a bank generates from 
its main services.
 Net interest income refers to the spread between investment returns such as interest received on loans and securities, and 
funding costs including interest paid on deposits. Sony Bank uses the deposits received from customers primarily to provide 
mortgage loans and invest in securities.
 Net fees and commissions refers to the spread between the fees and commissions received from mortgage loans, the securi-
ties trading of customers, domestic and foreign exchanges and other operations, and the fees and commissions paid for ATM 
usage, domestic and foreign exchanges and other operations.
 Net other operating income refers to income from operations not included in net interest income or net fees and commissions. 
This includes gains and losses on foreign exchange trading; gains and losses on trading of bonds, including government bonds; 
and gains and losses on derivatives, such as swaps held as hedges for securities and other investments.

Billions of yen

For the years ended March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Gross operating profi t ¥21.1 ¥21.4 +1.4%

Net interest income 17.9 20.6 +15.2%

Net fees and commissions (1.5) (2.9) —

Net other operating income 4.7 3.7 (22.4%)

Main Points   

Net interest income increased, due to increases in interest 
income on loans and interest income and dividends on 
securities.
Net fees and commissions decreased, mainly due to lower fees and commissions on mortgage loans and higher fees paid for loan 
guarantees, refl ecting the growing loan balance. 
Net other operating income decreased, largely because of a drop in gains on foreign exchange transactions. 

Main Points

Ordinary revenues rose, owing to higher interest income on 
loans as Sony Bank built a larger mortgage loan balance and 
obtained higher interest income on securities.
Ordinary profi t increased, mainly due to a reduction in general 
and administrative expenses, particularly advertising expenses 
related to card loans. 
Profi t attributable to owners of the parent increased, due to 
the rise in ordinary profi t.
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General and Administrative Expenses 
Billions of yen

For the years ended March 31, 2017 2018 Change

General and administrative expenses ¥16.5 ¥15.5 (6.1%)

Main Points  General and administrative expenses declined, 
mainly because of a drop in advertising expenses related to 
card loans.

Ordinary Revenues, Ordinary Profi t and Net Income 
Billions of yen

For the years ended March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Ordinary revenues ¥35.1 ¥36.2 +3.3%

Ordinary profi t 4.6 6.5 +41.5%

Net income 3.1 4.4 +40.9%

Main Points  Sony Bank’s ordinary revenues, ordinary profi t and 
net income increased for the same reasons as its consolidated 
results.

Number of Accounts 
Million accounts

As of March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Number of accounts 1.24 1.35 +8.8%

Main Points  The number of accounts increased, refl ecting the 
growing popularity of Sony Bank WALLET.

Customer Assets (Total of Deposits and Investment Trusts)
Billions of yen

As of March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Customer assets 
  (Total of deposits and 
    investment trusts) ¥2,227.1 ¥2,343.0 +5.2%

Billions of yen

As of March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Deposit balance ¥2,112.9 ¥2,219.3 +5.0%

Yen deposits 1,764.9 1,814.7 +2.8%

Foreign currency deposits 348.0 404.6 +16.3%

Investment trust balance 114.1 123.7 +8.5%

Main Points

Yen deposits rose on balances, mainly through the acquisition of new funds, paralleling an increase in the number of accounts. 
Foreign currency deposits grew especially in term deposits, refl ecting a promotional campaign highlighting exchange rate costs 
and also favorable interest rates on U.S. dollar term deposits. 
Investment trusts on balances increased, refl ecting the impact of higher reference prices. 
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Composition of Total Assets

As of March 31, 2018

¥2,635.0 billion

Loans 
Billions of yen

As of March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Loans ¥1,539.6 ¥1,596.3 +3.7%

 Mortgage loans 1,452.4 1,525.5 +5.0%

 Others 87.1 70.7 (18.8%)

Main Points  The balance of loans expanded through a steady 
buildup overall, despite a drop in refi nancing demand for 
mortgage loans. “Others” includes corporate loans, card loans 
and special-purpose loans.

Securities 
Sony Bank’s securities investments consist of constant investments in highly rated bonds.

Billions of yen

As of March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Balance of securities ¥631.2 ¥674.2 +6.8%

Japanese government bonds 103.0 96.8 (6.0%)

Japanese local government 
  bonds 34.8 36.0 +3.3%

Japanese corporate bonds 63.6 65.3 +2.8%

Japanese stocks 2.0 2.0 —

Foreign securities 423.2 468.9 +10.8%

Other securities 4.4 5.0 +13.0%

Main Points  With respect to the ratings of the securities* held by Sony Bank, securities rated AA or above accounted for 50.8% of the 
total. The ¥2.0 billion in Japanese stocks represents the company’s investment stake in Sony Payment Services.
* Sony Bank uses the Basel III standardized method and classifi es its securities based on ratings by fi ve rating agencies: Moody’s Investors Service, S&P Global Ratings,
Rating and Investment Information, Inc., Japan Credit Rating Agency, Ltd. and Fitch Ratings.

Total Asset Composition
Billions of yen

As of March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Total assets ¥2,424.2 ¥2,635.0 +8.7%

 Loans 1,539.6 1,596.3 +3.7%

 Securities 631.2 674.2 +6.8%

Cash and due from banks 177.4 287.3 +61.9%

Money held in trust 23.0 21.0 (8.7%)

Main Points  Sony Bank’s total assets increased, due to 
increases in loans and securities.
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Non-consolidated Capital Adequacy Ratio 
The capital adequacy ratio is an important indicator of a bank’s fi nancial soundness. As of March 31, 2017, Sony Bank uses 
foundation internal ratings-based (FIRB) approach to calculate this ratio.

As of March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Non-consolidated capital adequacy ratio 
  (Domestic standard) 9.75% 10.45% +0.70pt

Main Points  Sony Bank continuously maintains a sound fi nancial 
position.

Sony Bank’s Non-consolidated Capital Adequacy Ratio (Domestic standard) 
Millions of yen

2017 2018

As of March 31, 

Amounts 
excluded under 

transitional 
arrangements

Amounts 
excluded under 

transitional 
arrangements

Core capital: instruments and reserves

Directly issued qualifying common share capital or preferred share capital with 
  a compulsory conversion clause plus related capital surplus and retained earnings ¥ 76,303 ¥ 78,540

Of which, capital and capital surplus 52,000 52,000

Of which, retained earnings 25,893 28,778

Of which, cash dividends to be paid (–) 1,590 (2,238)

Total reserves included in core capital: instruments and reserves — —

Of which, general reserve for loan losses including core capital — —

Eligible capital instruments included in core capital: instruments and reserves 12,745 9,682

Core capital: instruments and reserves  (A) 89,048 88,222

Core capital: regulatory adjustments

Total amount of intangible assets (excluding those relating to mortgage servicing rights) 1,315 ¥876 2,113 ¥528

Of which, other intangible assets other than goodwill and mortgage servicing rights 1,315 876 2,113 528

Shortfall of eligible reserves to expected losses 1,253 — 1,013 —

Core capital: regulatory adjustments (B) 2,569 3,127

Capital

Capital ((A)-(B)) (C) 86,479 85,095

Risk-weighted assets

Total amount of credit risk-weighted assets        ,3
Of which, total amount included in risk-weighted assets subject to transitional arrangements (16,092) (9,804)

Of which, intangible assets (excluding goodwill and mortgage servicing rights) 876 528 

Of which, exposure to other fi nancial institutions (16,969) (10,333)

Total amount of operational risk equivalent / 8% 38,807 39,244

Adjustment to credit risk-weighted assets 3

Total amount of risk-weighted assets  (D) 886,781 813,688

Capital adequacy ratio

Capital adequacy ratio ((C) / (D)) (%) 9.75 10.45

Note:  The non-consolidated capital adequacy ratio was calculated using the standard set forth in Notifi cation No. 19 (2006), issued by FSA regarding the 
method for determining capital adequacy of a bank in light of the assets held by the bank, in accordance with Article 14-2 of the Banking Act of Japan. 
But for credit risk-weighted assets based on domestic standard, the company applies the FIRB approach.
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Non-performing Assets 
Sony Bank strives for small-loan diversifi cation in its lending to individuals, screens potential borrowers based on prescribed credit 
screening standards and manages loans after they have been granted. In lending to corporate customers, Sony Bank sets maxi-
mum loan limits according to customer credit and adheres to standards that prevent excessive lending to particular borrowers. 
The screening division also works independently of the business promotion divisions, and the company ensures that fi nancing 
proceeds only following due diligence via relevant deliberative entities. Thus, the company has established a meticulous loan man-
agement and screening system.

Risk-monitored Loans 
Billions of yen

As of March 31, 2017 2018

Category

Bankrupt loans ¥0.1 ¥0.0

Non-accrual delinquent loans 1.5 1.0

Past-due loans (3 months or more) — —

Restructured loans 1.2 0.8

Total ¥2.9 ¥1.9

Problem Loans Based on the Financial Reconstruction Act 
Billions of yen

As of March 31, 2017 2018

Category

Bankrupt and quasi-bankrupt loans ¥ 0.7 ¥       0.4

Doubtful loans 1.0 0.6

Sub-standard loans 1.2 0.8

Normal loans 1,544.5 1,604.3

Total ¥1,547.5 ¥1,606.3

Main Points  Sony Bank has consistently maintained low levels of non-performing loans.

Non-performing Loan Ratio* 

(Loans disclosed under the Financial Reconstruction Act)

As of March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Non-performing loan ratio 0.19% 0.12% (0.06pt)

*Non-performing loans (loans based on the Financial Reconstruction Act) / Total loan exposure
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e.
d.

c.
h.

a.

j.

f.

Directors

President, Representative Director

a. Shigeru Ishii
Director, Sony Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 

Director, Sony Assurance Inc. 

Director, Sony Bank Inc.

President, Representative Director, 
Sony Financial Ventures Inc.

Managing Director

b. Hiroaki Kiyomiya
Director, EVP (Note 3), 
Sony Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 

Directors

c. Yutaka Ito 
Director, Sony Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

Director, Sony Assurance Inc.

Director, Sony Lifecare Inc. 

Director, Sony Financial Ventures Inc.

d. Tomoo Hagimoto
President, Representative Director,
Sony Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

Contributions to Sustainable Development   Corporate Governance

Profi les of Directors and Audit & Supervisory Board Members
(As of July 10, 2018)

e.  Atsuo Niwa 
President, Representative Director,
Sony Assurance Inc.

f. Yuichiro Sumimoto
Director, Representative Director, 
Sony Bank Inc.

g. Shiro Kambe 
EVP (Note 3), Corporate Executive Offi cer,
Sony Corporation
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b.

g.

l.

i.

k.

m.

Audit & Supervisory Board Members

Directors (Outside)

h. Isao Yamamoto (Note 2)

President, 
Enterprising Investment, Inc. 
Director, BILCOM, Inc.

i. Shiro Kuniya (Note 2)

Managing Partner, 
Oh-Ebashi LPC & Partners

Director, NEXON Co., Ltd.

Director, Ebara Corporation

Director, 
Takeda Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Standing Audit & Supervisory Board 
Member (Outside) 

k. Yasuyuki Hayase (Note 2)

Audit & Supervisory Board Member,
Sony Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

Audit & Supervisory Board Member,
Sony Assurance Inc.

Audit & Supervisory Board Member, 
Sony Bank Inc.

Audit & Supervisory Board Member (Outside) 

l. Yoshimichi Makiyama (Note 2)

Partner, Ripple Partners (law offi ce)

Audit & Supervisory Board Member

m.  Hirotoshi Korenaga
Corporate Executive,
Senior General Manager,
Global Accounting Division,
Sony Corporate Services (Japan) 
Corporation

j. Takatoshi Ito (Note 2)

Professor, 
School of International and 
Public Affairs, Columbia University

Senior Professor, 
National Graduate Institute for 
Policy Studies

Director, Chi-X Japan Limited

Notes: 1. Main concurrent positions are shown under the name of each individual.
2. Outside Directors Isao Yamamoto, Shiro Kuniya and Takatoshi Ito and Outside Audit

& Supervisory Board Members Yasuyuki Hayase and Yoshimichi Makiyama are
deemed Independent offi cers based on Tokyo Stock Exchange, Inc. regulations.

3. EVP stands for Executive Vice President.

59Sony Financial Holdings Inc. Annual Report 2018

C
ontributions to S

ustainable D
evelopm

ent



Outside directors Isao Yamamoto and Shiro Kuniya exchanged opinions on corporate 

governance at Sony Financial Holdings Inc. and on measures taken by the Company 

to achieve sustainable growth. (The discussion took place in May 2018.)

In an era of transformation, we redefine perceptions of value 
in financial services through “customer-first” and “response 
to changes.”

A Dialogue between Outside Directors:
Corporate Governance at SFH

Isao Yamamoto
Outside Director

Shiro Kuniya
Outside Director
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Board of Directors’ Meetings

Board of Directors emphasizing open 
discussion on era of change

Kuniya: A board of directors is expected to be receptive to 
reasonable opinions, derived through dynamic discussion, 
and to apply those opinions to the implementation of whatever 
measures are deemed necessary for success. At the Board of 
Directors’ meeting, discussions that transcend the position, or 
management viewpoint, of each Group company have taken 
place by Board members—the presidents of Sony Life, Sony 
Assurance and Sony Bank, executive directors of SFH and 
outside directors—you and me.
Yamamoto: An awareness of the PDCA cycle is fi rmly 
entrenched in the minds of all members of the SFH Board, 
having discussions unfold with a forward-looking perspective. 
A prime example would be fi guring out what kind of check sys-
tem to establish if a certain plan is put into action. The materials 
distributed at meetings are ample, and any questions raised 
will receive honest responses. I believe the Board maintains the 
appropriate level of transparency. 

Kuniya: The Group inherited the corporate DNA of a manufacturer
—Sony. As a brand, Sony has grown by delivering new value to 
people. I believe this “Sony spirit,” if you will, infuses SFH as well.
Yamamoto: I agree. When decisions are to be made, the SFH 
Board keeps in mind the mission—to earn and maintain the 
trust of customers as a fi nancial institution. The Board places 
importance on a corporate attitude that emphasizes the pursuit 
of something new and engages in comprehensive discussions 
with the appropriate decision-making procedures to formulate 
various measures. Fintech, for instance, has been a topic of 
tremendous discussion, underpinned by seminar content and 
expert advice. 
Kuniya: The Board is also shifting toward a process of imple-
menting various measures based on a deeper understanding of 
the issues, such as introducing new technology, launching new 
businesses and making inroads overseas, through repeated and 
robust dialogue. The environment is undergoing a big transfor-
mation, and it is important to keep trying and consider which 
measures will be effective at any given time. 

Nomination Advisory Committee, Compensation Advisory Committee

Securing human resources and maintaining 
an appropriate compensation system are 
keys to sustainable growth

Yamamoto: Points that always get discussed in the Nomination 
Advisory Committee deal with the formation—that is, the lineup
—of directors who will best serve SFH for the Group’s contin-
ued growth in the future and the content of plans to develop the 
next generation of management. As chairperson of the Nomina-
tion Advisory Committee, I have to take a medium- to long-term 
perspective to properly evaluate suggestions offered to the 
Committee. Toward this end, I try to make decisions at commit-
tee discussions that are consistent with medium-term targets, 
and I actively take part in meetings separate from the Board of 
Directors where medium-term business plans are drafted. 
Kuniya: In deliberating plans for developing the next generation 
of management, we can give candid opinions because we are 
external to the Company and apply insights from our involve-
ment in other companies and knowledge of applicable situations 
overseas. The ideal scenario would be to create a talent pool 
with a number of individuals at the top—future presidents of 
Group companies—as well as second and third layers of man-
agement candidates. But not all positions will be fi lled internally, 
so we have to anticipate the need to attract the right people 
externally through headhunting. When SFH was established, 
a dynamic structure was ensured by utilizing human resources 
in the Sony Group and different industries. But in the last few 
years, the dynamic has changed, and SFH is perhaps lagging 
behind its overseas peers. Going forward, SFH should make 
more of an effort to reinforce diversity in management composi-
tion, including the selection of non-Japanese directors. 

Yamamoto: On June 22, 2018, SFH plans* to welcome 
Takatoshi Ito, an international economist, to the Board as an 
outside director. Early on, the Group recognized the need for 
broad-based knowledge and a network of experts in fi elds dif-
ferent from those of existing directors to raise the corporate 
value of the Group, and management was already contemplat-
ing an increase in the number of outside directors. Against that 
backdrop, Mr. Ito was short-listed, interviewed by the Nomina-
tion Advisory Committee and now he is being put forward as an 
outside director. 
Kuniya: Outside directors are expected to contribute somehow 
by drawing on personal expertise and experience. Mr. Ito is an 
economist, his outlook is microeconomic as well as macroeco-
nomic and he will be expected to add to the conversation from 
a viewpoint that is both long-term and international, looking fi ve, 
10 and 20 years ahead. 

Kuniya: From my position as chairperson of the Compensation 
Advisory Committee, I believe it is essential that SFH improve 
its incentive compensation system to attract skilled human 
resources. People with expertise or qualifi cations in a particular 
fi eld, in many cases, receive compensation corresponding to 
their capabilities. Such individuals cross the country in search of 
jobs, inevitably moving from job to job and industry to industry. 
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The current compensation system of SFH is, in my opinion, an 
obstacle to attracting and keeping individuals with expertise. 
Yamamoto: Last year, SFH expanded the scope of eligibility 
for stock options. But the ratio of incentives to overall compen-
sation is still low at SFH. The wisdom of using stock-based 
compensation to attract human resources will probably become 
a topic of much discussion. 
Kuniya: Human resoursing and compensation are very closely 
connected, and SFH will need to improve its compensation 
system rather drastically in the medium to long term to keep 
human resources. For now, the Company should consider 
a gradual approach to changes.
 Aside from the compensation issue, SFH must also recog-
nize the impact of globalization on work styles. In recent years, 
perceptions toward work have changed in Japan. Increasing 
globalization and new approaches to workstyles have led people 
to assume that whatever job they take will allow them to dem-
onstrate individuality and pursue a desired lifestyle. To attract 
people who can change the Company, the Company must 
present work-style options that these people fi nd appealing. 

New Medium-term Business Plan

Take full advantage of changes to solidify 
underlying base and become fi nancial 
services group closely connected to every 
customer 

Yamamoto: The new medium-term business plan was formu-
lated at a meeting set up for that purpose under a process 
whereby members of the meeting imagined society 10 years 
from now, with major changes in the business environment and 
technological innovations anticipated, then incorporated these 
factors into strategies to be accomplished over three years. 
Kuniya: The new medium-term business plan hinges on two 
points: “customer-fi rst” and “response to changes.” For the Sony 
Financial Group to continue to grow as the fi nancial services 
group that customers look to fi rst, SFH has to promote even 
more the concept of customer-fi rst business operations and 
reinforce governance structure over Group companies. 
Yamamoto: Then there is response to changes, specifi cally, 
how to deal with a changing business environment, including a 
shrinking population with a falling birthrate and aging population 
and technological innovations, namely self-driving cars and Fin-
tech. With regard to Fintech, many venture companies present 
excellent technologies. What sort of relationships will Sony Life, 
Sony Assurance and Sony Bank build with these venture com-
panies? And what function will Sony Financial Ventures play after 
its establishment in July? These two points will have far-reaching 
implications. Our changing times are fueling the transformation 
in customer-fi rst business operations through joint activities 
among companies in the Sony Financial Group, with the Sony 
Group and through open innovation with Fintech ventures. 
This is a vital cornerstone for growth in the future. 
Kuniya: But in pursuing joint activities with the Sony Group, 

SFH must ensure its independence from the perspective of pro-
tecting the interests of minority shareholders who are not Sony 
Corporation. It will also become more important to emphasize 
cooperative efforts related mainly to Fintech, particularly the use 
of blockchains from the Sony Group, while retaining indepen-
dence. The integration of new technologies and fi nancial services, 
and the acceleration of personnel exchanges under the Sony 
brand, will lead to the development of new products and services. 
Yamamoto: In the meantime, the emphasis is on initiating a 
major shift beyond the traditional business formats of a fi nancial 
institution and a manufacturer through the use of IoT and Fintech. 
The ability to handle big data, namely, details on the lifestyles 
and investment environments of each customer, will prompt a 
huge change in the personalization of products and services. 
Insurance and investment offerings have been, respectively, all 
the same. In the future, it will be possible to personalize prod-
ucts and services in each segment to meet the lifestyle needs 
of each customer. These are exciting, interesting times. The big 
changes taking place will provide the Sony Financial Group with 
a fabulous opportunity to create new products and services. 
Kuniya: The Sony Group’s mission—Kando, to move custom-
ers emotionally—has fueled business expansion. It would be 
a natural progression, then, for the Sony Financial Group, as 
a member of the Sony Group, to play a part in making its own 
customers happy. Take, for example, Sony Life’s Lifeplanner 
sales employees, who quite literally make it their business to 
know the lives of their customers and stay close to them 
through all stages of life. I think this underpins sustainable 
growth for the Sony Financial Group and certainly translates 
into higher corporate value for SFH. 
Yamamoto: Fiscal 2018, ending March 31, 2019, is the fi rst 
year of the new medium-term business plan. We outside direc-
tors will have to be mindful of what we should do—and what 
we can do—for customers. We will contribute to the next stage 
of growth for the Sony Financial Group by solidifying the defense 
and offense sides of business. 

* The proposal to appoint Takatoshi Ito to the position of outside director was 
approved by shareholders at the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders on
June 22, 2018. 

▶Page 18: Vision and Strategies  Sony Financial Group
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Biography Reasons for Appointment

Outside 
Directors

Isao Yamamoto 1981 Joined Nomura Research Institute, Ltd.
Mr. Yamamoto has many years 
of experience as a securities 
analyst and an advisor on 
corporate finance and M&As, 
and has no conflict of special 
interests with SFH.

1991 Head of Strategic Advisory Group, Nomura Research Institute, Ltd.

1996 Director, Investment Banking Division, Merrill Lynch Japan Securities Co., Ltd.

1999 Managing Director, Investment Banking Division, Merrill Lynch Japan Securities Co., Ltd.

2002 Co-head of Investment Banking Division, Managing Director, Merrill Lynch Japan Securities 
Co., Ltd.

2003 President & CEO, The Institute for Securities Investments & Governance

2006 Director, Japan CableCast Inc.

Statutory Auditor, MASSTUNE, Inc. (currently: MINKABU, Inc.)

2007 Director, MASSTUNE, Inc. (currently: MINKABU, Inc.)

2009 President, Enterprising Investment, Inc. (current position)

2011 Director, SFH (current position)

2012 Director, BILCOM, Inc. (current position)

Shiro Kuniya 1982 Registered as attorney
Joined Oh-Ebashi Law Offices (currently: Oh-Ebashi LPC & Partners) Mr. Kuniya has specialized 

knowledge and experience as an 
attorney and has no conflict of 
special interests with SFH.

1997 Audit & Supervisory Board Member, Sunstar Inc.

2002 Managing Partner, Oh-Ebashi LPC & Partners (current position)

2006 Audit & Supervisory Board Member, Nidec Corporation

2012 Director, NEXON Co., Ltd. (current position)

Director, Ebara Corporation (current position)

2013 Director, SFH (current position)

Corporate Auditor, Takeda Pharmaceutical Company Limited

2016 Director, Takeda Pharmaceutical Company Limited (current position)

Takatoshi Ito 1979 Assistant Professor, Economics Department, University of Minnesota 
Mr. Ito possesses extensive 
knowledge and experience as an 
expert on subjects including 
macroeconomics, financial 
policy, international finance and 
Japanese economic theory, and 
has no conflict of special 
interests with SFH.

1986 Associate Professor , Economics Department, University of Minnesota 

1988 Associate Professor, Institute of Economic Research, Hitotsubashi University 

1991 Professor, Institute of Economic Research, Hitotsubashi University 

1994 Senior Advisor, Research Department, International Monetary Fund 

1997 Professor, Institute of Economic Research, Hitotsubashi University 

1999 Deputy Vice Minister for International Affairs, Ministry of Finance 

2001 Professor, Institute of Economic Research, Hitotsubashi University 

2002 Professor, Research Center for Advanced Science and Technology, the University of Tokyo 

2004 Professor, Economics Department, the University of Tokyo 

2012 Dean, Graduate School of Public Policy, the University of Tokyo 

2014 Project Professor, Graduate School of Public Policy, the University of Tokyo 

Professor, National Graduate Institute for Policy Studies

2015 Professor, School of International and Public Affairs, Columbia University (current position) 

2016 Senior Professor, National Graduate Institute for Policy Studies (current position) 

2017 Director, Chi-X Japan Limited (current position) 

2018 Director, SFH (current position)

Outside 
Audit & 
Supervisory 
Board 
Members

Yasuyuki Hayase 1980 Joined Mitsui Bank Corporation (currently: Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation)
Mr. Hayase has many years of 
experience at a financial 
institution, and as a corporate 
auditor there.

1999 Group Leader, Credit Planning Department, Mitsui Bank Corporation

2001 Deputy General Manager, Head Office Business Department 1, Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 
Corporation

2002 Deputy General Manager, Head Office Business Department 3, Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 
Corporation

2003 General Manager, Kumamoto Corporate Business Office, Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 
Corporation

2005 General Manager, Mitadori Corporate Business Office, Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

2007 General Manager, Credit & Investment Planning Department, Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 
Corporation

2010 Corporate Auditor, Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

2012 President & CEO, Sakura Card Co., LTD.

2015 Standing Audit & Supervisory Board Member, SFH (current position)

Audit & Supervisory Board Member, Sony Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (current position)

Audit & Supervisory Board Member, Sony Assurance Inc. (current position)

Audit & Supervisory Board Member, Sony Bank Inc. (current position)

Yoshimichi Makiyama 1990 Registered as attorney, Japan
Joined Showa Law Office (currently: Jones Day Law Office) Mr. Makiyama qualified as an 

attorney and patent attorney in 
Japan and as an attorney in the 
state of New York, with expertise 
in many areas including 
information security and 
compliance, and has a breadth 
of professional experience both 
at home and abroad.

1995 Joined Mitsui, Yasuda, Wani & Maeda (law office)

1999 Registered as attorney, New York, U.S.A.

2000 Joined Microsoft Asia Limited (Law & Corporate Affairs)

2004 Registered as patent attorney, Japan

2006 Joined TMI Associates (law office)

2013 Partner, Kitamura & Makiyama (law office)

2015 Audit & Supervisory Board Member, SFH (current position)

2018 Partner, Ripple Partners (law office) (current position)

Profi les of Outside Directors and Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Members
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Compensation Advisory 
Committee

Nomination Advisory 
Committee

Audit Department

Sony Life Sony Assurance Sony Bank Sony Lifecare

SFH

Sony Financial Group’s Internal Control (As of July 1, 2018)

Independent
Auditor

   Accounting
audit

Enquiry

Enquiry

Response

Response

General Meeting of Shareholders

Board of Directors
(Directors/Outside Directors)

Executive Committee

Appointment/dismissal

Audit & Supervisory Board
(Audit & Supervisory 

Board Members/
Outside Audit & Supervisory 

Board Members)
Audit

Audit

Report

Appointment/dismissal

Business Execution Departments

(Primary Subsidiaries)

Directly audit, as neededManage and advise
MonitorConvey Group policiesDiscuss 

   in advance
Report and 

   confirm
Share and confirm 

   information

Serve concurrently as 
   directors and audit &
   supervisory board 
   members

Basic Stance on Corporate Governance

Basic Policy on Corporate Governance
SFH strives to meet the expectations and earn the trust of 
stakeholders, realize sustainable corporate growth and 
increase corporate value over the medium to long term by 
making effective use of the Group’s various management 
resources and by realizing its corporate vision and philosophy. 
Furthermore, as a fi nancial holding company, SFH is aware of 
the highly public nature of its fi nancial business. Accordingly, 
SFH has in place a governance structure that emphasizes 
ensuring soundness and appropriateness of the Group’s 
management. SFH is a listed subsidiary of Sony Corporation. 
As such, SFH maintains managerial independence from its 
parent company and strives to ensure a highly transparent 
management.

Establishing an Internal Control System
SFH formulated the Basic Policy on Establishing an Internal 
Control System in compliance with the Companies Act of 
Japan and associated enforcement regulations to ensure the 
appropriateness of the Group’s business activities. SFH imple-
mented and maintains an internal control system in line with 
this policy.
 SFH introduced its Internal Control and Financial Reporting 
System in accordance with the Financial Instruments and 
Exchange Act of Japan, with the aim of strengthening internal 
controls governing fi nancial reporting. As a listed company, 
SFH put in place and maintains the necessary organizational 
system and operational rules for disclosing proper fi nancial 
information.

▶“Corporate Governance” on SFH’s website, 
https://www.sonyfh.co.jp/en/company/governance.html

▶ “Corporate Vision,” “Corporate Philosophy” on the profile page.

▶“Basic Policy on Corporate Governance” and 
“Corporate Governance Report” on SFH’s website,
https://www.sonyfh.co.jp/en/company/governance.html
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Management System

▶“Management System” on SFH’s website, https://www.sonyfh.co.jp/en/company/management.html

Board of Directors (As of July 1, 2018)

SFH, as a pure holding company, maintains a Board of 
Directors not only to manage SFH itself, but also to promote 
integrated Group management and to ensure the Group’s 
corporate governance. SFH’s Board of Directors is made up 
of 10 members, of which three are representative directors 
from SFH’s subsidiaries who serve as non-executive directors 
of SFH and contribute to effi cient business operations of the 
Group as a whole.
 Additionally, to obtain general management advice applica-
ble to the Group, SFH has appointed directors from outside the 
Group, one of whom serves concurrently as a Corporate Execu-
tive Offi cer of Sony, the parent company. To obtain knowledge 
outside the Company and enhance the effi ciency of the Group’s 
corporate governance, since June 2018, the Company has 
increased the number of outside directors by one and 
appointed a total of three outside directors, who are designated 
independent directors, as required by the Tokyo Stock 
Exchange, to protect ordinary shareholders.
 Regarding the boards of directors of Group subsidiaries, 
SFH’s representative director and two of its executive directors 
serve concurrently as directors of subsidiaries with the aim of 
increasing the effectiveness of Group strategies and ensuring 
the sound business management of each company.

Attendance of Outside Directors and Outside Audit & 
Supervisory Board Members in Meetings of the Board 
of Directors and the Audit & Supervisory Board for 
Fiscal 2017

Name Board of Directors’ 
meeting 

Audit & Supervisory 
Board’s meeting

Outside 
directors 

Isao Yamamoto Attended all 16 
meetings

—

Shiro Kuniya Attended 14 
of 16 meetings

—

Outside 
audit & 
supervisory 
board 
members

Yasuyuki 
Hayase

Attended all 16 
meetings

Attended all 12 
meetings

Yoshimichi 
Makiyama

Attended 14 
of 16 meetings

Attended all 12 
meetings 

Audit & Supervisory Board Member Audits, 
Internal Audits and Accounting Audits (As of July 1, 2018)

Audit & Supervisory Board Member Audits
SFH’s Audit & Supervisory Board has three members, two of 
whom are outside audit & supervisory board members and 
deemed as independent audit & supervisory board members 
based on Tokyo Stock Exchange regulations.
 Audit & supervisory board members audit the execution 
of duties by directors based on the audit policy, audit plan and 
other matters stipulated by the Audit & Supervisory Board. 
Audit & supervisory board members attend important meet-
ings, including Board of Directors’ meetings and examine 
SFH’s operations and fi nancial condition. At the same time, 
audit & supervisory board members maintain close contact 
such as through receiving reports from independent auditors, 
internal audit department and other relevant persons.

Internal Audits
SFH performs internal audits through its internal audit depart-
ment. The internal audit department takes an independent 
and objective standpoint in performing internal audits to check 
and evaluate the appropriateness of work processes and 
responses to risks. The internal audit department also monitors 
the results of both internal and external audits of Group compa-
nies and provides advice and proposals when necessary. The 
internal audit department regularly reports the results of its mon-
itoring activities to the director in charge and the Board of Direc-
tors. When necessary, the internal audit department may audit 
subsidiaries directly or jointly within the scope of governing laws 
and regulations. In addition, the internal audit department works 
closely with audit & supervisory board members, as well as 
external auditors, such as independent auditors, as necessary.

Accounting Audits
The accounting fi rm and back-up team members of the 
certifi ed public accountants (CPAs) who acted as the 
independent auditors of SFH are as follows: 

Accounting fi rm PricewaterhouseCoopers Aarata LLC

Breakdown: CPAs and the 
back-up team members* 

8 CPAs, 4 others

*For fiscal 2017

Outline of SFH’s Corporate Governance Structure (As of July 1, 2018)

Type of structure Company with a Board of Directors and an Audit & Supervisory Board
Number of directors 10 (including 3 outside directors)
Number of audit & supervisory board members 3 (including 2 outside audit & supervisory board members)
Director’s term of offi ce 1 year
Number of independent offi cers 5
Outside directors’ involvement in determination of compensation Involved
Results-linked compensation system Adopted
Number of meetings of the Board of Directors held during fi scal 2017 16
Advisory bodies for the Board of Directors Nomination Advisory Committee; Compensation Advisory Committee
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Independence Standard of Outside Directors and 
Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Members
SFH has formulated the Basic Policy on the Selection of Direc-
tor and Audit & Supervisory Board Member Candidates* and 
set the independence standard of outside directors and out-
side audit & supervisory board members.
 The standard provides that a candidate is deemed inde-
pendent if he/she: (1) satisfi es the independence requirements 
of the Companies Act of Japan and the standards for indepen-
dent directors provided by the Tokyo Stock Exchange; (2) has 
had no confl ict of special interest with SFH and its Group com-
panies in the past three years prior to his/her taking offi ce and 
currently has no such confl ict; (3) has not been an executive or 
employee of SFH’s parent company or a subsidiary of SFH’s 
parent company in the past three years prior to his/her taking 
offi ce and is not currently an executive or employee of these 
companies; and (4) is not a spouse of or related within two 
degrees of kinship to a person who does not satisfy either of 
items (2) and (3) above.
 By appointing highly independent outside directors and 
outside audit & supervisory board members, SFH strives to 
ensure the transparency of corporate management and 
enhance their supervisory function.

*  Visit SFH’s website for details of the Basic Policy on the Selection of Direc-
tor and Audit & Supervisory Board Member Candidates

Nomination Advisory Committee and Compensation 
Advisory Committee (As of July 1, 2018)

SFH has established two committees as advisory bodies for 
the Board of Directors to ensure the transparency and objec-
tivity of the decision-making process.
 The Nomination Advisory Committee deliberates on the 
appointment and dismissal of SFH’s directors, audit & super-
visory board members and Group companies’ presidents, 
as well as on the succession planning of SFH and its Group 
companies’ presidents. It reports the results of its delibera-
tions to the Board of Directors.
 The Compensation Advisory Committee deliberates the 
policy and total amount of compensation for SFH’s directors 
and Group companies’ representative directors who are to 
be proposed at a General Meeting of Shareholders. The 
committee also deliberates the amount of compensation 
for individual directors and Group companies’ representative 
directors, within the limits set by a resolution at a General 
Meeting of Shareholders. It reports the results of its delibera-
tions to the Board of Directors.
 More than half of the members of each committee are 
outside directors, an arrangement intended to refl ect opin-
ions from objective and multifaceted perspectives in delibera-
tions. A member of the Compensation Advisory Committee 
shall not participate in the resolution for determining his/her 
compensation.

Advisory bodies Members

Nomination 
Advisory Committee

Outside Director Isao Yamamoto 
(Chairperson)

Outside Director Shiro Kuniya

President, 
Representative Director

Shigeru Ishii

Director Shiro Kambe

Compensation 
Advisory Committee

Outside Director Shiro Kuniya 
(Chairperson)

Outside Director Isao Yamamoto

President, 
Representative Director

Shigeru Ishii

▶Page 60: A Dialogue between Outside Directors

Management System
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Evaluation of Effectiveness of the Board of Directors 

According to SFH’s Basic Policy on Corporate Governance, 
the Board of Directors conducts self-evaluations, evaluating 
the effectiveness of its own decision-making and oversight, 
as well as its operation of meetings at least once a year. 

Evaluation Process
For fiscal 2017, as in fiscal 2016, an independent third-party 
evaluation company assessed the effectiveness of the Board 
of Directors with a questionnaire given to all directors and 
audit & supervisory board members.
 Principal content of the questionnaire
• Composition and operation of the Board of Directors
• Management and business strategies 
• Corporate ethics and risk management 
• Evaluation and compensation of management
•   Matters related to organizational restructuring and business 

reorganization
• Dialogue with shareholders, etc.
• Self-evaluations
Along with the above, diverse items were evaluated with a 
point-based assessment, and all of the questions were 
answered in the questionnaire section for reasons and com-
ments. In addition, an evaluation was conducted regarding 
responses to items that were raised as issues in the previous 
year’s evaluation of effectiveness.

Summary of the Results of Evaluation
The results of the assessment by the third-party evaluation 
company were as follows:
•   As in fiscal 2016, on the whole, a high level of effectiveness 

has been achieved.
•   There is a free and active atmosphere in which all members 

proactively contribute to the meetings. There is also appro-
priate decision-making and supervision under the leader-
ship of the chairman. 

•   Information on the main risks to the Group and information 
on its situation are appropriately provided and necessary 
discussions are held.

•   The size of the Board of Directors is appropriate for the busi-
ness size and field of the Group.

•   The member composition of the Compensation Advisory 
Committee and that of the Nomination Advisory Committee 
are appropriate.

•   The frequency and time allocation for the Board of Directors’ 
meetings are appropriate, and the minutes reflect the con-
tents of discussions and the results of deliberations without 
excess or deficiency.

 While various improvements have been made on issues 
raised in the previous year’s evaluation of effectiveness (con-
tinued discussion of medium- to long-term Groupwide issues 
and business strategies and opportunities for study or train-
ing related to the Group’s management and businesses), the 
following opinions were received:
•   Discussions on the Group’s growth strategies need to be 

continued, considering the Group’s overall optimization and 
lessons learned from the past. 

•   More opportunities for study or training related to the 
Group’s management and businesses are needed.

•   For further reinforcement of customer-first business opera-
tions, the compliance and risk management system as well 
as monitoring need to be enhanced.

•   Although incentive compensation plans for management 
have been expanded with a new restricted stock compensa-
tion plan, a desire for continuous consideration of expand-
ing the scope of coverage, changing its proportions and 
other issues were expressed.

Issues to Address and Responses to Make Based on the 
Results of Evaluation
From the results of this evaluation, SFH’s Board of Directors 
judges itself to be wholly effective at this time. That said, the 
Board will strive to further enhance its effectiveness by contin-
uously discussing the Group’s growth strategies, improving 
understanding of the Group’s management and business, 
and enhancing systems such as compliance and monitoring.
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Management System

Compensation for SFH’s Directors and Audit & 
Supervisory Board Members
SFH sets the Policy for Determining the Compensation of 
Directors and the Policy for Determining the Compensation 
of Audit & Supervisory Board Members. SFH has created 
the Compensation Advisory Committee Regulations and 
established the Compensation Advisory Committee (please 
see page 66) as its deliberative body. Compensation of indi-
vidual directors is determined by the resolution of the Board 

• Compensation for SFH’s Directors and Audit & 
Supervisory Board Members for Fiscal 2017

Details of compensation for SFH’s directors and audit & 
supervisory board members for fi scal 2017 are as follows:

Number 
of payees 

Total amount of 
compensation 
for directors 
and audit & 
supervisory 

board members
(Millions of yen)

Total amount by 
compensation category 

Basic 
com-

pensa-
tion 

Stock 
option 

Restricted 
stock 

compensa-
tion 

Directors (internal) 5 211 166 40 5

Directors (outside) 2 20 20 — —

Audit & Supervisory 
Board Members 
(internal)

— — — — —

Audit & Supervisory 
Board Members 
(outside) 

2 31 31 — —

Total 9 262 217 40 5

Notes: 1. Compensation refers to compensation, bonuses and other fi nancial 
benefi ts received from the Company in consideration of execution of 
duties.

 2. Compensation categories refer to basic compensation, stock options, 
restricted stock compensation, bonuses and retirement benefi ts and 
others. SFH did not pay bonuses as compensation for directors and 
audit & supervisory board members prior to and including fi scal 2017.

of Directors, based on a report from the Compensation 
Advisory Committee. Directors with no executive duties, 
except outside directors, are paid no compensation. Com-
pensation of individual audit & supervisory board members 
is determined, within the limit set by a General Meeting of 
Shareholders, through discussions by audit & supervisory 
board members.

1. Executive Directors 

Basic policy •  A balance between a fi xed portion, a results-linked 
portion and a medium- to long-term incentive por-
tion shall be considered. The objective of this is to 
secure talented executives for business execution 
and ensure that compensation serves as an 
effective incentive for improving the business per-
formance and corporate value of the entire Group.

Compensation •  Compensation comprises a fi xed portion 
depending on the position, a results-linked por-
tion depending on the entire Group’s perfor-
mance and individual responsibilities, and a 
medium- to long-term incentive portion in the 
form of stock-based compensation.

•  The results-linked portion could range from 0% 
to 200% of the standard amount subject to 
achievement of management targets of the 
Group and fulfi llment of responsibilities.

•  The medium- to long-term incentive portion is 
based on restricted stock compensation and 
stock-type compensation stock options. The 
stock-type compensation stock options, in 
principle, account for 20% of total annual 
compensation.

Level •  A suitable level of compensation shall be paid in 
order to secure talented individuals. The level of 
compensation is determined in consideration of 
the results of third-party surveys on the compen-
sation levels of corporate managers and other rel-
evant information.

2. Outside Directors 

Basic policy •  The main responsibility of outside directors is to 
enhance the transparency and objectivity of cor-
porate management through the oversight and 
supervision of executive directors’ execution of 
duties. Consequently, compensation shall be fi xed 
with the objective of securing talented individuals 
and ensuring that the supervisory and oversight 
function is working effectively.

Compensation •  A fi xed amount is paid according to the role. 

Level •  A suitable level of compensation shall be paid in 
order to secure talented individuals. The level of 
compensation is determined in consideration of 
the results of third-party surveys on the compen-
sation levels of corporate managers and other rel-
evant information.

3. Audit & Supervisory Board Members

Basic policy •  The main responsibility of audit & supervisory board 
members is to ensure the transparency and objec-
tivity of corporate management by conducting 
operational and accounting audits. Consequently, 
compensation shall be fi xed with the objective of 
securing talented individuals and ensuring that the 
audit function is working effectively.

Compensation •  A fi xed amount is paid according to the respective 
role of standing audit & supervisory board mem-
bers and non-standing audit & supervisory board 
members.

Level •  A suitable level of compensation shall be paid in 
order to secure talented individuals. The level of 
compensation is determined through discussion 
by audit & supervisory board members, in consid-
eration of the results of third-party surveys on the 
compensation levels of audit & supervisory board 
member and other relevant information.
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Policy Concerning Measures to Protect Minority 
Shareholders in Transactions with Sony Corporation 
(Controlling Shareholder)

The Sony Financial Group’s policy is to develop business while 
maintaining cooperative ties with the Sony Group. However, the 
Sony Financial Group believes that it has secured a certain degree 
of independence from the Sony Group, because it conducts 
independent business activities in line with its own management 
policies and strategies, and operates in different business fi elds 
than the Sony Group.
 When entering into transactions with Sony Corporation (the 
controlling shareholder), the Sony Financial Group adequately 
confi rms the necessity for such transactions and ensures that the 
conditions of such transactions do not differ markedly from the 
terms of ordinary transactions with third parties.

Status of Implementation
With regard to transactions with Sony Corporation, SFH confi rms 
the necessity for such transactions and ensures that conditions 
do not differ markedly from the terms of ordinary transactions with 
third parties. 

 In addition, Sony Corporation, which has obtained 
approval from FSA to remain a major SFH shareholder, 
recognizes and respects SFH’s corporate philosophy.

Using the “Sony” Trade Name and Trademark 
SFH and Group companies have entered into royalty agreements 
with Sony Corporation for the use of the “Sony” trade name and 
trademark. However, these agreements can be rescinded by 
Sony Corporation under certain conditions, such as its share of 
voting rights in SFH falling below a majority, or SFH’s percentage 
ownership of the voting rights of Sony Financial Group companies 
dropping. Furthermore, Sony Financial Group companies pay 
royalty fees to Sony Corporation based on these agreements. 
The amount paid in fi scal 2017 was ¥2,460 million and the 
amount of these royalty fees has no material impact on the 
management base of the Sony Financial Group.
 The Sony Financial Group believes that the use of the 
“Sony” trade name and trademark confers certain advantages, 
including stronger brand recognition, enhanced trustworthi-
ness and higher employee motivation and awareness.

Transactions with Sony Corporation 
SFH is a listed subsidiary of Sony Corporation. For this reason, 
SFH has set out a Policy Concerning Measures to Protect 
Minority Shareholders in Transactions with the Controlling 
Shareholder to protect the interests of minority shareholders.

Relationship with Parent Company, Sony Corporation 
(As of July 1, 2018)

As is described in the Basic Policy on Corporate Governance 
(please see page 64), SFH is a listed subsidiary of Sony 
Corporation. Accordingly, SFH maintains managerial inde-
pendence from its parent company and strives to ensure 
highly transparent management.

Capital Relationship
SFH is a fi nancial holding company, established in April 2004 
as a corporate spin-off from Sony Corporation. In October 
2007, SFH’s shares were listed on the First Section of 
the Tokyo Stock Exchange with the initial public offering 
conducted in Japan and overseas. Sony Corporation later 
made additional purchases of SFH shares, bringing its 
shareholding to 63% as of March 31, 2018. As a result, 
regardless of the intentions and interests of other share-
holders, Sony Corporation may have an impact on all matters 
requiring shareholder approval such as the appointment 
and dismissal of SFH directors and audit & supervisory 
board members, mergers and other organizational restruc-
turing, material asset and business transfers, amendments 
to the Articles of Incorporation and the payment of dividends. 

Personnel Relationship
To obtain general management advice concerning the Sony 
Financial Group and to strengthen the audit function, SFH 
appoints directors and audit & supervisory board members 
from outside the Sony Financial Group. However, one SFH 
director and one audit & supervisory board member serve 
concurrently as Corporate Executive Offi cer or Senior Gen-
eral Manager of the Sony Group. Moreover, Sony Corpora-
tion has seconded seven employees to SFH. Because the 
appointment of concurrent directors and audit & supervisory 
board members comes at the request of the Sony Financial 
Group, SFH believes that concurrent directors and audit & 
supervisory board members are positioned to make inde-
pendent management decisions. From the standpoint of 
further enhancing independence from the parent company, 
SFH has appointed three outside directors who have no spe-
cial relationship with the Sony Group and have designated 
them as independent directors based on rules set forth by 
the Tokyo Stock Exchange.

Ensuring Independence in Business Activities 
Because the Sony Financial Group’s business operations have 
a tenuous connection with the Sony Group’s business domains 
except for Financial Services*, and because the Sony Financial 
Group operates its business primarily in accordance with the 
Insurance Business Act and the Banking Act of Japan, under 
the supervision of the Financial Services Agency (FSA) of 
Japan, SFH believes that the Sony Financial Group conducts 
its business with a certain degree of independence from the 
Sony Group.

Note:  SFH prepares and discloses Information Pertaining to Controlling 
Shareholders in accordance with the regulations of the Tokyo Stock 
Exchange. The document can be viewed on the Tokyo Stock 
Exchange’s or SFH’s website.
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Sony Life Sony Assurance Sony Bank Sony Lifecare

(Primary Subsidiaries)

SFH

Compliance System of the Sony Financial Group (As of July 1, 2018)

Advise and monitorSecretariat: Compliance Department
Compliance Meetings

Director in Charge 
(President, Representative Director)

Audit Department

Control over the planning and implementation of compliance measures

Compliance Department

Executive Committee

EntrustReport
Report Report

Report

Report

Board of Directors 

General Meeting of Shareholders
Audit & Supervisory Board

Audit & Supervisory 
Board Members

Compliance Activities at SFH
SFH considers the Sony Financial Group Code of Conduct 
the fundamental internal code that all executives and employ-
ees must observe. In addition, SFH’s Board of Directors for-
mulated a Compliance Manual* and a Compliance Program**. 
SFH strives to monitor adherence to stated practices and their 
implementation at all times, while putting in place and develop-
ing the SFH compliance system and working proactively to 
ensure its effective operation. 
 SFH also provides appropriate guidance and support in 
order to put in place and develop compliance systems and 

Compliance

Basic Stance on Compliance 
SFH’s broad defi nition of compliance is that it enforces compliance with the laws, regulations and social norms and manages 
business operations transparently and properly based on a strong sense of ethics. SFH considers compliance one of its top 
management priorities and, accordingly, it has systems in place to ensure that all executives and employees are fully aware of 
their duties and responsibilities.
 While Group companies are responsible for establishing systems to enhance the effectiveness of compliance according to their 
specifi c industry and scale of business operations, SFH, as a fi nancial holding company, undertakes the ongoing monitoring and 
promotion of the Group companies’ compliance by providing advice, as needed, from the viewpoint of Group management.

operate them effectively at Group companies.

* The Compliance Manual outlines SFH’s compliance system, as well as
the Group’s corporate philosophy, which executives and employees
must understand, and laws and regulations, which they must comply
with. The manual also establishes measures for handling behavior that
confl icts with laws and regulations or behavior that raises compliance
issues, and for confi rming compliance status.

** The Compliance Program is drafted annually, in principle, and defi nes a
specifi c action plan for confi rming compliance status, conducting training 
and for other related items.  

▶“Compliance” on SFH’s website, https://www.sonyfh.co.jp/en/company/compliance.html
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Compliance Meetings 
SFH holds regular compliance meetings with Group compa-
nies to conduct preliminary consultations and exchange infor-
mation about the status of compliance dissemination and 
other issues. Members of the meeting include SFH and Sony 
Financial Group company executives, general managers and 
other staff in charge of compliance, depending on the agenda. 
The results of these important discussions are reported to the 
Board of Directors and at other important meetings.

Internal Hotline System
If executives and employees of SFH and its Group companies, 
as well as temporary employees and the employees of busi-
ness partners, believe that business policies, operating activi-
ties or other activities of the companies breach (or could 
breach) respective laws and regulations, they can report their 
concerns by choosing and notifying the appropriate hotline 
desk at SFH or at any Sony Financial Group company or the 
Sony Group hotline desk. A total of approximately 40 reports 
were received by the hotline desk at SFH and Group compa-
nies in fi scal 2017, the majority of them related to the work-
place environment, the organization’s management and the 
course of business operations. SFH implements appropriate 
measures to protect those who contact these desks, while 
strictly managing and responding to the information provided.

Prevention of Insider Trading
SFH has established a Basic Group Policy on the Prevention 
of Insider Trading, whereby a structure for the prevention 
of insider trading has been developed at SFH and Group 
companies.
 SFH monitors whether such a framework is adequately in 
place and working effectively in the prevention of insider trad-
ing at Group companies, and takes actions as necessary.

Confl icts of Interest Policy (Summary) 

SFH formulated the Confl icts of Interest Policy* to ensure that customers’ interests are not harmed by Group companies. The director 
in charge of the Compliance Department, as the manager responsible for managing confl icts of interest, shall require Group companies 
to take the following actions when he/she deems them necessary based on reports from Group companies, customer complaints or 
other sources.
1) Sever the fl ow of information between divisions that have potential confl icts of interest
2) Suspend the transaction concerned, or change the terms and conditions or method of the transaction
3) Disclose the fact or the possibilities of a confl ict of interest to customers
4) Take other actions deemed necessary
 SFH shall retain records that specify transactions to be managed and that are associated with actions taken to properly protect 
customers, for fi ve years.

▶ “Conflicts of Interest Policy” on SFH’s website
https://www.sonyfh.co.jp/en/company/data/conflicts_of_interest_policy.pdf

Privacy Policy
SFH has formulated a Privacy Policy governing the handling of 
personal information. It sets out SFH’s policies on the acquisi-
tion and use of personal information for specifi c purposes. 
SFH has also established Rules Concerning Protection of Per-
sonal Information, which set out specifi c security control proto-
cols. SFH monitors the effectiveness of Sony Financial Group 
companies’ security control protocols.
 SFH and its Group companies formulate and revise the 
Privacy Policy, and set up an organization to protect personal 
information, to which they appoint persons responsible. SFH 
and its Group companies also prepare a set of rules and a 
manual, as well as training programs on the handling of per-
sonal information and information security. These initiatives 
allow SFH and Group companies to maintain entrusted per-
sonal information so that it is accurate and up-to-date, and to 
protect personal information through steps to prevent use for 
other purposes, unauthorized access, leakage, falsifi cation, 
loss, destruction and other incidents.

▶ “Privacy Policy” on SFH’s website
https://www.sonyfh.co.jp/en/notice/privacy_policy/

Basic Group Policy on Eradicating Anti-social Forces
SFH has formulated a “Basic Group Policy on Eradicating Anti-
social Forces,” whereby SFH and Group companies have in 
place the structures necessary to eliminate anti-social forces. 
Efforts include setting up an organizational unit responsible for 
dealing with anti-social forces, appointing a person responsible 
for refusing unreasonable demands and gathering information 
on anti-social forces in collaboration with external specialized 
agencies. The Group works uniformly in its effort to eradicate 
anti-social forces.

▶ “Basic Group Policy on Eradicating Anti-social Forces” 
on SFH’s website
https://www.sonyfh.co.jp/en/company/compliance.html
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Risk Management

Audit &
Supervisory Board

Audit & Supervisory
Board Members

SFH

Risk Management Structure of the Sony Financial Group (As of July 1, 2018)

Each company autonomously puts risk management into practice
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Audit Department
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(President, Representative Director)

Risk Management Department
(Centralized Risk Management)

Executive Committee
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Report

Report Report
Board of Directors

General Meeting of Shareholders

Investment Risks

   Investment Risk

Supervisory Department: 
Risk Management Department

Supervisory Department: 
Compliance Department

Supervisory Department: 
Corporate Communications 
Department

Insurance 
Underwriting Risk

Liquidity Risk

Business Continuity Risk

Systems Risk

Administrative Risk Legal Risk Reputational Risk

(Primary Subsidiaries)

Sony Life Sony Assurance Sony Bank Sony Lifecare

Approach to Risk Management by SFH and Group 
Companies 
SFH has formulated the Fundamental Principles for Risk 
Management and communicates them to directors, employ-
ees, and throughout the Sony Financial Group. It also identi-
fi es the scope and types of risks of the Group companies, 
and establishes structures designed to manage such risks 
effectively. SFH’s department in charge of risk management 
controls risks through monitoring and holding Risk Manage-
ment Meetings with the subsidiaries’ risk management divi-

sions. It also reports its fi ndings on the state of risk manage-
ment regularly to SFH’s Board of Directors and Executive 
Committee. 
 The Group companies optimize types and defi nitions of 
their risks according to scale, characteristics and business 
model. They have established risk management frameworks, 
with the aim of autonomously assessing, monitoring, and 
managing these risks.

One of SFH’s roles as a fi nancial holding company is to further enhance and integrate Groupwide risk management by centralizing 
the Group’s management resources. SFH has formulated the Basic Policy on Group Risk Management and develops a risk 
management structure by aligning it with Groupwide strategic objectives and management policies. In addition, SFH seeks to 
enhance the corporate value of the Group by tailoring operating subsidiaries’ risk management to the types of risks inherent in 
their respective lines of business.

▶“Risk Management” on SFH’s website, https://www.sonyfh.co.jp/en/company/risk_management.html
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Types and Defi nitions of Risks 

Type Defi nition

Market-related Risk Risks associated with losses due to changes in the value of assets and liabilities, including off-balance-sheet 
items, as a result of unfavorable fl uctuations in interest rates, the value of securities held, exchange rates and 
other factors.

Credit Risk Risks associated with losses due to declines or loss in the value of assets, including off-balance-sheet items, 
resulting from deterioration in the fi nancial position of retail and corporate customers and other contracts 
entered into.

Real Estate Investment Risk Risks associated with losses due to declines in the market value of owned real estate or in the profi tability 
of real estate holdings on account of unfavorable trends in prices and rents, respectively.

Liquidity Risk Risks associated with losses are as follows:
•  Cash Flow Risk Risks associated with losses due to our inability to make cash payments because of 

failure to maintain suffi cient cash reserves at settlement, as well as risks associated 
with losses if SFH and Group companies are forced to raise funds under unfavorable 
conditions in order to fulfi ll cash payment obligations.

• Market Liquidity Risk Risks associated with losses due to the Group’s inability to conduct market transac-
tions, in particular from an inability to unwind the Group’s market position at a given 
time, as well as risks associated with losses if the Group is forced to complete trans-
actions under unfavorable market conditions, in each case due to market turmoil or 
other factors.

Insurance Underwriting Risk Risks affecting the Group due to signifi cant differences between the assumptions SFH and Group companies 
use to establish appropriate insurance premium levels, including assumptions regarding the expected 
frequency and scale of insured events and future economic conditions.

Administrative Risk Material and immaterial risks affecting the Group due to errors, misconduct, malfunction and other factors 
related to problems with the Group’s internal administrative processes.

Systems Risk Material and immaterial risks affecting the Group due to IT-system malfunction or breakdown, and improper 
use or leakage of confi dential information stemming from IT-system problems.

Legal Risk Risks affecting the Group due to violations of applicable laws, rules and regulations occurring during the course 
of business operations, as well as the risk of loss due to litigation or infringements of rights.

Reputational Risk Material and immaterial risks associated with losses resulting from harm to the Group’s reputation in the 
market and among customers as a result of unethical behavior, unfair business practices, improper disclosure 
or other factors.

Business Continuity Risk The risk that SFH and Group companies will be unable to continue operations as a result of a deterioration 
in fi nancial position, liquidity problems, system failures, scandals, disaster, accidents or other crises.

Note:  As the operating and business environment changes, the Group companies’ risk management departments review the risk types and defi nitions, 
amending them as appropriate for new conditions.

Contingency Management System 
SFH has established a contingency plan as part of the 
Group’s comprehensive policy on business continuity for 
times when ordinary business operations of SFH or Group 
companies are at risk due to accidents, system failures or 
other factors. Group companies have developed regulations, 
manuals and other guidelines refl ecting their respective busi-
ness volume and nature of business activities. SFH has a 
system in place whereby Group companies report to SFH 
when they are unable to continue ordinary business opera-
tions. If SFH determines that a reported situation is diffi cult to 

address under the risk management system set forth in the 
Fundamental Principles for Risk Management, among other 
guidelines, SFH shall establish a contingency response head-
quarters led by the President and Representative Director of 
SFH and execute business continuity measures aimed at the 
full restoration of all operations.

Introducing the Group’s ERM Framework
The Sony Financial Group introduced its ERM framework in 
fi scal 2016.

▶Page 18: Vision and Strategies  Sony Financial Group
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Dialogue with Shareholders and Other Investors

Annual IR Schedule

Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sep. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar.

Announcement of 
Full-year Consolidated Financial Results

Announcement of 
1Q Consolidated Financial Results 

Announcement of 
2Q Consolidated Financial Results

Announcement of 
3Q Consolidated Financial Results

Ordinary 
General Meeting 
of Shareholders

Corporate 
strategy meeting

Annual Report

Earnings briefi ngs (teleconferences with 
domestic institutional investors and analysts) 4 times

Corporate strategy meeting 1 time

Individual meetings with institutional investors 
and analysts Approx. 190

Overseas IR meetings (UK, USA, Hong Kong, 
Singapore)

Total 
4 times

Briefi ngs for individual investors 9 times

Business briefi ngs (small meetings for domestic 
institutional investors and analysts) 2 times

Record of IR Activities

Corporate strategy meeting for domestic institutional investors and 
analysts (May 2018)

For constructive dialogue with shareholders and other investors, SFH has formulated the Investor Relations (IR) Policy, established 
the department in charge of IR activities and assigned a corporate executive to oversee IR activities. The department in charge of 
IR strives to provide information related to the assessment of corporate value in a timely, accurate and fair manner to shareholders 
and other investors, as well as to facilitate suffi cient dialogue with them, while sharing information appropriately with SFH’s business 
execution departments and Group companies.
 SFH conducts presentations and individual meetings in a variety of formats, and engages in dialogue, centered on the President 
and senior management. In addition, SFH strives toward enhanced disclosure of information via various IR tools (e.g., website infor-
mation and annual reports). 
 Feedback and requests obtained through dialogue with shareholders and other investors are regularly reported to senior manage-
ment to refl ect on and improve their operations.

Investor Relations (IR) Initiatives in Fiscal 2017
SFH held its corporate strategy meeting for institutional inves-
tors and analysts with participation from top management at 
the Company and Group companies. In addition, top manage-
ment at SFH made visits not only within Japan but also to the 
United Kingdom, the United States, Hong Kong and Singapore 
to have meetings individually with institutional investors and 
analysts. In November 2017, SFH held small meetings for 
domestic institutional investors with outside directors on the 
theme of corporate governance.
 Also of note, the Company’s IR website earned high marks 
in several ranking surveys.

Facilitating the Exercise of Voting Rights 
SFH undertakes the following activities as part of its efforts in 
creating an environment that activates the general meeting of 
shareholders and facilitates the exercise of voting rights. 
•  SFH sends out the Notice of Convocation for the general meeting 

of shareholders as early as possible.
•  SFH sets the meeting date to avoid dates on which other compa-

nies’ annual general meetings of shareholders are concentrated.
•  SFH uses an electronic voting platform.
•  SFH provides a partial translation of the Notice of Convocation 

in English.
•  SFH utilizes its website to disclose the Notice of Convocation for 

the general meeting of shareholders and the final shareholder 
voting results.

▶“IR Policy” on SFH’s website, https://www.sonyfh.co.jp/en/financial_info/ir_policy.html
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Sony Financial Group’s Stakeholders

Sony Financial 
Group

Contributions to Sustainable Development   Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Sony Financial Group’s CSR

The Sony Financial Group believes that contributing to sustainable social development by engaging in sound, responsible opera-
tions that leverage its characteristics constitutes the core of its corporate activities. With the highest level of ethics and a strong 
sense of purpose, we strive to continuously improve corporate value and seek to be the most trusted fi nancial services group 
by providing fi nancial services that refl ect customers’ real needs.
 The Sony Financial Group has formulated the following Basic CSR Policy, and each company in the Group proactively con-
ducts various CSR initiatives through its business activities. The various departments in SFH exchange information with Group 
companies to monitor their CSR initiatives.

Basic CSR Policy

The Sony Financial Group believes that a special commitment to the public good is demanded of a fi nancial services company, and seeks 
to achieve its corporate vision and thus give back to society by upholding the highest level of ethics and a strong sense of purpose.
1.  We recognize that a corporation’s fundamental responsibility to society is contributing to economic growth through sound business 

activities, and we will fulfi ll this responsibility by providing high-value-added products and high-quality services.
2.  We will esteem our relationships with customers, shareholders, employees, business partners, local communities and all other stake-

holders in the Sony Financial Group, and we will make management decisions while considering the impact on each stakeholder group.
3.  In carrying out business operations, we will strictly comply with laws, regulations, company rules, policies and other requirements.
4.  We will respect the human rights of all and ensure sound employment and labor practices.
5.  In all aspects of our business activities we will act in consideration of protecting the environment to help bring about a sustainable 

society.
6.  We will disclose information in an appropriate and timely manner to obtain the trust and support of the Sony Financial Group’s stake-

holders.

Business partners

Shareholders and 
other investors

Customers

Local communities

Employees

Stewardship Code

As an institutional investor, Sony Life has announced its adoption of Japan’s Stewardship Code—a set of principles guiding the 
responsibilities of institutional investors.

Note:  Please refer to the following website for information about Sony Life’s basic stance and exercise of voting rights with respect to Japan’s Steward-
ship Code (Japanese only):
https://www.sonylife.co.jp/company/management/jsc/
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With Our Customers—Approaches Utilizing Customer Feedback—

Communication with Stakeholders

Sony Financial Group companies have in place a framework under which feedback received from each company’s customers on 
a daily basis is compiled and analyzed by divisions in charge of promoting customer satisfaction and raising quality. This feedback 
is reported to management and used to make recommendations on operational improvements and product and service enhance-
ments. As a result of this approach, the Sony Financial Group’s three businesses—life insurance, non-life insurance and banking—
have received high appraisals in customer satisfaction surveys conducted by outside institutions and the media. In addition, Sony 
Financial Group companies have worked to raise the quality of products and services to further satisfy customers.

 Sony Life
Sony Life conducts annual customer awareness surveys by 
post, and in fi scal 2017 received valuable feedback from 6,551 
policyholders. Also, the company has been conducting cus-
tomer satisfaction surveys for Lifeplanner channel policyhold-
ers on the services provided by Lifeplanner sales employees in 
charge, thereby striving to further raise the quality of service.
 Sony Life analyzes feedback from customers, identifying 
and studying issues that it shares with various internal depart-
ments in an effort to improve service.

Launch of Proxy Acquisition of Medical Certificates Service
When making insurance claims and applying for benefi ts, 
customers normally have to obtain a medical certifi cate at 
a medical institution. However, there have been cases of cus-
tomers, due to problems such as physical disabilities, being 
unable to visit medical institutions to obtain a medical certifi -
cate and thus having to wait a long time to make an insur-
ance claim or apply for benefi ts. In response, Sony Life 
launched a service for customers certifi ed as having care 
needs or physical disabilities to obtain the necessary medical 
certifi cate to make an insurance claim and apply for benefi ts. 
The service can help reduce such customers’ burden of 
insurance claim procedures.

Launch of Direct Benefit Claims Payment Service to 
Medical Facilities Providing Advanced Medical Care
Fees for professional advanced medical treatments are not 
covered by public health insurance, and patients bear the 
full costs. Therefore, in a routine claim procedure, a customer 
has to pay high-priced professional fees prior to receiving 
reimbursement under our insurance. To alleviate the tempo-
rary fi nancial burden of such customers, Sony Life launched 
a direct benefi t payment service for advanced medical treat-
ments, particularly heavy particle radio and proton beam 
therapy, which have high professional fees, to make direct 
payments to medical facilities providing such treatment.

Launch of SECOM Accident On-site Rush Service
In response to customers who want insurance to provide 
immediate support following an accident, Sony Assurance 
launched “SECOM Accident On-site Rush Service” in collabo-
ration with SECOM CO., LTD., to all customers for free. The 
service enables SECOM’s emergency response personnel to 
rush to an accident site 24/7, to support customers needing 
help, contact the police and arrange for ambulances and tow 
trucks. Through this service, Sony Assurance believes it can 
more than ever before reduce customers’ uneasiness after 
an accident.
▶Page 44:  Review of Operations and Analysis of Operating 

Performance Non-life Insurance Business

 Sony Bank
To heed feedback from customers and provide even better 
products and services, Sony Bank has been promoting VOC 
(Voice of Customer) activities with the aim of refl ecting opinions 
and requests from customers in measures centered on the 
customer offi ce. Specifi c feedback and related details are 
available on the Voice of Customer webpage of Sony Bank’s 
website.

New Approach for LGBT* on Mortgage Loans
Same-sex partners still face many fi nancial challenges in areas 
such as taxation and inheritance. Sony Bank has responded 
so that same-sex partners can use a mortgage pair loan** and 
provision of collateral*** from April 2018. Respecting diversity, 
Sony Bank will continue to respond to the diverse funding 
needs of customers.
 *  LGBT is an acronym for lesbian, gay, bisexual and transgender.
 **  A pair loan is a form of mortgage loan in which multiple borrowers 

(obligors) enter loan contracts for the same property.
 ***  Provision of collateral is a practice in which a co-owner of property 

provides equity as collateral.

 Sony Assurance
Leveraging its unique advantage as an insurer that communi-
cates directly with customers, Sony Assurance listens closely 
to its customers and strives to improve services as required 
and provides updates on specifi c improvement measures 
via its website. In addition, customer feedback is centrally 
managed, compiled and analyzed on a monthly basis by the 
Customer Response Service Department. Feedback is reported 

to management every quarter, and in particularly important 
cases, detailed reports are made on the causes of incidents 
and countermeasures are recommended as necessary. The 
feedback is also passed on to relevant departments, along 
with instructions on improvements and other matters. Based 
on this feedback, the company encourages daily efforts to 
enhance services and provide services of higher quality in 
meeting the needs of its customers. This commitment has 
earned Sony Assurance a solid reputation in customer satis-
faction surveys conducted by third parties.
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The Sony Financial Group seeks to promote fair and equitable transactions with institutions that provide fi nancial products and 
services and with suppliers and vendors of goods and services, along with insurance agencies, and maintain healthy relation-
ships with all of its business partners and thereby contribute to the sustainable development of society.

With Business Partners

With Local Communities—Social Contribution Activities—

Fair Trade
The Sony Financial Group has established the Confl icts of 
Interest Policy, the Basic Policy on Eradicating Anti-social 
Forces and the Policy for Preventing Corruption. As stated in 
our code of conduct, we comply with all applicable laws and 
regulations and conduct business activities ethically and in 
good faith. We engage in fair trade practices with all business 
partners on this basis.

Cooperation with the Sony Group
The Sony Financial Group ensures a certain degree of inde-
pendence from the Sony Group and maintains a fair, equitable 
and healthy relationship. Through this group-group connec-
tion, the Sony Financial Group will draw on the advanced tech-
nological expertise of the Sony Group and promote coopera-
tion to provide high-quality services to its customers.

Sony Life Volunteer Club
Social contribution is a well-established part of the corporate 
culture at Sony Life, where many employees discover the 
value of volunteer activities and contribute to society under 
the slogan “One Love One Trust.” For example, the Sony Life 
Volunteer Club was established by Sony Life employees in 
the wake of the Great Hanshin–Awaji Earthquake, and the 
Reconstruction Support Council was set up right after the 
Great East Japan Earthquake. In both groups, activities are 
undertaken by individuals, using donations from employees, 
and it is the members themselves who come up with and 
carry out a wide range of initiatives.

Partners (Independent Agencies)
Sony Life’s Partners (Sony Life refers to independent agencies 
as “Partners” not only because they are partners from a 
business standpoint but also because they are the lifelong 
partners of customers) constitute a critically important sales 
channel alongside Lifeplanner sales employees. Sony Life pro-
vides various systematic training programs for Partners and 
training related to products, along with expertise on sales tai-
lored to customer needs based on sales processes developed 
by the Company over the years.
 To provide high-quality services closely tied to regional 
communities, Sony Life’s Partners around the country faithfully 
fulfi ll their responsibilities as Partners to customers.

Selection of Major Activities (By Sony Life Volunteer Club)

•  Continuing support for the elderly victims of the Great Hanshin–
Awaji Earthquake

• Support for the Special Olympics Nippon Foundation* event

• Hosting youth education events at care houses

• Support for the Relay for Life** event

•  Activities to support reconstruction after the Great East Japan 
Earthquake

•  Support activities for areas affected by the Kumamoto earthquakes 
and heavy rainfall in northern Kyushu

 * “Special Olympics Nippon” is a public-interest incorporated foundation that pro-
vides opportunities for daily sports training to intellectually challenged people 
throughout the year while promoting their participation in athletic competitions 
that allow them to demonstrate their achievements.

** “Relay for Life” is a worldwide charity event in which persons battling cancer, 
their families and those who have lost loved ones to the disease walk around 
a track for 24 hours to help promote the eradication of cancer.
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Communication with Stakeholders

Life-planning Course
Since fi scal 2006, Sony Life has conducted life-planning courses, 
a hands-on learning program for students nationwide. Courses 
are conducted by Lifeplanner sales employees. The program is 
designed to foster students’ appreciation for the importance of 
leading a well-planned life, and working hard toward goals. 
 This program was launched following feedback from senior 
high school teachers indicating that “by utilizing life planning, we 
want to create opportunities for students to set future goals.” It 
is an experiential, classroom-based program in which students, 
with their whole lives ahead of them, visualize their personal 
dreams and aspirations. Lifeplanner sales employees serve as 
lecturers, providing advice on the funds necessary to achieve 
these and other goals, and offering support to enable students to 
see if their life plans are achievable from an economic standpoint.
 Feedback from the students has been positive, with com-
ments such as “With effort and ingenuity, I felt confi dent about 
realizing my dream,” “It was a good opportunity to think about 
my future lifestyle and career” and “I felt grateful that my parents 
are making ends meet to cover my living and educational 
expenses.” 
 By providing opportunities to think about life and money, 
Sony Life hopes many members of the next generation are able 
to make their own choices in their paths of life.

Life-planning Course

FY2017 Number of schools 158
Cumulative total
(As of July 1, 2018)

Number of schools 1,222 (cumulative)
Number of participating 
students

129,423

Shimajiro Hospital Visit Project “Issho ni Waraou  
Caravan”
As a joint project with Benesse Corporation’s preschooler edu-
cation and life support brand, Sony Life launched a project titled 
“Issho ni Waraou (Let’s Smile Together)  Caravan” in April 
2017, where the brand’s popular character Shimajiro visits chil-
dren’s hospitals to encourage them.
In addition, Sony Life has produced “Kosodate Guide” (a child-
care guidebook) with Kodomo Challenge that provides useful 
information for parents of children from infancy to preschool. 
Through various joint initiatives, Sony Life aims to encourage chil-
dren’s growth and dreams.

Matching Gift System
Sony Bank has introduced a “matching gift system” whereby a 
donation is made to volunteer groups according to the number 
of hours an employee spends volunteering on days off from 
work. In addition, Sony Bank has joined a volunteer center in 
Chiyoda Ward, Tokyo, to support the volunteer activities of its 
employees.

Sony Financial Group’s Donations and Grants for 
Fiscal 2017
Main Recipients of Donations and Other Assistance      Amount

NPO Sorabear Foundation ¥11,651,454

The Eye Mate, Inc. and its supporting groups 6,793,302

Special Olympics Nippon Foundation 5,500,000

Purchase of green power and J-Credits in fi scal 2017 3,344,565

Forest Conservation Project in Sumatra, Indonesia 1,432,480

The Tokyo Philharmonic Orchestra Public Interest 
Incorporated Foundation 1,000,000

Sony Education Foundation 1,000,000

Project Hand in Hand Japan 1,000,000

Others (incorporated associations, incorporated 
foundations, academic societies and others) 2,635,250

Total ¥34,357,051

Life-planning Course given by Sony Life
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With Our Employees—Approaches for the Success of All Employees—
Promotion of Diversity
The Sony Financial Group places signifi cant emphasis on a 
spirit of diversity, to better address various changes in the 
environment surrounding customers and their diverse value 
perceptions and to generate new value from different view-
points. As the number of employees increases, so does diver-
sity within the Group from a human resources perspective, 
with a greater number of women, foreign nationals and the 
mentally and physically challenged within the Group as well as 
more employees who are dealing with a range of situations, 
including childcare and nursing care. Various approaches are 
being applied to address these issues.

Work-life Balance
The Sony Financial Group promotes initiatives to help balance 
careers with private lives. Since its establishment, Sony Life 
has had a system in place that goes beyond what is required 
by law to enable employees who are raising children to con-
tinue working. The company was recognized by the Ministry of 
Health, Labour and Welfare as a company actively supporting 
efforts to raise the next generation of children. Moreover, Sony 
Assurance became the fi rst direct non-life insurer to receive 
this certifi cation*. Sony Bank has implemented an action plan 
to support employees balancing work and childcare and is 
providing a guidebook to publicize the social security system, 
etc., that is available for childbirth and childcare. Going for-
ward, by continuing to help employees balance child-raising 
responsibilities with work, Group companies will remain 
focused on proactively creating a work environment that is 
conducive to healthy childbirth and parenting.

* Sony Assurance is the fi rst direct non-life insurer to receive the certifi cation 
based on a survey by Sony Assurance conducted on August 29, 2012. Only 
those companies that have received the Kurumin logo certifi cation and have 
consented to be listed on the Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare’s 
website were surveyed. A direct non-life insurer refers to a Japanese 
non-life insurer that sells insurance products and provides services directly 
to customers without relying primarily on an insurance agency.

Initiatives for Fiscal 2020
Each Group company is working to achieve the following 
targets by March 31, 2021.

Sony Life Average monthly overtime per employee     
20 hours or less

Percentage of male employees taking childcare leave     
13% or higher

Sony Assurance Percentage of employees taking vacation leave     
75% or higher

Sony Bank Average monthly overtime per manager/supervisor     
30 hours or less

Promotion of Women’s Empowerment
For future growth, the Sony Financial Group regards its female 
employees as valuable human resources. When Sony Life was 
established, a female sales force was the mainstream in Japan’s 
life insurance industry. Nevertheless, Sony Life took the strategi-
cally bold step of deploying male Lifeplanner sales employees 
at the core of its sales operations. As a result, it achieved growth 
through the sale of policies tailored to customer needs based on 
the sophisticated knowledge and consulting capabilities of its life 
insurance/fi nancial professionals. However, to propose a wide 
range of solutions to the diversifi cation of customers’ lifestyles 
as times change and in search of excellent talent with a variety 
of careers, Sony Life has promoted the employment of female 
Lifeplanner sales personnel, offering them various kinds of sup-
port to expand their areas of activity. For example, Sony Life has 
promoted a cooperative study program for female Lifeplanner 
sales employees and implemented programs that enable 
women to maintain their jobs while also focusing on childcare 
and nursing care. Thus, Sony Life has concentrated on creating 
an employee-friendly working environment.

Initiatives for Fiscal 2020
Each Group company is working to achieve the following 
targets for female managers by March 31, 2021.

Sony Life Percentage of females in management positions*1

20% or higher

*1 Head offi ce manager, assistant manager

Sony Assurance Percentage of females in management positions*2

15% or higher

*2 Assistant manager or higher

Sony Bank Percentage of females in management positions*3

15% or higher

*3 Senior manager or higher

Return-to-work Seminar for Women on Maternity Leave
Sony Life holds a return-to-work seminar to support women 
in their careers and their lives as mothers. Nearly all women 
taking maternity leave successfully return to work after child-
birth. In the seminar, the department in charge explains to 
employees the process leading up to their return to work and 
the system to support working and parenting. The seminar is 
also an opportunity for women to interact with others who 
have already gone 
through the process, 
helping to eliminate 
the apprehension that 
some women on 
maternity leave may 
have, thereby leading 
to a successful return 
to work.

Return-to-work seminar
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Communication with Stakeholders

Training System for Lifeplanner Sales Employees at Sony Life (as of July 1, 2018)
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Employee Education
In addition to training at each Group company, training is 
jointly conducted at the Group level to encourage everyone to 
acquire a wider understanding of the Group’s business pur-
suits overall. These programs include life-planning courses, 
explanations of each company’s business activities and work-
place tours. Orientation for new graduates and training for 
employees in their second year are also conducted together 
as a Group.

Sample Programs and Initiatives for the Development 
of Employees

Self-development Program Group training sessions and opportunities to 
take correspondence courses for employees 
working independently to develop their skills. 

Management 
Skill-development Program

Conducted jointly by Sony Financial Group 
companies as a part of efforts to improve the 
managerial capabilities of management-level 
employees.

In-house Inter-departmental 
Training Program

Work experience in different departments for 
a certain period of time allowing for better 
understanding of different operations or to 
achieve career plan objectives.

Training of Global Human 
Resources

With an eye on overseas business expansion 
in the future, the Sony Financial Group is 
conducting initiatives, such as overseas 
actuary training.

Education and Training of Lifeplanner Sales 
Employees
After joining the Company, Lifeplanner sales employees at Sony 
Life take a three-year B.T.P. (basic training program) to develop 
the mental attitude, knowledge, skills and conduct required of 
a Lifeplanner sales employee.
 Through B.T.P., Lifeplanner sales employees are educated 
and trained to communicate to customers the necessity and 
importance of life insurance, listen to customers talk about 
cherished ideals, concerns and needs, propose reasonable life 
insurance that can safely protect them at any time and support 
customers through all stages of life with high-quality services 
even after a contract has been made.
 Levels of knowledge and skills learned in training are con-
fi rmed by graduation tests conducted every training period. The 
passing of the graduation test is also a prerequisite for taking 
other tests such as an assurance sales employee qualifi cation 
examination for handling automobile insurance at Sony Assur-
ance and a banking agency business qualifi cation examination 
for handling mortgage loans, etc., at Sony Bank, providing sales 
employees with a defi nitive base as Lifeplanner sales employees 
on which they are able to advance their career and grow.
 In addition, through OJT activities such as process meetings, 
role-playing and apprentice fi eldwork with offi ce managers on a 
regular basis, Lifeplanner sales employees can connect what they 
learned in training with practical use. As Lifeplanner sales employ-
ees, they are trained to provide a higher quality of service to their 
customers.
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Environmental Protection Activities

The Sony Financial Group recognizes that humankind faces a critical challenge in protecting the global environment. The major 
subsidiaries have each established environmental policies, and through everyday business activities, they carry out initiatives 
that give due consideration to environmental protection.

Use of Green Power
Sony Life became the fi rst Japanese life insur-
ance company to introduce a Green Power 
Certifi cation System, which enables compa-
nies to use green power in their business 
activities and thus reduce CO2 emissions. Sony 
Assurance and Sony Bank adopt the J-Credit 
Scheme* to help reduce CO2 emissions. Sony 
Bank offsets 100% of CO2 emissions caused 
by its power usage (excluding the portion of power usage 
in outsourced operations) as a “Carbon Offset Bank.”
 In this way, each Group company contributes to the wider 
use of natural sources of power such as solar and wind power, 
geothermal power, and biomass. In fi scal 2017, the entire 
Group purchased green power certifi cates and J-Credits 
equivalent to 1,560 MWh.
* The J-Credit Scheme is a system whereby the government certifi es credits for 
the reduction or absorption of greenhouse gas emissions such as CO2 through 
measures including the introduction of energy-saving equipment or forest 
management.

Acquisition of ISO 14001 Certifi cation
Sony Life, Sony Assurance and Sony Bank* have acquired 
ISO 14001 certifi cation, the international standard for environ-
mental management systems. All three companies promote 
energy-saving and natural resource-saving activities such as 
targets for reduced energy and photocopier paper usage, and 
green procurement to raise the percentage of eco-products 
used in offi ce supplies.
* ISO 14001 certifi cation covers the head offi ces of Sony Life and Sony Assur-
ance, along with Sony Bank’s head offi ce and CONSULTING PLAZA. The 
Sony Financial Group conducts regular internal environmental audits of ISO 
14001-certifi ed offi ces, and the audit results are reported to top management.

Donating to the Sorabear Foundation
Automobile insurance, one of Sony Assurance’s mainstay 
products, supports the automotive lifestyles of its customers. 
While automobiles add affl uence and convenience to our lives, 
exhaust gases emitted while driving are a cause of global 
warming. For this reason, Sony Assurance considers promot-
ing initiatives to prevent global warming, even a little, is its 
social responsibility. Teaming up with the Sorabear Founda-
tion, a non-profi t organization that promotes the spread of 
renewable energies and environmental education, Sony Assur-
ance has carried out a program to install solar power genera-
tors at kindergartens since 2009.
 Since 2010, Sony Life has also participated in the activities 
of the Sorabear Foundation, making donations equivalent to 
some printing expenses, etc., which has been reduced with 
the introduction of the CD-ROM version (since 2010) and the 
website version (since 2017) of “guidebook/policy conditions 
of insurance contracts.”

 Donations to the Sorabear Foundation from Sony Assur-
ance and Sony Life are used to provide Sorabear with power 
generation equipment—solar power generators—for kinder-
gartens and nursery schools around the country. In fi scal 
2017, Sony Assurance made a donation to a nursery school 
in Yamaguchi prefecture and to a kindergarten in Kyoto pre-
fecture, while Sony Life donated to a kindergarten in Fukui pre-
fecture. In the program, Sony Assurance has donated a total 
of 22 solar power generators, and Sony Life a total of eight 
solar power generators (as of July 1, 2018).

Reducing CO2 Emissions by Switching to Paperless 
Contract Procedures and Electronic Issuance of 
Documents
The Sony Financial Group has been striving to conserve paper 
resources and cut down on CO2 emissions related to postal 
mailings by shifting to paperless documentation for certain 
contract procedures and transactions. 
 Sony Life has adopted paperless application procedures 
(for conservation) after the initial contract has been made, such 
as applications for new contracts, changes in payment meth-
ods, changes in contract contents, etc. As a result, Sony Life 
has reduced the use of copier paper.
 Sony Assurance has made it possible to apply for automo-
bile insurance policies and medical policies online, thereby 
avoiding the need for printing and mailing of insurance applica-
tion forms and other documents. Also of note, Sony Assur-
ance takes an environmentally conscious approach to 
resources, exemplifi ed by a paperless insurance certifi cate 
discount of ¥500 on automobile insurance premiums when 
customers who buy a policy online opt not to have certifi cates 
of insurance and other documents printed and mailed. 
 As an Internet bank, Sony Bank aims to use as little paper as 
possible when dealing with customers with such things as trans-
action slips, passbooks and explanations of products. Sony Bank 
has promoted a switch to electronic delivery of investment trust 
transaction documents that have previously been written.

Ceremony for the donation of Sorabear power generation 
equipment to the Incorporated School of Kusaka Gakuen, 
Saienji Kindergarten, in Yamaguchi, in June 2017.
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Consolidated subsidiaries

Affiliated companies accounted for under the equity method

Sales and referrals of the others’ products

Shareholding

Non-life Insurance Business
Sony Assurance Inc.

Sony Financial 
Holdings Inc.Sony Corporation

Life Insurance Business
Sony Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

Banking Business
Sony Bank Inc.

Nursing Care Business
Sony Lifecare Inc.

Venture Capital Business
Sony Financial Ventures Inc.

Banking Business
SmartLink Network 
Hong Kong Limited

Banking Business
Sony Payment Services Inc.

Life Insurance Business
AEGON Sony Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

Life Insurance Business
SA Reinsurance Ltd.

Nursing Care Business
Lifecare Design Inc.

Nursing Care Business
Proud Life Inc.

General Meeting of Shareholders

Board of Directors

Executive Committee

Sony Financial Holdings Inc.

Audit Department

Audit & Supervisory Board

Audit & Supervisory Board Members

Business Execution Departments

Name Sony Financial Holdings Inc.

Established April 1, 2004

Head offi ce 1-9-2, Otemachi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, Japan

Business Management control of subsidiaries (life insurance companies, a non-life insurance company, a bank, and others) 
specifi ed by the Insurance Business Act of Japan and the Banking Act of Japan and all duties incidental to that role.

Number of employees SFH: 78
(Consolidated: 10,719, Life insurance business: 8,246, Non-life insurance business: 1,234, Banking business: 591, 
Others: 587, Parent: 61)

Common stock ¥19,927 million

Notes: 1.  The number of employees of SFH includes 11 belonging to the life insurance business, 1 belonging to the non-life insurance business, 5 belonging to 
the banking business, and 61 belonging to the parent.

 2. The number of employees stated in “Others” is the number of employees belonging to the nursing care business at subsidiaries.

Sony Financial Group Organizational Chart of Business Operations
(As of July 10, 2018)

Organizational Chart 
(As of July 1, 2018)

Corporate Profi le
(As of March 31, 2018)

83Sony Financial Holdings Inc. Annual Report 2018

C
orporate S

ection



Profi les of Group Companies
(As of July 10, 2018)

Life Insurance Business

Name Established Head offi ce Business
Common 
stock Share ownership

Sony Life Insurance Co., Ltd. August 10, 
1979

1-9-2, Otemachi, 
Chiyoda-ku, 
Tokyo, Japan

Life insurance 
business

¥70,000 
million

Sony Financial Holdings Inc. 
100%

AEGON Sony Life 
Insurance Co., Ltd.

August 29, 
2007

5-52-2, Jingumae, 
Shibuya-ku, 
Tokyo, Japan

Life insurance 
business

¥18,450 
million

Sony Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 
50%

AEGON International B.V. 
50%

SA Reinsurance Ltd. October 29, 
2009

British Bermuda Reinsurance 
business

¥15,900 
million

Sony Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 
50%

AEGON International B.V. 
50%

Non-life Insurance Business

Name Established Head offi ce Business
Common 
stock Share ownership

Sony Assurance Inc. June 10, 
1998

5-37-1, Kamata, 
Ota-ku, Tokyo, Japan

Non-life insurance 
business

¥20,000 
million

Sony Financial Holdings Inc. 
100%

Banking Business

Name Established Head offi ce Business
Common 
stock Share ownership

Sony Bank Inc. April 2, 
2001

2-1-6, Uchisaiwaicho, 
Chiyoda-ku, 
Tokyo, Japan

Banking business ¥31,000 
million

Sony Financial Holdings Inc. 
100%

Sony Payment 
Services Inc.

September 1, 
2006

1-3-13, Takanawa, 
Minato-ku, 
Tokyo, Japan

Credit card 
settlement 
services

¥488 
million

Sony Bank Inc. 57%, 
4 other companies

SmartLink Network 
Hong Kong Limited

February 27, 
2013

Hong Kong, China Credit card 
settlement 
services

¥13 
million

Sony Payment Services Inc.
100%

Other (Nursing Care Business)

Name Established Head offi ce Business
Common 
stock Share ownership

Sony Lifecare Inc. April 1, 
2014

3-11-2, Shibuya, 
Shibuya-ku, 
Tokyo, Japan

Management 
control of companies 
handling the nursing 
care business, and 
other duties incidental 
to that role

¥2,625 
million

Sony Financial Holdings Inc. 
100%

Lifecare Design Inc. October 5, 
1999

3-11-2, Shibuya, 
Shibuya-ku, 
Tokyo, Japan

Planning, development 
and operation of 
nursing care homes

¥1,495 
million

Sony Lifecare Inc. 
100%

Proud Life Inc. July 3, 
2006

2-8-4, Kitasaiwai, 
Nishi-ku, Yokohama, 
Kanagawa Prefecture, Japan

Management, operation 
and planning of 
nursing care homes 
such as “Hanakotoba”

¥3 
million

Sony Lifecare Inc. 
100%

Other (Venture Capital Business)

Name Established Head offi ce Business
Common 
stock Share ownership

Sony Financial Ventures Inc. July 10, 
2018

1-9-2, Otemachi, 
Chiyoda-ku, 
Tokyo, Japan

Venture capital 
business

¥10 
million

Sony Financial Holdings Inc. 
100%

84 Sony Financial Holdings Inc. Annual Report 2018



By shareholder type

Foreign investors 20.86%

Financial institutions 12.27%

Individuals and others 2.79%Corporations 63.16%

Financial instruments firms 0.89%

Information on Common Stock, Shares Outstanding
(As of March 31, 2018)

Date
Increase in Issued 

Shares
Total Number of 
Shares Issued

Increase in 
Common Stock
 (Millions of yen)

Common Stock  
(Millions of yen)

Increase in 
Capital Surplus 
(Millions of yen)

Capital Surplus 
(Millions of yen)

August 7, 2017 (Note) 27,513 435,027,513 27 19,927 27 195,304

Note:  Issued new shares as restricted stock compensation (third-party allocation). The issue price per share was ¥2,020 and the amount added to common 
stock was ¥1,010.

Total number of shares issued 

435,027,513

Stock Information 

Distribution of Share Ownership 
(As of March 31, 2018)

Stock Exchange Listing 
(As of July 1, 2018)

The First Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange (Securities code: 8729)

Major Shareholders 
(As of March 31, 2018)

Name
Number of 

Shares Held

Percentage of 
Ownership (excluding 

treasury stocks)

Sony Corporation 274,050,000 63.00

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust Account) 14,265,800 3.27

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account) 13,662,400 3.14

STATE STREET BANK AND TRUST COMPANY 13,272,066 3.05

Trust & Custody Services Bank, Ltd. (Securities Investment Trust Account) 3,414,600 0.78

NOMURA PB NOMINEES LIMITED OMNIBUS-MARGIN (CASHPB) 3,394,680 0.78

GOLDMAN, SACHS & CO. REG 3,129,914 0.71

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account 5) 3,096,700 0.71

JP MORGAN CHASE BANK 380055 3,001,173 0.68

STATE STREET BANK WEST CLIENT – TREATY 505234 2,885,906 0.66
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62.5 yen

Dividend Policy

Dividends

Dividend per Share

Basic Policy on Returning Profi ts to Shareholders
SFH aims for steady increases in dividends in line with earnings growth over the medium to long term, while securing suffi cient internal 
reserves to ensure the fi nancial soundness of Group companies and to invest in growth fi elds. Management will examine earnings 
growth over the medium to long term by placing more importance on economic value-based profi t indicators that are more suitable 
for evaluating the growth of the life insurance business, in addition to statutory profi t. Furthermore, management will determine spe-
cifi c dividend amounts for each year by taking into account a comprehensive range of factors surrounding the Sony Financial Group.

 Dividends for fi scal 2017 were ¥60 per share, an increase of ¥5. This was approved by resolution of the General Meeting of 
Shareholders on June 22, 2018.
 For fi scal 2018, after considering the business environment, the expansion of the Group’s business volume and the level of 
economic value-based profi t growth, SFH forecasts dividends of ¥62.5 per share, an increase of ¥2.5 from the dividends of ¥60 
per share for fi scal 2017.
 SFH pays dividends once a year as a year-end dividend. The Articles of Incorporation of SFH stipulate that it may also issue an 
interim dividend. As for who makes decisions about the payment of dividends, the General Meeting of Shareholders decides the 
year-end dividend, while the Board of Directors decides the interim dividend.

Note:  Although a stock split was conducted during fi scal 2011, the dividend per share fi gures are calculated assuming that the stock split was conducted at the 
beginning of fi scal 2008.
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Millions of yen

2017 2018

Assets

Cash and due from banks ¥     206,481 ¥     327,633

Call loans and bills bought 61,900 65,500

Monetary claims purchased 573 5,378

Money held in trust 296,877 291,582

Securities 8,857,436 9,581,206

Loans 1,720,004 1,785,877

Tangible fi xed assets 123,614 106,051

Land 83,007 63,106

Buildings 34,964 32,468

Leased assets 715 6,074

Construction in progress 132 5

Other tangible fi xed assets 4,794 4,397

Intangible fi xed assets 30,776 35,684

Software 30,146 35,059

Goodwill 49 583

Leased assets — 0

Other intangible fi xed assets 579 40

Due from agencies 0 —

Due from reinsurers 1,438 934

Foreign exchanges 7,268 9,346

Other assets 148,650 168,736

Net defi ned benefi t asset 2,752 3,426

Deferred tax assets 15,313 21,242

Reserve for possible loan losses (1,243) (1,152)

Total Assets ¥11,471,845 ¥12,401,446

SFH Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheets
Sony Financial Holdings Inc.

As of March 31, 2017 and 2018
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Millions of yen

2017 2018

Liabilities

Policy reserves and others ¥8,113,153 ¥8,763,349

Reserve for outstanding claims 71,306 74,712 

Policy reserves 8,036,118 8,683,153 

Reserve for policyholders’ dividends 5,729 5,484 

Due to agencies 2,616 1,873 

Due to reinsurers 3,737 5,563 

Deposits 2,071,091 2,159,246 

Call money and bills sold 70,000 96,000 

Borrowed money 90,000 173,944 

Foreign exchanges 108 228 

Bonds payable 10,000 20,000 

Other liabilities 427,866 470,501 

Reserve for employees’ bonuses 3,694 3,906 

Net defi ned benefi t liability 31,399 33,179 

Reserve for directors’ retirement benefi ts 366 —

Reserve under the special laws 46,182 48,135 

Reserve for price fl uctuations 46,182 48,135 

Deferred tax liabilities — 0 

Deferred tax liabilities on land revaluation 488 109 

Total Liabilities 10,870,705 11,776,039 

Net Assets

Shareholders’ equity

Common stock 19,900 19,927 

Capital surplus 195,277 191,157 

Retained earnings 255,062 283,911 

Treasury stock (81) (55)

Total shareholders’ equity 470,157 494,941 

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities, net of taxes 134,849 133,991 

Net deferred gains (losses) on hedging instruments, net of taxes (1,154) (902)

Land revaluation, net of taxes (1,465) (2,439)

Remeasurements of defi ned benefi t plans, net of taxes (2,756) (1,929)

Total accumulated other comprehensive income 129,472 128,719 

Subscription rights to shares 49 97 

Non-controlling interests 1,460 1,648 

Total Net Assets 601,139 625,406

Total Liabilities and Net Assets ¥11,471,845 ¥12,401,446

See accompanying “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.”
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Millions of yen

2017 2018

Ordinary Revenues ¥1,381,667 ¥1,503,630
Ordinary Revenues from the Life Insurance Business 1,240,764 1,347,762

Income from insurance premiums 955,252 1,057,411
Insurance premiums 952,547 1,054,867
Ceded reinsurance commissions 2,704 2,544

Investment income 244,839 242,703
Interest income and dividends 147,785 157,276
Income from money held in trust, net 4,493 4,490
Gains on trading securities, net 152 2
Gains on sale of securities 1,308 0
Gains on redemption of securities — 1
Foreign exchange gains, net 14,670 —
Other investment income 5 1
Gains on separate accounts, net 76,423 80,931

Other ordinary income 40,672 47,646
Ordinary Revenues from the Non-life Insurance Business 102,337 110,091

Underwriting income 100,329 108,316
Net premiums written 100,274 108,253
Interest and dividends on deposits of premiums 55 62

Investment income 1,957 1,731
Interest income and dividends 1,327 1,324
Gains on sale of securities 685 470
Gains on redemption of securities 0 —
Transfer to interest and dividends on deposits of premiums (55) (62)

Other ordinary income 49 43
Ordinary Revenues from the Banking Business 38,318 39,712

Interest income 26,534 28,344
Interest income on loans 16,065 17,064
Interest income and dividends on securities 10,394 11,204
Interest income on call loans and bills bought — 2
Interest income on deposits with banks 63 63
Interest income on interest rate swaps 8 —
Other interest income 1 9

Fees and commissions 6,673 6,751
Other operating income 4,871 3,823

Gains on foreign exchange transactions, net 4,431 3,456
Others 439 366

Other ordinary income 238 794
Other 247 6,064

Other ordinary income 247 6,064

(Continued on next page)

Consolidated Statements of Income and Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Sony Financial Holdings Inc.

For the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2018

(1) Consolidated Statements of Income
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Millions of yen

2017 2018

Ordinary Expenses ¥1,315,341 ¥1,436,787
Ordinary Expenses from the Life Insurance Business 1,186,465 1,296,417

Insurance claims and other payments 372,407 436,538
Insurance claims 84,178 92,342
Annuity payments 12,019 12,566
Insurance benefi ts 98,252 119,294
Surrender payments 168,409 199,263
Other payments 3,122 3,314
Reinsurance premiums 6,423 9,756

Provision for policy reserves and others 596,742 638,343
Provision for reserve for outstanding claims 3,330 2,211
Provision for policy reserves 593,411 636,131
Interest portion of reserve for policyholders’ dividends 0 0

Investment expenses 35,937 32,889
Interest expenses 44 151
Losses on sale of securities — 0
Losses on redemption of securities 53 2
Losses on derivatives, net 30,050 11,403
Foreign exchange losses, net — 15,280
Provision for reserve for possible loan losses — 23
Depreciation of real estate for rent and others 1,779 1,680
Other investment expenses 4,008 4,346

Operating expenses 136,645 139,420
Other ordinary expenses 44,733 49,226

Ordinary Expenses from the Non-life Insurance Business 96,639 102,798
Underwriting expenses 70,094 73,943

Net losses paid 50,181 52,482
Loss adjustment expenses 7,458 8,067
Net commission and brokerage fees 1,187 1,295
Provision for reserve for outstanding losses and claims 798 1,194
Provision for underwriting reserves 10,469 10,903

Investment expenses 3 2
Losses on sale of securities 0 —
Other investment expenses 3 2

Operating, general and administrative expenses 26,520 28,848
Other ordinary expenses 19 4

 (Continued on next page)
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Millions of yen

2017 2018

Ordinary Expenses from the Banking Business ¥31,274 ¥30,428
Interest expenses 8,554 7,656 

Interest expenses on deposits 5,104 5,320 
Interest expenses on call money and bills sold (17) (73)
Interest on borrowed money 19 0 
Interest expenses on bonds 74 40 
Interest expenses on interest rate swaps 3,372 2,360 
Other interest expenses 0 8 

Fees and commissions 3,648 4,676 
Other operating expenses 86 105 
General and administrative expenses 18,843 17,733 
Other ordinary expenses 142 257 

Other 962 7,141 
Other ordinary expenses 962 7,141 

Ordinary Profi t 66,326 66,843 
Extraordinary Gains — 13,258 

Gains on disposal of fi xed assets — 13,258 
Extraordinary Losses 2,032 2,180 

Losses on disposal of fi xed assets 134 187 
Impairment losses 118 2 
Provision for reserve under the special laws 1,772 1,953 

Provision for reserve for price fl uctuations 1,772 1,953 
Others 7 36 

Provision for Reserve for Policyholders’ Dividends 4,153 3,271 
Income Before Income Taxes 60,140 74,650 
Income Taxes-Current 23,129 29,008 
Income Taxes-Deferred (4,724) (6,344)
Total Income Taxes 18,405 22,664 
Profi t 41,734 51,985 
Profi t Attributable to Non-controlling Interests 113 90 
Profi t Attributable to Owners of the Parent ¥41,621 ¥51,895

See accompanying “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.”

Millions of yen

2017 2018

Profi t ¥ 41,734 ¥51,985
Other Comprehensive Income

Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities, net of taxes (22,515) (857)
Net deferred gains (losses) on hedging instruments, net of taxes 1,192 251 
Remeasurements of defi ned benefi t plans, net of taxes 1,021 827 
Total other comprehensive income (20,301) 221 

Comprehensive Income ¥ 21,433 ¥52,207
Details:

Comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent ¥ 21,301 ¥52,116
Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests ¥      131 ¥       91

(2) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statements of Income (Continued)
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Sony Financial Holdings Inc.

For the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2018

Millions of yen

2017

Shareholders’ equity

Common stock
Capital 
surplus

Retained 
earnings

Treasury 
stock

 Total 
  shareholders’

  equity

Balance at the beginning of 
the period

¥19,900 ¥195,277 ¥238,079 ¥  (0) ¥453,256

Cumulative effects of changes 
in accounting policies

— — 105 — 105 

Restated balance at the 
beginning of the period

19,900 195,277 238,185 (0) 453,362 

Changes during the period
Dividends from surplus — — (23,924) — (23,924)
Profi t attributable to owners 
of the parent — — 41,621 — 41,621 
Purchase of treasury stock — — — (81) (81)
Adjustments due to change 
of scope of consolidation

— — (818) — (818)

Net changes of items other 
than shareholders’ equity — — — — —

Total changes during the period — — 16,877 (81) 16,795 
Balance at the end of the period ¥19,900 ¥195,277 ¥255,062 ¥(81) ¥470,157 

Millions of yen

2017

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Subscription 
rights to 
shares

Non-controlling 
interests

Total net 
assets

Net unrealized 
gains (losses) on 
available-for-sale 

securities, 
net of taxes

Net deferred 
gains (losses) 
on hedging 
instruments, 
net of taxes

Land 
revaluation, 
net of taxes

Remeasure-
ments of 
defi ned 

benefi t plans, 
net of taxes

Total 
accumulated 

other 
comprehensive 

income

Balance at the beginning of 
the period

¥157,364 ¥(2,347) ¥(1,465) ¥(3,760) ¥149,791 ¥— ¥1,329 ¥604,377

Cumulative effects of changes 
in accounting policies

— — — — — — — 105 

Restated balance at the 
beginning of the period

157,364 (2,347) (1,465) (3,760) 149,791 — 1,329 604,482 

Changes during the period
Dividends from surplus — — — — — — — (23,924)
Profi t attributable to owners 
of the parent

— — — — — — — 41,621 

Purchase of treasury stock — — — — — — — (81)
Adjustments due to change 
of scope of consolidation

— — — — — — — (818)

Net changes of items other 
than shareholders’ equity

(22,515) 1,192 — 1,003 (20,319) 49 131 (20,138)

Total changes during the period (22,515) 1,192 — 1,003 (20,319) 49 131 (3,343)
Balance at the end of the period ¥134,849 ¥(1,154) ¥(1,465) ¥(2,756) ¥129,472 ¥49 ¥1,460 ¥601,139 

 (Continued on next page)
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets (Continued)
Millions of yen

2018

Shareholders’ equity

Common stock
Capital 
surplus

Retained 
earnings

Treasury 
stock

 Total 
 shareholders’

 equity

Balance at the beginning of 
the period

¥19,900 ¥195,277 ¥255,062 ¥(81) ¥470,157

Changes during the period
Issuance of new shares 27 27 — — 55 
Dividends from surplus — — (23,922) — (23,922)
Profi t attributable to owners 
of the parent

— — 51,895 — 51,895 

Disposal of treasury shares — (5) — 26 21 
Transfer of loss on disposal 
of treasury shares

— 5 (5) — —

Reversal of land revaluation — — 973 — 973 
Adjustments due to change 
of scope of consolidation

— — (92) — (92)

Change in ownership interest 
of parent due to transactions 
with non-controlling interests

— (4,147) — — (4,147)

Net changes of items other 
than shareholders’ equity

— — — — —

Total changes during the period 27 (4,119) 28,849 26 24,784 
Balance at the end of the period ¥19,927 ¥191,157 ¥283,911 ¥(55) ¥494,941

Millions of yen

2018

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Subscription 
rights to 
shares

Non-controlling 
interests

Total net 
assets

Net unrealized 
gains (losses) on 
available-for-sale 

securities, 
net of taxes

Net deferred 
gains (losses) 
on hedging 
instruments, 
net of taxes

Land 
revaluation, 
net of taxes

Remeasure-
ments of 
defi ned 

benefi t plans, 
net of taxes

Total 
accumulated 

other 
comprehensive 

income

Balance at the beginning of 
the period

¥134,849 ¥(1,154) ¥(1,465) ¥(2,756) ¥129,472 ¥49 ¥1,460 ¥601,139

Changes during the period
Issuance of new shares — — — — — — — 55 
Dividends from surplus — — — — — — — (23,922)
Profi t attributable to owners 
of the parent

— — — — — — — 51,895 

Disposal of treasury shares — — — — — — — 21 
Transfer of loss on disposal 
of treasury shares

— — — — — — — —

Reversal of land revaluation — — — — — — — 973 
Adjustments due to change 
of scope of consolidation

— — — — — — — (92)

Change in ownership interest 
of parent due to transactions 
with non-controlling interests

— — — — — — — (4,147)

Net changes of items other 
than shareholders’ equity

(857) 251 (973) 827 (752) 48 187 (516)

Total changes during the period (857) 251 (973) 827 (752) 48 187 24,267 
Balance at the end of the period ¥133,991 ¥   (902) ¥(2,439) ¥(1,929) ¥128,719 ¥97 ¥1,648 ¥625,406

See accompanying “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.”
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Millions of yen

2017 2018
Cash fl ows from operating activities

Income before income taxes ¥      60,140 ¥      74,650
Depreciation of real estate for rent and others 1,779 1,680 
Depreciation and amortization 10,944 11,828 
Impairment losses 118 2 
Amortization of goodwill 22 32 
Increase (decrease) in reserve for outstanding claims 4,128 3,405 
Increase (decrease) in policy reserve 603,880 647,035 
Interest portion of reserve for policyholders’ dividends 0 0 
Provision for (reversal of) reserve for policyholders’ dividends 4,153 3,271 
Increase (decrease) in reserve for possible loan losses (65) (140)
Increase (decrease) in net defi ned benefi t liability 3,020 2,363 
Increase (decrease) in reserve for directors’ retirement benefi ts 14 (176)
Increase (decrease) in reserve for price fl uctuations 1,772 1,953 
Interest income and dividends (175,647) (186,943)
(Gains) losses on securities (77,393) (80,057)
Interest expenses 8,636 8,327 
Losses (gains) on derivatives 30,050 11,403 
Exchange (gains) losses (10,843) 23,489 
(Gains) losses on disposal of tangible fi xed assets 107 (13,283)
Equity in (gains) losses of affi liates 3,551 2,338 
Net (increase) decrease in loans (195,446) (56,745)
Net increase (decrease) in deposits 156,005 87,987 
Net increase (decrease) in borrowed money (excluding subordinated borrowings) 50,000 80,000 
Net increase (decrease) in call money and bills sold 70,000 26,000 
Net (increase) decrease in call loans and bills bought 311 (4,805)
Net (increase) decrease in foreign exchange (assets) (6,129) (2,077)
Net increase (decrease) in foreign exchange (liabilities) 21 119 
Others, net (1,710) 15,506 
Subtotal 541,424 657,168 
Interest and dividends received 188,230 197,007 
Interest paid (8,730) (8,484)
Policyholders’ dividends paid (3,430) (3,517)
Income taxes paid (25,047) (22,451)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 692,445 819,721 

Cash fl ows from investing activities
Net (increase) decrease in deposits — 5 
Investments in money held in trust (76) (101)
Proceeds from money held in trust 5,160 6,532 
Purchases of securities (1,171,569) (1,104,737)
Proceeds from sale and redemption of securities 375,241 427,925 
Investments in loans (57,798) (60,315)
Collections of loans 27,949 28,761 
Net gains (losses) from the settlement of derivative fi nancial instruments (35,401) (22,997)
Net increase (decrease) in collateral for securities lending transactions 247,803 (6,719)
Others, net — 32,553 
Total of net cash provided by (used in) investment transactions (608,689) (699,092)
Total of net cash provided by (used in) operating activities and investment transactions 83,755 120,629 
Purchases of tangible fi xed assets (3,977) (2,049)
Proceeds from sales of tangible fi xed assets — 36,700 
Purchases of intangible fi xed assets (9,024) (12,481)
Purchase of securities of non-consolidated subsidiaries — (339)
Purchase of securities of affi liates (3,045) (3,450)
Others, net (12) (132)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (624,749) (680,845)

Cash fl ows from fi nancing activities
Proceeds from debt borrowing — 5,266 
Repayments of debt — (5,133)
Cash dividends paid (23,925) (23,921)
Proceeds from issuance of bonds — 19,938 
Payments for redemption of bonds (10,000) (10,000)
Purchase of treasury stock (81) —
Payments from changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in change in scope of consolidation — (171)
Others, net (51) (474)
Net cash provided by (used in) fi nancing activities (34,057) (14,496)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (1) (2)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 33,636 124,377 
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents resulting from change of scope of consolidation 1,124 373 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 233,620 268,381 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period ¥    268,381 ¥    393,133

See accompanying “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.”
Note:   The above Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows have been prepared based on Article 210-10 of Ordinance for Enforcement of the Insurance Business Act 

of Japan.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Sony Financial Holdings Inc.

For the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2018
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1  Basis of Presenting Consolidated Financial Statements

 Sony Financial Holdings Inc. (“SFH”) and its domestic subsidiaries maintain their accounting records and prepare their fi nancial 
statements in Japanese yen in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Companies Act of Japan, the Insurance Business 
Act of Japan and the Banking Act of Japan and in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and practices in 
Japan, which differ in certain respects from the application and disclosure requirements of generally accepted accounting princi-
ples and practices under the International Financial Reporting Standards.

2  Principles of Consolidation

 (1) Scope of consolidation
Consolidated subsidiaries: 8 companies

  Company names
   Sony Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
   Sony Assurance Inc.
   Sony Bank Inc.
   Sony Payment Services Inc.
   SmartLink Network Hong Kong Limited
   Sony Lifecare Inc.
   Lifecare Design Inc.
   Proud Life Inc.

Non-consolidated subsidiaries:
  Main companies
 There are no main non-consolidated subsidiaries. Non-consolidated subsidiaries are excluded from the scope of consolidation 

for the current year because they are immaterial in light of the total assets, ordinary revenues, profi t or loss (amounts equivalent 
to the Group’s interests in these companies), retained earnings (amounts equivalent to the Group’s interests in these compa-
nies) and accumulated other comprehensive income (amounts equivalent to the Group’s interests in these companies) and their 
exclusion from the scope of consolidation does not hinder a rational judgment of the Sony Financial Group’s fi nancial position 
and results of operations.

Change in the scope of consolidation:
 Proud Life Inc., a nursing care provider, has been included in the scope of consolidation from the year ended March 31, 2018, 

due to its increased importance. Business results of the company are included in “Other” in the consolidated statements of 
income.

  (2) Application of the equity method
Affi liates accounted for by the equity method: 2 companies

  Company names  
   AEGON Sony Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
   SA Reinsurance Ltd.

Non-consolidated subsidiaries and affi liates that are not accounted for by the equity method: 
  Main companies
 There are no main non-consolidated subsidiaries or affi liates. Non-consolidated subsidiaries and affi liates are not accounted for 

by the equity method because they are immaterial in light of the profi t or loss (amounts equivalent to the Group’s interests in these 
companies) and retained earnings (amounts equivalent to the Group’s interests in these companies) and their exclusion does not 
hinder a rational judgment of the Sony Financial Group’s fi nancial position and results of operations.

 (3) Fiscal year-end of consolidated subsidiaries
 Fiscal year-end of all consolidated subsidiaries is March 31, the same date as the consolidated fi nancial statements of SFH.

 (4) Amortization of goodwill
 Goodwill is equally amortized using the straight-line method over a period of up to 20 years.

3  Note on Going Concerns

 There is no related information to be reported.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(For the year ended March 31, 2018)
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4  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

 (1) Securities
 Securities, including monetary claims purchased which are equivalent to securities, and securities managed as assets of money 

held in trust, are stated in the following manner: Securities held for trading purposes (“trading securities”) are stated at fair value 
with unrealized gains and losses charged to income. The cost of such securities sold is determined by the moving-average 
method. Held-to-maturity securities and policy-reserve-matching bonds held in accordance with the “Temporary Treatment 
of Accounting and Auditing concerning Policy-Reserve-Matching Bonds in the Insurance Industry” (The Japanese Institute of 
Certifi ed Public Accounts Industry Audit Committee Report No. 21, issued on November 16, 2000; hereinafter “the Industry 
Audit Committee Report No. 21”) are stated at amortized cost (straight-line method) using the moving-average method. Avail-
able-for-sale securities whose fair values are readily determinable are stated at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets 
based on market prices prevailing at each balance sheet date, with unrealized gains (losses), net of taxes, included in net 
assets and acquisition costs calculated using the moving-average method. Available-for-sale securities whose fair values are 
deemed extremely diffi cult to determine are stated at acquisition cost based on the moving-average method.

 The overview of risk management policies of policy-reserve-matching bonds is as follows: 
 Among the bonds corresponding to sub-segments (according to insurance class, years to maturity, etc.) for individual life insur-

ance and individual annuity sold by domestic life insurance subsidiaries, SFH records those held with the purpose of controlling the 
duration of insurance liabilities as policy-reserve-matching bonds, in accordance with the Industry Audit Committee Report No. 21.

 (2) Derivative fi nancial instruments
 Derivative fi nancial instruments are stated at fair value, with changes in fair value included in income for the period in 

which they arise, except for derivatives that are designated by SFH and its consolidated subsidiaries (the “Companies”) as “hedg-
ing instruments.”

 (3) Tangible fi xed assets (excluding leased assets)
 All tangible fi xed assets, including real estate for lease, are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent expenses related to asset 

improvements are capitalized or are recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic 
benefi ts associated with the item will fl ow to the Companies and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

 All other repairs and maintenance charges are charged to income when incurred.
 Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
 • Buildings: 3 to 50 years
 • Other tangible fi xed assets: 2 to 20 years

 (4) Intangible fi xed assets (excluding leased assets)
 Intangible fi xed assets are amortized using the straight-line method. Software for internal use is amortized using the straight-line 

method generally over 5 years, its estimated useful life.

 (5) Leased assets
 All leased assets with respect to non-ownership-transfer fi nance leases are amortized by the straight-line method over 

the lease term, without any residual value.

 (6) Reserve for possible loan losses
 The reserve for possible loan losses is provided as follows for losses from bad debts mainly in accordance with self-assessment 

guidelines and write-off and reserve guidelines. With respect to receivables such as loans to borrowers subject to bankruptcy, 
court-guided rehabilitation or similar legal or formal proceedings (the “Bankrupt Borrowers”), loans to borrowers that are substan-
tially in the same condition as the Bankrupt Borrowers (the “Substantially Bankrupt Borrowers”) and money on deposits whose 
market value declined signifi cantly, the Companies provide a reserve in the amount expected to be uncollectible after deducting 
amounts expected to be collectible from collateral, guarantees and other means. For loans to borrowers that are not yet bankrupt 
but are highly likely to be bankrupt in the future (the “potentially bankrupt borrowers”), the Companies provide a reserve in the 
amount deemed necessary by comprehensively considering the borrowers’ solvency of the remaining amount after deducting 
amounts expected to be collectible from collateral, guarantees and other means. For other loans, the Companies provide a 
reserve in the amount calculated by multiplying the loans by a historical loan loss ratio determined over certain periods. All loans 
are subject to asset assessment by the related operational departments in accordance with self-assessment guidelines, and the 
assessment results are reviewed by the departments responsible for asset inspection that are independent from the operational 
departments. The amount of reserve is provided based upon the above results.

 (7) Reserve for employees’ bonuses
 The reserve for employees’ bonuses is provided for the estimated amount of bonuses the Companies are required to pay for ser-

vices provided during the current fi scal year.
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 (8) Reserve for price fl uctuations
 Pursuant to requirements under Article 115 of the Insurance Business Act of Japan, the reserve for price fl uctuations is provided 

for price fl uctuations primarily related to stocks, bonds and foreign currency-denominated assets that are exposed to losses due 
to market price fl uctuations. This reserve is only used to reduce losses arising from price fl uctuations on those assets.

 (9) Accounting for retirement benefi ts
1) Method of attributing projected retirement benefi ts
 In the calculation of retirement benefi t obligations, the Companies mainly apply the benefi t formula basis in attributing 

projected retirement benefi ts to the periods until the end of the current fi scal year.

2) Amortization method of prior service cost and net actuarial gain or loss
 Unrecognized prior service cost is amortized mainly using the straight-line method within the employees’ average remaining 

service period at incurrence. Unrecognized net actuarial gain or loss is amortized using the straight-line method over 7 to 17 
years within the employees’ average remaining service period, commencing from the fi scal year immediately following incurrence.

3) Adoption of a simplifi ed method at small enterprises, etc.
 For calculating net retirement benefi t liabilities and retirement benefi t expenses, the parent company and some consolidated 

subsidiaries apply a simplifi ed method that treats amounts required for voluntary resignation at fi scal year-end as retirement 
benefi t obligations.

 (10) Translation of foreign assets or liabilities
 Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese yen at the foreign exchange rates in effect at 

each balance sheet date, whereas components of net assets denominated in foreign currencies are translated at historical rates. 
The current year’s profi t and loss accounts are translated into yen using the average exchange rate for the fi scal year.

 (11) Hedge accounting
 The banking subsidiary applies either deferred hedge accounting or fair value hedge accounting to its transactions for hedging 

interest rate risks on fi nancial assets and liabilities. With regard to hedging that offsets fl uctuating interest rates on fi xed-rate loans, 
the subsidiary identifi es the hedged items that are grouped on the basis of a certain period of their remaining maturity and desig-
nates interest rate swaps as a hedging instrument, in accordance with “Accounting and Auditing Treatments on Application of 
Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments in the Banking Industry” (Industry Audit Committee of the Japanese Institute of Cer-
tifi ed Public Accountants (the “Industry Audit Committee”) Statement No. 24, February 13, 2002). 

  With regard to hedging that fi xes the cash fl ow of a forecasted transaction of a short-term fi xed-rate deposit, the subsidiary 
identifi es the hedged items that are grouped on the basis of a certain period of their interest rate revision and designates interest 
rate swaps as a hedging instrument, in accordance with the Industry Audit Committee, Statement No. 24. With regard to hedging 
that offsets fl uctuations in the fair value of fi xed-rate bonds that are classifi ed as available-for-sale securities, the subsidiary identi-
fi es the hedged items individually and designates interest rate swaps and others as a hedging instrument. The above-mentioned 
hedging instruments are designated with almost identical signifi cant terms and conditions for both the hedging items and the 
hedged instruments. Accordingly, such hedges are considered highly effective, allowing the banking subsidiary to ensure hedging 
effectiveness.

 (12) Cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
 Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments without signifi cant market risks, such as demand deposits and short-term 

investments with an original maturity of 3 months or less.

 (13) Accounting for consumption taxes
 National and local consumption taxes (the “consumption taxes”) received and paid by the Companies, excluding loss adjustment 

expenses and operating, general and administrative expenses of SFH’s non-life insurance subsidiary, are not included in income 
and expenses. Under the Consumption Tax Act of Japan, the consumption taxes paid on property and equipment are not deduct-
ible from the consumption taxes received; they are recorded as “other assets” and amortized on a straight-line basis over 5 years. 
Other non-deductible consumption taxes are charged to income as incurred.

 (14) Policy reserves
 Pursuant to Article 116 of the Insurance Business Act of Japan, SFH’s life insurance subsidiary maintains a policy reserve for the 

fulfi llment of future obligations under life insurance contracts. The policy reserve is established by the net level premium reserve 
method, which assumes a constant or level amount of net insurance premiums over the term of the relevant policy when calculat-
ing the amount of the reserve required to fund all future policy claims. The net insurance premium is a portion of the premium 
covering insurance underwriting risk, which is estimated based on factors such as mortality rates, investment yield, surrender rates 
and other factors. The net level premium reserve for individual insurance contracts underwritten from FY1996 is calculated using 
mortality and interest rates set by the Financial Services Agency of Japan as standard policy reserve. Additionally, the net level 
premium reserve for individual insurance contracts underwritten before FY1996 is calculated using mortality and interest rates 
approved by the supervisor of insurance business in Japan.

98 Sony Financial Holdings Inc. Annual Report 2018



5  Changes in Presentation

 (Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows) 

  1. “Losses (gains) on derivatives,” which was included in “Others, net” under the subtotal of cash fl ows from operating activities for 
the year ended March 31, 2017, has been separately stated from the year ended March 31, 2018, as its monetary materiality 
increased. To refl ect such changes in presentation, the consolidated fi nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 have 
been reclassifi ed.

  As a result, ¥28,339 million of “Others, net” under the subtotal of cash fl ows from operating activities for the year ended March 
31, 2017 has been reclassifi ed as ¥30,050 million of “Losses (gains) on derivatives” and negative ¥1,710 million of “Others, net.”

  2. “Net gains (losses) from the settlement of derivative fi nancial instruments,” which was included in “Others” under the total of net 
cash used in investment transactions of cash fl ows from investing activities for the year ended March 31, 2017, has been sepa-
rately stated from the year ended March 31, 2018, as its monetary materiality increased. To refl ect such changes in presentation, 
the consolidated fi nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 have been reclassifi ed.

  As a result, negative ¥35,401 million of “Others” under the total of net cash used in investment transactions of cash fl ows from 
investing activities for the year ended March 31, 2017 has been reclassifi ed as negative ¥35,401 million of “Net gains (losses) from 
the settlement of derivative fi nancial instruments.”

6  Notes to the Consolidated Balance Sheets

  1. Securities with a book value of ¥426,523 million and loans of ¥306,589 million were pledged as collateral for the ¥303,889 million 
of collateral for securities lending transactions, ¥96,000 million of call money and bills sold, the ¥170,000 million of borrowed 
money and payables under repurchase agreements of ¥31,696 million at March 31, 2018. In addition to the assets described 
above, securities with a book value of ¥12,229 million, cash collateral paid for fi nancial instruments of ¥18,559 million and initial 
margins of futures markets of ¥18,324 million were pledged as collateral for cash settlements, variation margins of futures markets 
and certain other purposes at March 31, 2018.

  2. The consolidated balance sheet amount of securities loaned for consumption under the loan agreement was ¥235,886 million.

  3. Securities include shares in non-consolidated subsidiaries and affi liates worth ¥12,630 million. Among these, investments in jointly 
controlled companies are ¥12,245 million.

  4. The balance of loans includes ¥91 million in loans to bankrupt borrowers (before deductions for reserve for possible loan losses) 
and ¥1,075 million in non-accrual delinquent loans (before deductions for reserve for possible loan losses). Loans to bankrupt bor-
rowers include loans that have been in arrears on principal or interest payments for a considerably long period of time or loans 
(before deductions for reserve for possible loan losses) on which principal or interest payments are considered unlikely to occur 
in the future for other reasons and on which interest income is not recognized. These loans are with reasons defi ned under Article 
96-1-3, i through v of the Order for Enforcement of the Corporation Tax Act (Enforcement Order 97 of 1965) or 96-1-4 of the same 
guidelines. Non-accrual delinquent loans are loans on which accrued interest income is not recognized, excluding loans to bankrupt 
borrowers and loans on which interest payments are deferred in order to support the borrowers’ recovery from fi nancial diffi culties.

  5. The balance of loans does not include past due loans (3 months or more). Past due loans (3 months or more) are loans on which 
principal or interest payments are delayed for 3 months or more from the date following the due date, excluding loans to bankrupt 
borrowers and non-accrual delinquent loans.

  6. The balance of loans includes ¥842 million in restructured loans (before deductions for reserve for possible loan losses). Restruc-
tured loans are loans on which terms and conditions have been amended in favor of the borrowers (e.g., reduction of the original 
interest rate, deferral of interest payments, extension of principal repayments or debt waiver) in order to support the borrowers’ 
recovery from fi nancial diffi culties, excluding loans to bankrupt borrowers, non-accrual delinquent loans and past due loans (3 
months or more).

  7. The total amount of loans to bankrupt borrowers, non-accrual delinquent loans and restructured loans was ¥2,009 million (before 
deductions for reserve for possible loan losses).

  8. In terms of loan participation, the participating principals that were accounted for as loans to the original obligor in accordance with 
“Accounting and Presentation of Loan Participation” (Accounting Standards Committee of the Japanese Institute of Certifi ed Public 
Accountants, Statement No. 3, November 28, 2014) include the consolidated balance sheet amount of ¥7,278 million.
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  9. Accumulated depreciation of tangible fi xed assets as of March 31, 2018 was ¥36,648 million.

10. The balance sheet includes ¥1,128,817 million in assets and liabilities in equal amounts related to separate accounts as stipulated 
in Article 118 of the Insurance Business Act of Japan as of March 31, 2018, at SFH’s life insurance subsidiary.

11. Changes in the reserve for policyholders’ dividends at SFH’s life insurance subsidiary for the fi scal year ended March 31, 2018 are 
as follows:

 Balance at the beginning of the period ¥5,729 million
 Policyholders’ dividends during the period ¥3,517 million
 Increase in interest ¥0 million
 Provision for reserve for policyholders’ dividends ¥3,271 million

 Balance at the end of the period ¥5,484 million

12. On March 31, 2002, SFH’s life insurance subsidiary revalued its land for operating purposes, as permitted by the Act on Revalua-
tion of Land (Act No. 34, enacted March 31, 1998—the “Law”). The tax effect of the revaluation difference is accounted for differ-
ently, depending on whether there are gains or losses; when there is a loss, a valuation allowance is fully provided for the tax effect 
of the loss, and when there is a gain, the tax effect is recorded in “deferred tax liabilities on land revaluation.” After excluding these 
amounts, the net revaluation difference is reported as “land revaluation” in net assets. 

  The revaluation method stipulated by Article 3-3 of the Law was based on the land appraisal in conformity with Article 2-5 of 
the Order for Enforcement Related to the Law (Cabinet Order No. 119, effective from March 31, 1998).

13. Contracts for commitments to provide credit lines and overdrafts of the life insurance subsidiary and the banking subsidiary are 
agreements to lend to customers, up to a prescribed amount, as long as there is no violation of the conditions stipulated in the 
contracts. The amount of unused commitments at March 31, 2018 was ¥31,245 million, and the amount of unused commitments 
whose original contract terms are within 1 year at March 31, 2018 was ¥29,700 million.

14. Expected future losses of the life insurance subsidiary under the life insurance policyholder protection structure stipulated under 
Article 259 of the Insurance Business Act of Japan amounted to ¥10,480 million. Such losses are recognized as expenses during 
the fi scal year in which they are contributed.

15. Net assets per share were ¥1,433.73.

16. Financial instruments:

 (1) Description of fi nancial instruments
1) Policy on fi nancial instruments
 The Companies conduct the life insurance, non-life insurance and banking businesses, etc., in accordance with the provisions 

of the Insurance Business Act of Japan, the Banking Act of Japan and other relevant provisions. With regard to fi nancial assets 
(except for assets in separate accounts as stipulated in Item 1, Article 118 of the Insurance Business Act of Japan in the life 
insurance business), to ensure steady investment income the Companies hold various investment assets, including Japanese 
government and corporate bonds, foreign government and corporate bonds, Japanese stocks and loans. Deposits from indi-
vidual customers in the banking business account for nearly all of the Companies’ fi nancial liabilities. Although the Companies 
hold fi nancial assets as well as fi nancial liabilities, which are subject to the risk of interest rate and exchange rate fl uctuations, 
they strive to protect themselves from the negative effects of these fl uctuations by maintaining an appropriate balance between 
assets and liabilities by conducting asset-liability management (ALM) in each of the businesses. Furthermore, derivative trans-
actions are used to control risks in the life insurance business and banking business.

2) Financial instruments and related risks
 Securities, loans, deposits and derivative transactions constitute the majority of the companies’ fi nancial instruments. They are 

subject to market risk, which is the risk of incurring losses when their values change due to fl uctuations in interest rates, foreign 
exchange rates, stock prices, etc., as well as credit risk, which is the risk of incurring losses when the value of assets declines 
or disappears due to a deterioration in fi nancial or other conditions of an entity to which credit is provided. In addition, they are 
subject to market liquidity risk, which is the risk of loss due to an inability to conduct market transactions, as well as the risk of 
loss if the companies are forced to complete transactions under unfavorable market conditions, in each case due to market 
turmoil or other factors. 

  Most of the securities holdings are in domestic government bonds, foreign government bonds and corporate bonds. Other 
holdings include domestic stocks, foreign securities and investments in partnerships.

  The majority of loans are policy loans in the life insurance business, and individual mortgage loans in the banking business. 
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However, policy loans are limited to the amount of surrender payments, and mortgage loans are backed by real estate. Conse-
quently, loan-related risks are relatively low.

  Deposits are mainly those from individual customers, some of which are denominated in foreign currencies.
  The life insurance business uses several derivative transactions such as interest rate swaps, forward foreign exchange 

transactions and stock index futures trading mainly to hedge the market risk for fi nancial assets and liabilities and, as a matter 
of policy, does not use derivative transactions for speculative purposes. Hedge accounting is not applied to derivative transac-
tions used in the life insurance business.

  The banking business uses several derivative transactions primarily as one aspect of ALM, and it uses interest rate swaps, 
etc., to hedge the market risk for fi nancial assets and liabilities. In this category, hedge accounting is applied. Interest rate 
swaps are used to hedge against the interest rate risk of fi xed-rate loans and deposits. In hedge accounting, hedge effective-
ness is assessed based on the requirements stipulated in the “Accounting Standards for Financial Instruments” and other stan-
dards.

3) Risk management of fi nancial instruments
 SFH formulates fundamental principles for risk management and manages risks specifi c to its subsidiaries’ scale, business con-

tent and other attributes. Our Risk Management Guidelines establish specifi c conditions for managing Group risks, while each 
of the subsidiaries manages risks on its own. SFH’s Corporate Control Department submits periodic reports to SFH’s Board of 
Directors and Executive Committee on subsidiaries’ risk management conditions recognized through monitoring or by holding 
Risk Management Meetings.

(i) Credit risk
 The Companies use the following methods to manage the credit risk of principal subsidiaries:

(a) At the life insurance subsidiary, the risk management division manages issuer credit risk on securities and counterparty risks 
by specifying details such as risk management methods and procedures in regulations. The risk management division peri-
odically reports such information to the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee.

(b) The non-life insurance subsidiary ascertains issuer credit information and market values on securities in line with various reg-
ulations for asset management risk. The risk management division reports on the situation regularly to the Board of Directors 
and the Executive Committee.

(c) The banking subsidiary has formulated and conformed to various regulations for managing credit risks, and controls credit 
risk depending on the nature of each type of fi nancial asset. In respect of individual loans, the subsidiary has developed a 
framework for managing individual credit, including credit screenings, management of credit information, setting of collateral 
and the handling of problem assets on a case-by-case basis. 

  In respect of corporate loans or bonds payable, the subsidiary has developed a framework for managing corporate 
credit and market credit, including credit screenings, credit limit control, the management of credit information, credit rat-
ings, the setting of guarantees or collateral and handling of problem assets on a case-by-case basis.

  The subsidiary manages market credit risk, such as securities issuer credit risk and, on derivative transactions, counter-
party risk, by periodically assessing market value information.

  The aforementioned credit risk management is carried out by the risk management division and the screening division. 
These divisions periodically report risk management conditions to management via the Board of Directors and the Executive 
Committee. In addition, the internal audit division conducts regular audits.

(ii) Market risk
 The Companies use the following methods to manage the market risk of principal subsidiaries:

(a) The life insurance subsidiary manages various market-related risks in the following manner:
 • Interest rate risk     Interest rate risk is managed by the risk management division based on the regulations for interest 

rate risk management that specify details such as risk management methods and procedures. Based on ALM policies that 
are determined through such methods as deliberation by the Executive Committee, the subsidiary determines and confi rms 
actual risk conditions with the Board of Directors. The division maintains an overall grasp on the interest rates and durations 
of fi nancial instruments, and monitors them based on the analysis of the quantity of risk using value at risk (“VaR”), and it 
periodically reports such information to the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee.

 • Exchange rate risk     Exchange rate risk is managed by the risk management division based on the regulations for 
exchange rate risk management that specify details such as risk management methods and procedures. The division peri-
odically reports such information to the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee.

 • Equity market price fl uctuation risk     Equity market price fl uctuation risk is managed by the risk management division 
based on the regulations for equity market price fl uctuation risk management that specify details such as risk management 
methods and procedures. The division periodically reports such information to the Board of Directors and the Executive 
Committee.

 • Derivative transactions     Derivative transactions are managed by the risk management division based on the regulations 
for derivative transactions that specify details such as risk management methods and procedures. The division periodically 
reports such information to the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee.
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(b) The non-life insurance subsidiary manages various market-related risks in the following manner:
 • Interest rate risk     Regulations on asset management risk specify the details such as risk management methods and 

procedures based on risk management policies determined by the Board of Directors. The risk management division moni-
tors individual risks and reports on the situation regularly to the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee.

 • Price fl uctuation risk     Equity securities are held for strategic investments for the purpose of enhancing business part-
nerships. In accordance with regulations on asset management risk, the risk management division monitors the market 
environment and fi nancial conditions, and reports on the situation regularly to the Board of Directors and the Executive 
Committee.

(c) The banking subsidiary manages various market-related risks in the following manner. The risk management division han-
dles each of these risks and periodically reports risk management conditions to the Board of Directors and the Executive 
Committee. In addition, the internal audit division conducts regular audits.

 • Interest rate and exchange rate risk    By formulating and conforming with market risk management regulations, the 
subsidiary manages the risk of loss from changes in the value of assets and liabilities (including off-balance-sheet items) as 
well as from changes in income from assets and liabilities, owing to fl uctuations in various market risk factors, such as inter-
est rates, exchange rates and stock prices. Market risk management regulations specify details such as risk management 
methods and procedures. Based on ALM and risk management policies that are determined through such methods as 
deliberation by the Board of Directors, an ALM committee and a risk management committee meet—typically once each 
month—to understand and confi rm actual conditions and deliberate future responses and risk conditions. On a daily basis, 
the risk management division maintains an overall understanding of interest and exchange rates on fi nancial assets and lia-
bilities, as well as their durations, conducts monitoring that includes VaR and interest rate sensitivity analysis and ensures 
regulatory conformance. In relation to ALM, the subsidiary also conducts interest rate swaps, currency swaps, foreign 
exchange and other derivative transactions to hedge against interest and exchange rate fl uctuation risks.

 • Market price fl uctuation risk     The subsidiary manages the holding of investment products, including securities, in 
accordance with market risk management regulations as well as market credit risk. The investment division purchases secu-
rities externally, and risks associated with changes in the market price of such securities are managed through prior screen-
ing by the screening division, the setting and control of investment limits by the risk management division, and continuous 
monitoring by each responsible division.

 • Derivative transactions     Derivative transactions are executed in accordance with regulations on market risk. The sub-
sidiary also separates and conducts internal checks of individual departments’ execution of transactions, evaluation of 
hedge effectiveness and operations management.

 • Quantitative information on market risk     The principal fi nancial instruments affected by the major risk parameters of 
interest rate risk and exchange rate fl uctuation risk are loans, securities, deposits in the banking business and derivative 
transactions.

  The impact of such risks on these fi nancial assets and liabilities was calculated using the historical simulation method 
to determine gains or losses over a given period of 20 business days, assuming the fl uctuation of interest and exchange 
rates within a rational forecast band determined over an observation period of 250 business days. The Companies then 
employed quantitative analysis to manage interest rate and exchange rate fl uctuation risks. The resulting risk amount with 
a 99% confi dence interval was ¥927 million as of March 31, 2018 (¥1,621 million as of March 31, 2017).

  This amount of impact is based on the assumption that risk parameters other than interest rates and exchange rates are 
fi xed. In the event that fl uctuations exceed the rational forecast band for interest and exchange rates, the risk impact may 
exceed the amount calculated. The aforementioned market risk management is carried out primarily by the risk manage-
ment division. The division periodically reports risk management conditions to the Board of Directors and the Executive 
Committee. In addition, the internal audit division conducts regular audits.

(iii) Liquidity risk
 The Companies use the following methods to manage the liquidity risk of principal subsidiaries.

(a) At the life insurance subsidiary, in line with liquidity risk management regulations, the accounting division prepares and 
updates cash fl ow plans in a timely manner based on the reports from departments and manages cash fl ows, and the risk 
management division manages the liquidity risk. The accounting division and risk management division periodically or as 
needed report such information to the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee.

(b) The non-life insurance subsidiary establishes regulations related to liquidity risk. Its cash fl ow management division pre-
pares and updates cash fl ow plans. The risk management division manages liquidity risk by monitoring the situations and 
reports on the situations regularly to the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee.

(c) The banking subsidiary has formulated and conformed with regulations for managing liquidity risk and manages a variety of 
liquidity risks. Concerning the management of cash fl ow risks, cash fl ows are classifi ed into phases based on the degree of 
pressure, and methods for risk management and reporting are set out for each phase, while guidelines are formulated and 
reviewed as necessary. To manage market liquidity risk, the subsidiary works to understand market liquidity conditions that 
pertain to the types of products it handles. The subsidiary formulates and revises guidelines on a product-by-product basis, 
as necessary. The aforementioned liquidity risk management is carried out by the risk management division. The division 
periodically reports risk management conditions to the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee. In addition, the 
internal audit division conducts regular audits.
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4) Supplementary explanation of the fair value of fi nancial instruments
 Market prices of fi nancial instruments are considered to indicate their fair values, unless market prices are not available. In this 

case, rational methods are used to measure their fair values. Although these measurements use assumptions that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the resulting values may differ if measured using different assumptions.

 (2) Fair value information on fi nancial instruments
 Below is fair value information on fi nancial instruments as of March 31, 2018, excluding securities whose fair values are not readily 

determinable (see Note 2).
Millions of yen

2018

As of March 31,
Consolidated balance 

sheet amount Fair value Difference

1) Cash and due from banks ¥     327,633 ¥     327,633 ¥             —

2) Call loans and bills bought 65,500 65,500 —

3) Money held in trust
    Other money held in trust 291,582 291,582 —

4) Securities
    Trading securities 1,048,062 1,048,062 —

    Held-to-maturity securities 6,547,276 8,146,787 1,599,510

    Policy-reserve-matching bonds 401,958 436,842 34,884

    Available-for-sale securities 1,558,456 1,558,456 —

5) Loans 1,785,877

    Reserve for possible loan losses (*1) (809)

    Loans (after deduction for reserve for possible loan losses) 1,785,067 1,971,747 186,679

Total Financial Assets ¥12,025,535 ¥13,846,610 ¥1,821,074

1) Deposits ¥  2,159,246 ¥  2,160,277 ¥       1,030

2) Call money and bills sold 96,000 96,000 —

3) Borrowed money 173,944 173,603 (340)

4) Bonds payable 20,000 20,010 10

5) Collateral for securities lending transactions 303,889 303,889 —

Total Financial Liabilities ¥  2,753,079 ¥  2,753,780 ¥          700

Derivative fi nancial instruments (*2)
    Hedge accounting not applied ¥       10,387 ¥       10,387 ¥             —

    Hedge accounting applied [12,857] [12,857] —

Total Derivative Financial Instruments ¥        [2,470] ¥        [2,470] ¥             —

(*1)  Excludes general and specifi c reserves for possible loan losses.
(*2)   Figures are totals resulting from derivative transactions, which are accounted for as other assets and liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. If the 

total is a debt amount, the above fi gure is shown in [ ].

(Note 1)  Calculation of the fair value of fi nancial instruments

Financial Assets
1) Cash and due from banks and 2) Call loans and bills bought
 The fair value is regarded as the carrying amount, as they are approximately equal.
3) Money held in trust
 In individual money held in trust mainly for investment purposes, the fair value of bonds is the market price on fi nancial instrument 

exchanges or the price indicated by a fi nancial institution. Please see “18. Fair value information on money held in trust,” which 
indicates fair values by purpose.

4) Securities
 The fair value of stocks is the market price on stock markets or fi nancial instrument exchanges. The fair value of bonds and 

investment funds is the market price or the price indicated by a fi nancial institution. Please see “17. Fair value information on 
securities,” which indicates fair values by purpose.

5) Loans
(i) Loans in the banking business
 The fair value of these loans is calculated by type, by estimating their future cash fl ows and then applying a prescribed discount 

rate. The discount rate is determined by adding to the LIBOR-based yield curve a premium corresponding to the allowance rate 
of general provision for loan losses.

(ii) Policy loans in the life insurance business
 The fair value of policyholder loans is valued by discounting future cash fl ows to their current value.
(iii) General loans in the life insurance business
 The fair value of general loans is regarded as the carrying amount, as they are approximately equal.
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Financial Liabilities
1) Deposits
 The fair value of deposits is calculated by type, by estimating their future cash fl ows and then applying a prescribed discount 

rate. The discount rate is determined by adding to the LIBOR-based yield curve a premium corresponding to the banking sub-
sidiary’s cumulative default rate by rating.

2) Call money and bills sold
 The fair value is regarded as the carrying amount, as they are approximately equal.
3) Borrowed money
 The present value of borrowed money is calculated by discounting the future cash fl ows of the principal and interest with the 

LIBOR-based yield curve.
4) Bonds payable
 The fair value of bonds payable is the market price or the price indicated by a fi nancial institution.
5) Collateral for securities lending transactions
 The fair value is regarded as the carrying amount, as they are approximately equal.

Derivative Transactions
Please see “19. Derivative fi nancial instruments,” which indicates measurement of fair value.

(Note 2)    Securities whose fair values are deemed extremely diffi cult to determine are as follows. They are not included in “4) Securities” of 
Financial Assets in (Note 1) above.

Millions of yen

2018

As of March 31,
Consolidated balance 

sheet amount

1) Unlisted stocks in non-consolidated subsidiaries and affi liates (*1) ¥12,630

2) Unlisted stocks other than those in 1) above (*1) 169

3) Investment in partnership (*2) 12,653

Total ¥25,453

(*1)   Unlisted stocks have no market prices and their fair values are not readily determinable.
(*2)   Assets included in “investment in partnership” are stocks in unlisted companies.
Note:   Unlisted stocks and investment in partnership are considered impaired if their actual value decreases materially below the acquisition cost and 

such decline is considered non-recoverable. Their actual value is recognized as the consolidated balance sheet amount and the write-down is 
accounted for as a devaluation loss (hereinafter, “impairment”) for the fi scal year.
     Impairment losses on unlisted stocks and investment in partnership were recognized as ¥19 million and ¥664 million for the year ended March 
31, 2018, respectively. 
     Impairment losses are principally recorded when their actual value as of the end of the fi scal year has declined by 50% or more from the acqui-
sition cost.

(Note 3)  Future redemption schedule of monetary claims and securities with maturities
Millions of yen

2018

As of March 31, 1 year or less
More than 1 year 

to 5 years
More than 5 years 

to 10 years Over 10 years

Cash and due from banks ¥327,633 ¥         — ¥         — ¥             —
Call loans and bills bought 65,500 — — —

Securities
 Held-to-maturity securities 3,236 27,887 330,510 6,414,090
  Japanese government and corporate bonds 3,236 27,687 330,510 5,886,640
   Japanese government and local government bonds 2,224 25,798 328,610 5,548,530
   Japanese corporate bonds 1,012 1,889 1,900 338,110
  Others — 200 — 527,449
 Policy-reserve-matching bonds — — 3,220 394,683
  Japanese government and corporate bonds — — 3,220 366,530
   Japanese government and local government bonds — — — 265,130
   Japanese corporate bonds — — 3,220 101,400
  Others — — — 28,153
 Available-for-sale securities 124,871 405,464 307,135 556,077
  Japanese government and corporate bonds 36,905 155,718 274,185 388,350
   Japanese government and local government bonds 28,895 80,175 271,000 388,350
   Japanese corporate bonds 8,009 75,542 3,185 —
  Others 87,966 249,745 32,950 167,727
Loans (*) 12,387 46,021 62,679 1,455,540
Total ¥533,629 ¥479,373 ¥703,545 ¥8,820,391

(*) This fi gure excludes ¥189,460 million with no fi xed redemption such as policyholder loans, and ¥18,895 million in overdrafts.
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(Note 4)  The future return schedule of deposits and other liabilities with interest
Millions of yen

2018

As of March 31,
1 year or

less

More than 
1 year to 
2 years

More than 
2 years to 

3 years

More than 
3 years to 

4 years

More than 
4 years to 

5 years
  More than 

 5 years

Deposits (*) ¥2,042,073 ¥44,265 ¥23,553 ¥    9,119 ¥11,295 ¥28,939

Call money and bills sold 96,000 — — — — —

Borrowed money 462 20,122 50,122 100,122 3,112 —

Bonds payable — — — — 10,000 10,000

Collateral for securities lending transactions 303,889 — — — — —

Total ¥2,442,425 ¥64,388 ¥73,676 ¥109,242 ¥24,407 ¥38,939

(*)  Demand deposits are included in “1 year or less.”

17.  Fair value information on securities as of March 31, 2018:
* In addition to “Securities” on the consolidated balance sheets, the fi gures in the following tables include benefi ciary certifi cates of investment trust in 
“Monetary claims purchased.”

 (1) Trading securities
Millions of yen

As of March 31, 2018

Valuation gains charged to income ¥36,944

 (2) Held-to-maturity securities
Millions of yen

2018

As of March 31,
Consolidated balance 

sheet amount Fair value        Difference

Fair values exceeding the consolidated balance sheet amount

 Japanese government and corporate bonds ¥5,723,643 ¥7,377,238 ¥1,653,595

  Japanese government and local government bonds 5,570,041 7,206,713 1,636,672

  Japanese corporate bonds 153,601 170,524 16,923

 Others 63,558 67,533 3,975

 Subtotal 5,787,201 7,444,772 1,657,570

Fair values not exceeding the consolidated balance sheet amount

 Japanese government and corporate bonds 517,815 479,378 (38,436)

  Japanese government and local government bonds 325,625 304,563 (21,061)

  Japanese corporate bonds 192,189 174,814 (17,375)

 Others 242,259 222,636 (19,623)

 Subtotal 760,074 702,014 (58,060)

Total ¥6,547,276 ¥8,146,787 ¥1,599,510

 (3) Policy-reserve-matching bonds
Millions of yen

2018

As of March 31,
Consolidated balance 

sheet amount Fair value        Difference

Fair values exceeding the consolidated balance sheet amount

 Japanese government and corporate bonds ¥340,492 ¥376,212 ¥35,720

  Japanese government and local government bonds 270,889 297,041 26,152

  Japanese corporate bonds 69,602 79,171 9,568

 Others 6,286 6,506 219

 Subtotal 346,779 382,719 35,939

Fair values not exceeding the consolidated balance sheet amount

 Japanese government and corporate bonds 47,203 46,279 (924)

  Japanese government and local government bonds 5,309 5,240 (68)

  Japanese corporate bonds 41,894 41,039 (855)

 Others 7,975 7,843 (131)

 Subtotal 55,179 54,123 (1,055)

Total ¥401,958 ¥436,842 ¥34,884
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 (4) Available-for-sale securities
Millions of yen

2018

As of March 31,
Consolidated balance 

sheet amount Acquisition cost        Difference

Consolidated balance sheet amount exceeding the acquisition cost

 Japanese government and corporate bonds ¥   930,432 ¥   806,099 ¥124,332

  Japanese government and local government bonds 857,801 734,672 123,129

  Japanese corporate bonds 72,630 71,427 1,203

 Equity securities 33,416 13,796 19,619

 Others 296,084 290,380 5,703

 Subtotal 1,259,933 1,110,277 149,656

Consolidated balance sheet amount not exceeding the acquisition cost

 Japanese government and corporate bonds 61,926 62,232 (306)

  Japanese government and local government bonds 46,059 46,351 (292)

  Japanese corporate bonds 15,866 15,880 (13)

 Equity securities 275 301 (25)

 Others 241,698 246,264 (4,565)

 Subtotal 303,900 308,798 (4,897)

Total ¥1,563,834 ¥1,419,076 ¥144,758

Note:   As the unlisted stocks of ¥169 million (consolidated balance sheet amount) and investment in partnership of ¥12,653 million (consolidated balance sheet 
amount) have no market prices and their fair values are not readily determinable, they are not included in the table above.

 (5) Held-to-maturity securities sold during the period
 There is no related information to be reported.

 (6) Policy-reserve-matching bonds sold during the period
 There is no related information to be reported.

 (7) Available-for-sale securities sold during the period
Millions of yen

2018

For the year ended March 31, Sales
Total gains 
on sales

Total losses 
on sales

Japanese government and corporate bonds ¥15,993 ¥  89 ¥—

 Japanese government and local government bonds 10,213 61 —

 Japanese corporate bonds 5,779 27 —

Equity securities 573 455 —

Others 37,797 241 12

Total ¥54,364 ¥785 ¥12

 (8) Impairment of available-for-sale securities
 Available-for-sale securities with fair value are considered impaired if the fair value decreases materially below the acquisition cost 

and such decline is considered non-recoverable. The fair value is recognized as the consolidated balance sheet amount and the 
write-down is accounted for as a devaluation loss for the fi scal year.

  No impairment loss was recognized for the year ended March 31, 2018.
  “Material decline” is indicated when the fair value declines by 30% or more from the acquisition cost.

18.  Fair value information on money held in trust as of March 31, 2018:

 (1) Money held in trust for trading
 There is no related information to be reported.

 (2) Money held in trust for held-to-maturity and policy-reserve-matching
 There is no related information to be reported.
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 (3) Other money held in trust (other than for trading, held-to-maturity or policy-reserve-matching)
Millions of yen

2018

As of March 31,

Consolidated 
 balance sheet 

amount
Acquisition 

cost Difference

Items whose 
consolidated 
balance sheet 

amount exceeds 
acquisition cost

Items whose 
consolidated 
balance sheet 

amount does not 
exceed acquisition cost

Other money held in trust ¥291,582 ¥253,030 ¥38,552 ¥38,552 ¥—

Notes: 1.  The amount of jointly invested monetary trusts that is included in the table above as of March 31, 2018 is ¥40 million.
           2.  “Items whose consolidated balance sheet amount exceeds acquisition cost” and “Items whose consolidated balance sheet amount does not 

exceed acquisition cost” are the breakdown of the difference.

 (4) Impairment of other money held in trust
 Securities with fair values that are included in other money held in trust are considered impaired if their fair value decreases 

materially below the acquisition cost and such decline is considered non-recoverable.
  No impairment loss was recognized for the year ended March 31, 2018.
  “Material decline” is indicated when the fair value declines by 30% or more from the acquisition cost.

19.  Derivative fi nancial instruments:

 (1) Hedge accounting not applied
 Below is a summary of contractual or notional amounts, current market or fair values, valuation gains or losses, and the method of 

calculating the fair values of derivatives, classifi ed by transaction, to which hedge accounting is not applied. Notional amounts do 
not indicate exposure to credit loss.

1) Interest rate derivatives
Millions of yen

2018

As of March 31,
Notional 

amount total
Notional amount 

over 1 year Fair value
 Valuation gains   

(losses)

Over-the-counter transactions Interest rate swaps

   Fixed-rate receivable/Floating-rate payable ¥13,461 ¥13,461 ¥(66) ¥(66)

   Floating-rate receivable/Fixed-rate payable 13,461 13,461 66 66

Total — — ¥ — ¥ —

Notes: 1.  The above transactions are valued at market, and the valuation gains or losses are recorded in the consolidated statements of income. 
           2.  Fair values are calculated using the discounted cash fl ow and the price indicated by a fi nancial institution.

2) Currency derivatives
Millions of yen

2018

As of March 31,
Notional 

amount total
Notional amount 

over 1 year Fair value
 Valuation gains   

(losses)

Over-the-counter transactions Forward foreign exchanges Sold ¥220,252 ¥— ¥5,927 ¥5,927

Bought 153,241 — 495 495 

Foreign exchange margin 
transactions

Sold 62,635 — 2,480 2,480 

Bought 21,987 — 1,020 1,020 

Currency options Sold 156 — (1) 0 

Bought 206 — 1 0 

Currency forward contracts Bought 14,216 — (325) (325)

Total — — ¥9,600 ¥9,600

Notes: 1.  The above transactions are valued at market, and the valuation gains or losses are recorded in the consolidated statements of income.
           2.  Fair value is measured using the discounted cash fl ow and option pricing models.

3) Stock derivatives
Millions of yen

2018

As of March 31,
Notional 

amount total
Notional amount 

over 1 year Fair value
 Valuation gains   

(losses)

Listed Stock index futures Sold ¥106,875 ¥— ¥786 ¥786

Total — — ¥786 ¥786

Notes: 1.  The above transactions are valued at market, and the valuation gains or losses are recorded in the consolidated statements of income.
           2.  Fair value is the closing price on the Exchange at the end of the fi scal year.
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 (2) Hedge accounting is applied
 The following provides a summary of contractual or notional amounts, current market or fair values, valuation gains or losses, and 

the method of calculating the fair values of derivatives, classifi ed by transactions, to which hedge accounting is applied. Notional 
amounts do not indicate exposure to credit loss.

1) Interest rate derivatives
Millions of yen

As of March 31, 2018

Hedge accounting Hedging instrument Hedged item
Notional 

amount total
Notional amount 

over 1 year Fair value

Deferred hedge accounting Interest rate swaps

   Floating-rate receivable/
   Fixed-rate payable Deposits ¥103,000 ¥103,000 ¥      130

Fair value hedge accounting Interest rate swaps

   Floating-rate receivable/
   Fixed-rate payable

Available-for-sale 
securities (bonds) 268,367 241,415 (12,300)

Total — — ¥(12,169)

Notes: 1.  Deferred hedge accounting is applied in accordance with the Industry Audit Committee No. 24, along with fair value hedge accounting.
           2. Fair value is calculated using the discounted cash fl ow and other methods.

2) Currency derivatives
Millions of yen

As of March 31, 2018

Hedge accounting Hedging instrument Hedged item
Notional 

amount total
Notional amount 

over 1 year Fair value

Fair value hedge accounting Currency swaps Available-for-sale 
securities (bonds) ¥19,200 ¥14,000 ¥(687)

Total — — ¥(687)

Notes: 1.  Fair value hedge accounting is applied.
           2. Fair value is calculated using the discounted cash fl ow and other methods.

20.  Information about retirement benefi t obligations as of March 31, 2018:

 (1) Overview of retirement benefi t plans
 The life insurance subsidiary provides a lump-sum retirement benefi t plan to sales staff and a defi ned benefi t corporate pension 

plan and defi ned contribution pension plan to internal offi ce staff. The non-life insurance subsidiary provides a lump-sum retire-
ment benefi t plan and a defi ned contribution pension plan. SFH and its banking subsidiary mainly provide a lump-sum retirement 
benefi t plan. SFH and some consolidated subsidiaries calculate retirement benefi t obligations based on the simplifi ed method.

 (2) Defi ned benefi t plans

1) Reconciliation of beginning and ending balances of retirement benefi t obligations (excluding those listed in 9) )
Millions of yen

For the year ended March 31, 2018

Balance at the beginning of the period of retirement benefi t obligations ¥42,567

 Service cost 4,768

 Interest cost 102

 Net actuarial gain arising during the period 321

 Retirement benefi ts paid (2,604)

 Prior service cost arising during the period 67

Balance at the end of the period of retirement benefi t obligations ¥45,222

2) Reconciliation of beginning and ending balances of plan assets (excluding those listed in 9) )
Millions of yen

For the year ended March 31, 2018

Balance at the beginning of the period of plan assets ¥14,032

 Expected return on plan assets 143 

 Net actuarial gain arising during the period 562 

 Employer contribution 1,122 

 Retirement benefi ts paid (258)

Balance at the end of the period of plan assets ¥15,601
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3)  Reconciliation of the ending balances of retirement benefi t obligations and plan assets, and net defi ned benefi t liability 
and net defi ned benefi t asset recorded on the consolidated balance sheets

Millions of yen

As of March 31, 2018

Funded retirement benefi t obligations ¥11,938

Plan assets (15,601)

(3,663)

Unfunded retirement benefi t obligations 33,416 

Net liabilities and assets recorded on the consolidated balance sheets 29,753 

Net defi ned benefi t liability 33,179

Net defi ned benefi t asset (3,426)

Net liabilities and assets recorded on the consolidated balance sheets ¥29,753

4) Components and amounts of retirement benefi t expenses
Millions of yen

For the year ended March 31, 2018

Service cost ¥4,768

Interest cost 102 

Expected return on plan assets (143)

Amortization of net actuarial gain 909 

Amortization of prior service cost 67 

Others 62

Retirement benefi t expenses related to defi ned benefi t plans ¥5,765

Note: SFH includes retirement benefi t expenses in “Others” based on the simplifi ed method.

5) Remeasurements of defi ned benefi t plans (before tax deductions)
Millions of yen

For the year ended March 31, 2018

Net actuarial gain ¥1,150

Total ¥1,150

6) Accumulated remeasurements of defi ned benefi t plans (before tax deductions)
Millions of yen

As of March 31, 2018

Unrecognized net actuarial gain ¥(2,724)

Total ¥(2,724)

7) Plan assets

(i) Main components of plan assets
 The percentage share of components by main asset class out of total plan assets is as follows:

%

As of March 31, 2018

Bonds 68

Equity securities 28

Others 4

Total 100

(ii) Method of setting the long-term rate of expected return on plan assets
 The long-term rate of expected return on plan assets is determined by taking into account the current and expected allocation 

of plan assets and the current long-term return rate and the long-term return rate that is expected in the future based on the 
various assets that comprise the plan assets.

8) Basis for calculating actuarial gain or loss
 Main basis for calculating actuarial gain or loss as of March 31, 2018
 Discount rate 0.2%–0.7%
 Long-term rate of expected return on plan assets 1.0%–2.4%
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9)  Reconciliation of beginning and ending balances of net defi ned benefi t liability of the plan based on the simplifi ed method
Millions of yen

For the year ended March 31, 2018

Balance at the beginning of the period of net defi ned benefi t liability ¥111

 Retirement benefi t expenses 12

 Retirement benefi ts paid (3)

 Contribution to the plan (4)

 Others 16

Balance at the end of the period of net defi ned benefi t liability ¥132

 (3) Defi ned contribution plans
 The amount of contribution required for defi ned contribution plans by the Companies was ¥332 million.

21.  Information on stock options, etc., as of March 31, 2018:

 (1) Expenses and line items associated with stock options, etc.
 Operating expenses, etc.                                 ¥94 million

 (2) Description and volume of stock options as well as their changes
1) Description of stock options

The fi rst series of stock acquisition rights of SFH

Category and number of eligible recipients 4 executive directors of SFH

Number of stock options granted 
by type of share (Note) Common stock   52,900 shares

Grant date August 8, 2016

Vesting conditions

Options rights are to be vested upon grant.
However, if the recipient loses the position of executive director of the Company prior to the Ordi-
nary General Meeting of Shareholders in 2017, he/she can exercise the number of stock options 
calculated by multiplying the number of stock options granted, by the number of months he/she 
serves as executive director from July 2016 up to the month of losing his/her position, and divid-
ing the value by 12. The rest of the stock options granted shall no longer be exercisable on or 
after the date of the recipient losing his/her position, and is cancelled.

Eligible period of service From June 24, 2016 to the date of the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders in 2017

Exercise period

From August 9, 2016 to August 8, 2046
However, eligible recipients of stock acquisition rights may exercise all (but not part) of the stock 
acquisition rights held by him/her only during the period from the day immediately following the 
date on which such holder loses any and all of his/her offi ce(s) as executive director of SFH up to 
ten days (in the event that the tenth day is a holiday, the following business day) thereafter.

The second series of stock acquisition rights of SFH

Category and number of eligible recipients
3 executive directors of SFH
7 executive directors of SFH subsidiaries

Number of stock options granted 
by type of share (Note) Common stock   41,700 shares

Grant date August 7, 2017

Vesting conditions

Options rights are to be vested upon grant.
However, if the recipient loses the position of executive director of the Company and its subsidiar-
ies prior to the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders in 2018, he/she can exercise the num-
ber of stock options calculated by multiplying the number of stock options granted, by the num-
ber of months he/she serves as executive director from July 2017 up to the month of losing his/
her position, and dividing the value by 12. The rest of the stock options granted shall no longer be 
exercisable on or after the date of the recipient losing his/her position, and is cancelled.

Eligible period of service From June 21, 2017 to the date of the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders in 2018

Exercise period

From August 8, 2017 to August 7, 2047
However, eligible recipients of stock acquisition rights may exercise all (but not part) of the stock 
acquisition rights held by him/her only during the period from the day immediately following the 
date on which such holder loses any and all of his/her offi ce(s) as executive director of SFH and its 
subsidiaries up to ten days (in the event that the tenth day is a holiday, the following business day) 
thereafter.

Note: Stock options have been converted and stated as number of shares.
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2) Volume of stock options and their changes
 Stock options that existed in the year ended March 31, 2018, are presented as follows, and have been converted and stated as 

number of shares.

(i) Number of stock options
The fi rst series of stock 
acquisition rights of SFH

The second series of stock 
acquisition rights of SFH

Before vesting (shares)

At the end of the previous year — —

Granted — 41,700

Lapsed — —

Vested — 41,700

Number of unvested stock options — —

After vesting (shares)

At the end of the previous year 52,900 —

Vested — 41,700

Exercised 17,200 —

Lapsed — —

Number of unexercised stock options 35,700 41,700

(ii) Unit price information
The fi rst series of stock 
acquisition rights of SFH

The second series of stock 
acquisition rights of SFH

Exercise price ¥1 ¥1

Average share price at the time of exercise ¥1,779 —

Fairly assessed value on the grant date ¥1,236 ¥1,695

 (3) Method for estimating the fair value of stock options
 The method for estimating the fair value of stock options that were granted in the year ended March 31, 2018 is as follows:

1) Assessment method used
      Black-Scholes model

2) Main basic values and their estimation method
The second series of 

stock acquisition rights of SFH

Volatility of share price (*1) 33.735%

Expected remaining period (*2) 5.4 years

Expected dividend (*3) ¥55/share

Risk-free rate (*4) (0.057%)

(*1) Calculated based on the past share prices during the period corresponding to the expected remaining period of 5.4 years in (*2).
(*2) Calculated by weighting and averaging the expected period of service by the amount to be granted.
(*3) Based on the actual dividends for the fi scal year ended March 31, 2017.
(*4)  Calculated using the average compound yield of long-term JGB with the remaining period approximate to the expected remaining period of 5.4 years 

in (*2).

 (4) Method for estimating the number of stock options vested
 As it is diffi cult, as a general rule, to reasonably estimate the number of stock options to lapse in the future, SFH adopts a method 

that only refl ects the actual number lapsed.
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(5) Description of restricted stock compensation

The fi rst series of restricted stock compensation of SFH

Categories and numbers of eligible recipients 3 executive directors of SFH
4 executive offi cers of SFH
7 executive directors of SFH subsidiaries
30 executive offi cers of SFH subsidiaries

Number of shares granted 27,513 shares of common stock

Grant date August 7, 2017

Transfer restriction period From August 7, 2017 to August 7, 2020

Cancellation conditions On the condition that the recipient has maintained his/her position of executive director, etc., of 
SFH continuously during the transfer restriction period, the transfer restriction shall be cancelled at 
the expiration of the transfer restriction period. 
 If the recipient loses his/her position of executive director, etc., prior to the expiration of the 
transfer restriction period for reasons that the Board of Directors of SFH deems justifi able, he/she 
can cancel the transfer restriction for the number of allocated stock calculated by multiplying the 
number of allocated stock by the number of months he/she serves as executive director, etc., 
from the month of the appointment of his/her respective position up to the month of losing his/her 
position, and dividing the value by 12. SFH shall acquire the allocated stock not subject to the 
cancellation of the transfer restriction free of charge immediately after the cancellation.

Fairly assessed value on the grant date ¥2,020

22. Information on tax effect accounting as of March 31, 2018:

(1) Breakdown of major factors giving rise to deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
Millions of yen

As of March 31, 2018

Deferred tax assets

Policy reserves and others ¥38,672

Reserve for price fl uctuations 13,478

Net defi ned benefi t liability 8,367

Write-down of securities 1,270

Tax loss carried forward 1,556

Depreciation and amortization 4,667

Net deferred losses on hedging instruments 479

 Others 8,364

Subtotal of deferred tax assets 76,855

Valuation allowance (4,115)

Total deferred tax assets 72,740 

Deferred tax liabilities

Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities (50,868)

 Others (628)

Total deferred tax liabilities (51,497)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) ¥21,242

Note:  Net deferred tax assets for the year ended March 31, 2018 are included in the following items of the consolidated balance sheets.

Millions of yen

As of March 31, 2018

Assets - Deferred tax assets ¥21,242

Liabilities - Deferred tax liabilities 0
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(2)  Breakdown of major items giving rise to a signifi cant difference between the statutory effective tax rate
and the effective income tax rate after application of tax effect accounting

%

As of March 31,  2018

Statutory effective tax rate 30.9

 (Adjustments)

Difference in tax rate of subsidiaries (2.4)

Increase (decrease) in valuation allowance 0.5

 Others 1.4

Effective income tax rate after application of tax effect accounting 30.4

23. Asset retirement obligations:
Asset retirement obligations recorded on the consolidated balance sheets

(1) Overview of asset retirement obligations
The reserve for asset retirement obligations is provided for the obligation to restore sites to their original states under the lease
agreement of commercial properties, as well as the estimated amount of asbestos removal cost associated with investment and
rental property in accordance with Ordinance on Prevention of Health Impairment due to Asbestos and others.

(2) Basis of measurement for asset retirement obligations
The amount of asset retirement obligations is calculated by estimating the usable period to be 15 to 50 years from acquisition and
then applying a 0.1% to 2.3% discount rate.

(3) Changes in the balance of asset retirement obligations
Millions of yen

For the year ended March 31, 2018

Balance at the beginning of the period ¥2,214

Increase due to purchase of tangible fi xed assets 280

Decrease due to sales of tangible fi xed assets (356)

Changes resulting from the passage of time 19 

Decrease due to performance of asset retirement obligations (27)

Balance at the end of the period ¥2,131

24.  Fair value information on investment and rental property:
Some consolidated subsidiaries own rental offi ce buildings in Tokyo and other areas. Income related to investment and rental
property and gains on disposal of fi xed assets amounted to ¥5,705 million and ¥13,258 million, respectively, for the year ended
March 31, 2018. Below is the consolidated balance sheet amount, net of changes during the period, and the fair value at the end
of the current period.

Millions of yen

For the year ended March 31, 2018

Consolidated balance sheet amount

Balance at the beginning of the period ¥104,731

Changes during the period (18,354)

Balance at the end of the period 86,376

Fair value at the end of the period ¥154,911

Notes: 1. The consolidated balance sheet amount is the acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
2.  The main components of the increases during the period were transfer from the offi ce used by some consolidated subsidiaries to the rental offi ce 

(¥6,539 million) and new consolidation (¥308 million), while the decrease was mainly due to sale of real estate held (¥23,691 million).
3. The fair value at the end of the period is determined by a licensed third-party real estate appraisal agent.

25.  Subsequent events are as follows:
(Establishment of a subsidiary)
May 14, 2018 – The Board of Directors passed a comprehensive resolution to establish a subsidiary through a company split
(simple incorporation-type company split).
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(1) Objective
SFH will establish an investment subsidiary to invest in venture companies with strengths in Fintech and other fi elds in the interest
of obtaining a fi nancial return and promoting collaboration and cooperation between venture companies and individual companies
in the Sony Financial Group. As a result, SFH aims to enhance the Sony Financial Group’s existing businesses and create new
businesses.

(2) Overview of the subsidiary
Name: Sony Financial Ventures Inc.
Head offi ce:  Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo
Business:  Venture capital operations and any other operations ancillary to or related to venture capital operations
Common stock:  ¥10 million
Issued shares:  10,000 shares
Established:  July 10, 2018
Shareholder composition:  Sony Financial Holdings Inc. 100%

7  Notes to the Consolidated Statements of Income

Profi t attributable to owners of the parent per share is calculated based on the weighted-average number of shares of common 
stock outstanding during the period. For the year ended March 31, 2018, net income per share was ¥119.30.
 The basis for this calculation for the year ended March 31, 2018 is profi t attributable to owners of the parent of ¥51,895 mil-
lion, the entire amount of which is applicable to common stock. The weighted-average number of shares outstanding for the year 
ended March 31, 2018 was 434,979 thousand shares.
 Diluted net income per share attributable to owners of the parent was ¥119.29. There was no adjustment to profi t attributable to 
owners of the parent for a basis for calculation, and common stock refl ecting the dilutive shares increased by 60 thousand shares. 

8  Notes to the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Reclassifi cation adjustments and income tax benefi t (expense) on components of other comprehensive income for the year ended 
March 31, 2018 are as follows:

Millions of yen

For the year ended March 31, 2018

Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities, net of taxes:

Gains (losses) arising during the period ¥ 838

 Reclassifi cation adjustments (2,092)

  Pre-tax amount (1,254)

Income tax benefi t (expense) 396 

Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities, net of taxes (857)

Net deferred gains (losses) on hedging instruments, net of taxes:

Gains (losses) arising during the period 1,025 

 Reclassifi cation adjustments (662)

  Pre-tax amount 363 

Income tax benefi t (expense) (111)

Net deferred gains (losses) on hedging instruments, net of taxes 251 

Land revaluation, net of taxes:

Gains (losses) arising during the period (378)

 Reclassifi cation adjustments —

  Pre-tax amount (378)

Income tax benefi t (expense) 378 

Land revaluation, net of taxes —

Remeasurements of defi ned benefi t plans, net of taxes:

Gains (losses) arising during the period 240 

 Reclassifi cation adjustments 909 

  Pre-tax amount 1,150 

Income tax benefi t (expense) (322)

Remeasurements of defi ned benefi t plans, net of taxes 827 

Total other comprehensive income ¥ 221
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9  Notes to the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

1. Types and numbers of shares issued are as follows:
Thousands of shares

2018

For the year ended March 31,

Number of 
shares as of 
April 1, 2017

Number of 
shares increased 
during the period

Number of 
shares decreased 
during the period

Number of 
shares as of 

March 31, 2018

Issued shares

 Common stock 435,000 27 — 435,027

Total 435,000 27 — 435,027

Treasury stock

 Common stock 52 — 17 35

Total 52 — 17 35

Notes: 1.  The increase of 27 thousand shares in common stock (of shares outstanding) was due to allocation of restricted stock by resolution of the Board 
of Directors.

2. The decrease of 17 thousand shares in common stock (of treasury stock) was due to exercise of subscription rights to shares (stock option).

2.  Information on stock acquisition rights is as follows:

Detail of stock acquisition rights
Balance at the end of the period 

(Millions of yen)

SFH Stock acquisition rights as stock options 97

3.  Information on dividends is as follows:

(1) Dividends paid

Resolution
Type of 
shares

Aggregate 
amount 

of dividends

Cash 
dividends 
per share

Record 
date

      Effective 
      date

Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders 
held on June 21, 2017

Common 
stock

¥23,922
million ¥55

March 31, 
2017

June 22, 
2017

(2) Dividends to be paid in the next fi scal year

Resolution
Type of 
shares

Aggregate 
amount 

of dividends
Source of 
dividends

Cash 
dividends 
per share

Record 
date

      Effective 
      date

Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders 
held on June 22, 2018

Common 
stock

¥26,099
million

Retained 
earnings ¥60

March 31, 
2018

June 25, 
2018

10  Notes to the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

1. The reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash fl ows to cash and due from banks as stated in the con-
solidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2018 is as follows:

Millions of yen

For the year ended March 31, 2018

Cash and due from banks ¥327,633

Call loans of life insurance subsidiary 65,500

Cash and cash equivalents ¥393,133

2. Cash fl ows from investing activities include cash fl ows from lending operations of the insurance business.
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1  MCEV Results

Sony Life’s MCEV as of March 31, 2018 increased ¥192.1 billion, due to the revision of the methodologies for the quantifi cation of 
insurance risk*, the addition of new business and other factors.

Billions of yen

As of March 31, 2017 2018 Change

MCEV ¥1,441.1 ¥1,633.2 ¥192.1
Adjusted net worth 1,657.7 1,786.1 128.4
Value of existing business (216.7) (152.9) 63.7 

*  Sony Life revised the methodologies for the quantifi cation of insurance risks to better refl ect Sony Life’s risk profi le as of March 31, 2018. Along with this 
revision, Sony Life also revised the cost of capital rate from 2.5% to 3.0%.

2  Adjusted Net Worth

The adjusted net worth as of March 31, 2018 increased ¥128.4 billion, primarily because of the increase in unrealized gain on 
held-to-maturity securities caused by a decrease in interest rates. The breakdown of adjusted net worth is shown in the table 
below.

Billions of yen

As of March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Adjusted net worth ¥1,657.7 ¥1,786.1 ¥128.4
Total net assets 473.6 492.8 19.2
Reserve for price fl uctuations 46.0 47.9 1.9

 Contingency reserve 82.5 89.9 7.5
Reserve for possible loan losses 0.0 0.0 (0.0)
Reinsurance debit for coinsurance-type reinsurance 1.2 2.1 0.9
Unrealized gains or losses on held-to-maturity securities 1,445.6 1,582.6 137.1
Unrealized gains or losses on policy-reserve-matching bonds 26.0 34.9 8.9
Unrealized gains or losses on land and buildings 71.0 69.7 (1.3)
Unfunded pension liabilities (3.6) (2.4) 1.1
Intangible fi xed assets (19.4) (23.2) (3.9)
Tax effect equivalent of above nine items (461.8) (504.4) (42.6)
Valuation gain or loss on subsidiaries and affi liated companies (3.4) (3.7) (0.4)

Billions of yen

As of March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Adjusted net worth ¥1,657.7 ¥1,786.1 ¥128.4
 Free surplus 496.1 926.1 430.0
 Required capital 1,161.7 860.0 (301.6)

Sony Life sets its required capital as the larger of the amount of Japanese regulatory minimum capital requirements at the solvency 
margin ratio of 200% or the amount of capital to cover risks based on an internal model based on economic value. The required 
capital as of March 31, 2018 decreased due to the revision of the methodologies for the quantifi cation of insurance risks.

3  Value of Existing Business

The value of existing business as of March 31, 2018 increased ¥63.7 billion, primarily due to a revision of the methodologies used 
for the quantifi cation of insurance risks and the addition of new business, which increased value, offset by the effect of a decrease 
in interest rates, which lowered the value of existing business. The breakdown of the value of existing business is shown in the 
table below.

Billions of yen

As of March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Value of existing business ¥(216.7) ¥(152.9) ¥ 63.7
Present value of certainty-equivalent profi t   350.0 316.7 (33.3)
Time value of options and guarantees (145.2) (136.0) 9.1

 Frictional costs (35.6) (22.7) 12.9
Cost of non-hedgeable risks (385.9) (310.9) 75.0

MCEV Results for Sony Life as of March 31, 2018
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4  New Business Value

The new business value in the year ended March 31, 2018 increased ¥41.3 billion, primarily because of the increase in the overall 
level of interest rates throughout the year compared with the previous fi scal year. The breakdown of new business value is as follows:

Billions of yen

For the year ended March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Value of new business ¥ 29.1 ¥ 70.4 ¥41.3
Present value of certainty-equivalent profi t 68.3 106.3 37.9
Time value of options and guarantees (9.1) (6.9) 2.3

 Frictional costs (0.1) (0.2) (0.1)
Cost of non-hedgeable risks (29.8) (26.8) 3.1
Other profi ts or losses (0.2) (2.0) (1.9)

5  New Business Margin

The new business margin described below is the ratio of the value of new business to the present value of premium income. The 
present value of premium income is calculated applying the same assumptions as those for the calculation of new business value, 
and is based on premiums before the deduction of reinsurance premiums. The business margin in the year ended March 31, 2018 
increased due to a change in the product mix and the increase in the overall level of interest rates throughout the year compared 
with the previous fi scal year.

Billions of yen

For the year ended March 31, 2017 2018 Change

Value of new business ¥ 29.1 ¥ 70.4 ¥ 41.3
Present value of premium income 1,297.4 1,213.8 (83.5)
New business margin 2.2% 5.8% 3.6pt

6  Reconciliation Analysis from MCEV at the End of the Prior Year

The table below shows the reconciliation analysis of MCEV as of March 31, 2018, from MCEV as of March 31, 2017.
Billions of yen

Free surplus
Required 
capital

Value of 
existing business  MCEV

Opening MCEV (MCEV as of March 31, 2017) ¥ 496.1 ¥1,161.7 ¥(216.7) ¥1,441.1
Opening adjustments (23.1) — — (23.1)
Adjusted opening MCEV ¥ 473.0 ¥1,161.7 ¥(216.7) ¥1,418.0
New business value (3.2) 1.1 72.5 70.4 
Expected existing business contribution (risk-free rate) (1.4) (2.8) 20.5 16.4 
Expected existing business contribution (in excess of risk-free rate) 0.6 1.2 5.1 6.8 
Transfers from value of existing business and required capital to free surplus (8.8) (61.6) 70.3 —

Of which, on new business (66.1) — 66.1 —
Experience variances 119.5 (114.3) 4.0 9.2 
Assumption changes 9.1 (9.1) 36.2 36.2 
Other operating variance 373.3 (373.3) 80.4 80.4 
Operating MCEV earnings 489.2 (558.8) 289.0 219.4 
Economic variances (36.1) 257.1 (225.3) (4.2)
Other non-operating variance — — — —
Total MCEV earnings (453.1) (301.6) 63.7 215.2 
Closing adjustments — — — —
Closing MCEV (MCEV as of March 31, 2018) ¥ 926.1 ¥ 860.0 ¥(152.9) ¥1,633.2

Notes: 1.  Expected yield used for the fi scal year ended March 31, 2018 was negative 0.147%.
2.  Assumption changes primarily indicate the impact of changes in assumptions based on experience data for mortality and morbidity rates, lapse 

and surrender rates, and operating expense rates. For the year ended March 31, 2018, the value of existing business increased primarily because 
of an improvement in mortality and morbidity.

3.  Other operating variance represents the impact of improvements and corrections of the model used in calculating MCEV.
Sony Life revised the methodologies for the qualifi cation of insurance risk to better refl ect Sony Life’s risk profi le. This revision increased the value of 

existing business ¥149.6 billion and decreased the required capital ¥413.6 billion. At the same time, Sony Life also revised the cost of capital rate from 2.5%
to 3.0%, and this revision decreased the value of existing business ¥53.0 billion and increased the required capital ¥51.8 billion.

In addition, Sony Life revised the shock factors on interest rates for ultra-long term durations where there is no market data, specifi cally, after the 40th 
year for the Japanese yen rates and after the 30th year for the U.S. dollar rates that are used for the calculation of non-hedgeable interest rate risks. This 
revision was made in consideration of the discussion on Insurance Capital Standard (ICS) being developed by the International Association of Insurance 
Supervisors (IAIS) for the international capital standard. This revision is refl ected in this line, which decreased the required capital by ¥58.4 billion.

Sony Life revised pricing for some of its products in February 2018 and April 2018. Renewal premium in the projection refl ects those pricing revisions.
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7  Sensitivity Analysis

 The impact of changing the underlying assumptions on MCEV is as follows:

Sensitivities of MCEV Billions of yen

Assumption            Change in assumption MCEV
Change 

in amount
Rate of 
change

Base No change ¥1,633.2 ¥     — —

Interest rates 50bp decrease 1,552.6 (80.6) (5%)

50bp increase 1,679.2 46.0 3%

Swap rates 1,656.3 23.1 1%

Stock / Real estate market value 10% decrease 1,610.7 (22.5) (1%)

Stock / Real estate implied volatility 25% increase 1,604.2 (28.9) (2%)

Interest swaption implied volatility 25% increase 1,614.5 (18.7) (1%)

Maintenance expenses 10% decrease 1,659.7 26.5 2%

Lapse and surrender rates x 0.9 1,617.9 (15.3) (1%)

Mortality rates Death protection products x 0.95 1,699.3 66.1 4%

Third-sector and annuity products x 0.95 1,620.8 (12.3) (1%)

Morbidity rates x 0.95 1,698.6 65.5 4%

Required capital Regulatory minimum 1,652.1 18.9 1%

Foreign exchange rates 10% appreciation of JPY 1,613.5 (19.7) (1%)

 The breakdown of the changes in MCEV into the adjusted net worth and the value of existing business are shown in the table 
below. Of items not specifi ed in this table, only the value of existing business has been changed while adjusted net worth remains 
the same.

Billions of yen

Assumption            Change in assumption MCEV
Adjusted
net worth

Value of 
existing business

Interest rates 50bp decrease ¥(80.6) ¥ 830.8 ¥(911.4)

50bp increase 46.0 (718.2) 764.2 

Stock / Real estate market value 10% decrease (22.5) (8.4) (14.0)

Foreign exchange rates 10% appreciation of JPY (19.7) 0.1 (19.8)

8  Main Assumptions

 Sony Life has used the JGB yields and U.S. Treasury yields as of the end of March 2018 as reference rates for the certainty-
equivalent projections.

  Sony Life has not added a liquidity premium on the risk-free rate as there are no products that are considered to have 
reasonably predictable and illiquid cash fl ows and would therefore be appropriate to apply a liquidity premium.

  Regarding the extrapolation for ultra-long term risk-free rates where there is no market data, an ultimate forward rate was 
applied. More specifi cally, the ultimate forward rate was set at 3.5% and the last liquid point was set at 40 years (30 years for 
USD) and, based on Smith-Wilson methodology, forward rates on or after 41 years (31 years for USD) were extrapolated to 
converge to the ultimate forward rate over 20 years (30 years for USD). These parameters were set primarily in reference to the 
discussion on ICS. The reasons for setting the last liquid point at 40 years (30 years for USD) are as follows:

 • Government bonds with 40-year maturity (30-year maturity for USD) have high liquidity and observable market data.
 •  Consistency in valuation between assets and liabilities as Sony Life holds a large amount of government bonds with 30- to 

40-year maturity (30-year maturity for USD).
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For further details, please refer to MCEV Results for Sony Life in the Financial Data Book. 
https://www.sonyfh.co.jp/en/fi nancial_info/annualreport/

The risk-free rates used in calculation for key terms (on a par-rate basis) are as follows:

Japanese yen U.S. dollar

As of the end of March, 2017  2018 2017 2018

Term (in years)

  1 (0.25%) (0.13%) 1.02% 2.09%

  5 (0.12%) (0.11%) 1.92% 2.56%

10 0.07% 0.04% 2.39% 2.74%

20 0.64% 0.53% 2.75% 2.85%

30 0.84% 0.74% 3.01% 2.97%

40 0.96% 0.89% 3.04% 3.02%

50 1.25% 1.19% 3.07% 3.05%

60 1.45% 1.40% 3.09% 3.08%

70 1.57% 1.53% 3.11% 3.09%

80 1.65% 1.61% 3.12% 3.10%

(Data: Ministry of Finance Japan for JGB [extrapolated] and Bloomberg for U.S. Treasury [extrapolated])

Assumptions including mortality and morbidity rates, lapse and surrender rates, and operating expense rates were developed 
based on best estimates by product as of the end of March 2018. Best-estimate assumptions are developed to refl ect past and 
current experiences as well as expected experiences in the future. Expected future changes in assumptions should be refl ected 
only when they are supported by suffi cient reasons. Except for a deteriorating trend in morbidity rates, no other expected future 
changes are assumed in the best-estimate assumptions applied.

9  Opinion of Outside Specialist

Sony Life requested Milliman, Inc., an external actuarial consulting fi rm with expert knowledge in the area of MCEV valuations, 
to review the methodology, assumptions and calculations, and obtained an opinion from this fi rm. Please refer to Sony Life’s 
press release “Disclosure of Market Consistent Embedded Value as of March 31, 2018” (https://www.sonyfh.co.jp/index_en.html) 
for details. 

10  Risk Amount Based on Economic Value (After Tax)

Sony Life has been disclosing the risk amount based on economic value since the end of March 2012 in an effort to provide 
a clearer picture of its fi nancial soundness based on economic value. The risk amount based on economic value* refers to the 
total amount of Sony Life’s risks, comprehensively examined by a market consistent approach, including insurance risk, 
market-related risk and others. Sony Life’s risk amount based on economic value decreased ¥250.8 billion from March 31, 
2017, to ¥729.7 billion, due mainly to the revision of the methodologies for the qualifi cation of insurance risk. The breakdown 
of the risk amount is as follows:

Billions of yen

As of March 31, 2017 2018

Insurance risk (Note 1) ¥ 937.5 ¥ 497.5

Market-related risk 405.1 380.6 

Of which, interest rate risk (Note 2) 308.9 275.3 

Operational risk 28.1 31.0 

Counterparty risk 1.9 2.6 

Variance effect (392.0) (182.0)

Risk amount based on economic value  ¥ 980.6 ¥ 729.7

Notes: 1.  Insurance risk as of March 31, 2017 excludes the variance effect within Life module and Health module.
2.  Interest rate risk excludes the variance effect within market-related risk.

Sony Life is making every effort to ensure its fi nancial soundness by maintaining the risk amount based on economic value at an 
appropriate level relative to MCEV, which is capital based on economic value.

 * The risk amount based on economic value is calibrated at VaR (99.5%) over one year and based on the internal model.
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SFH Financial Data (Consolidated)
Principal Indicators of Operating Performance
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Consolidated Statements of Income and 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Sony Life Financial Data (Non-consolidated)
Balance Sheets
Statements of Income
Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Statements of Cash Flows
1. Loans by Borrower Category
2. Risk-monitored Loans
3. Accounting Indicators
4.  Reconciliation to Core Profi t and 

Non-consolidated Ordinary Profi t
5. Fair Value Information on Securities (General Account)
6. Fair Value Information on Securities (Company Total)

Sony Life Performance Indicators (Non-consolidated)
  1.  Key Performance Indicators for Past Five Years
  2. Key Performance Indicators
  3. Indicators for Insurance Policies
  4.  Indicators Related to Asset Management

(General Account)
  5. Status of Insurance Claims Paying Ability
  6. Balance of Separate Account Assets
  7.  Investment Progress of Separate Account Assets in 

Individual Variable Life Insurance and Individual Variable 
Annuities

  8.  Status of Individual Variable Life Insurance and Individual 
Variable Annuities

  9. Number of Agencies
10. Number of Employees and Recruits
11. Average Salary

Sony Assurance Financial Data
Balance Sheets
Statements of Income
Statements of Changes in Net Assets 
Statements of Cash Flows
1. Loans by Borrower Category
2. Risk-monitored Loans
3. Assets and Liabilities
4. Profi t and Loss
5. Fair Value Information, etc.

Sony Assurance Performance Indicators 
1. Principal Indicators of Operating Performance
2. Underwriting Performance
3. Asset Management
4. Non-consolidated Solvency Margin Ratio

Sony Bank Financial Data (Consolidated)
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Consolidated Statements of Income
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Sony Bank Financial Data (Non-consolidated)
Balance Sheets
Statements of Income
Statements of Changes in Net Assets
1. Loans by Borrower Category
2. Risk-monitored Loans
3. Profi t and Loss
4. Fair Value Information

Sony Bank Performance Indicators (Non-consolidated)
1. Key Performance Indicators
2. Status of Operations (Deposits)
3. Status of Operations (Loans)
4. Status of Operations (Securities)

MCEV Results for Sony Life
1. MCEV Results
2. Assumptions
3. Calculation Method of MCEV
4. Overview of MCEV
5. Glossary of MCEV-related Terminology

Financial Data Book Contents

Please visit SFH’s website to view the Financial Data Book. 
Detailed fi nancial data for each operating company is presented in a separate publication called 
the Financial Data Book. 

https://www.sonyfh.co.jp/en/financial_info/annualreport
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A
ALM (asset liability management)
Life   Non-life   Banking

A method for maximizing and stabilizing net 
asset value, which is calculated by deducting 
the value of liabilities from the value of assets, 
through the comprehensive grasp and 
management of assets and liabilities in 
consideration of their special characteristics.

Annualized insurance premiums    Life

An indicator of the approximate annual 
premium income from existing policies, which 
is used as a performance indicator. Annualized 
insurance premiums are calculated by adjusting 
differences in the payment methods since 
insurance premiums can be paid monthly, 
annually or in a lump sum, and by assuming 
that average payments will be made over the 
term of the policy.

Assumed interest rate    Life   Non-life

Insurance companies anticipate a certain return 
on invested assets in advance and discount 
insurance premiums only by this amount. 
This discount rate is called the assumed 
interest rate.

Assumed mortality rate    Life

The mortality rate is the percentage of people 
who die in a single year for a given large 
population. The assumed mortality rate is the 
mortality rate used when calculating the amount 
of insurance premiums needed to cover future 
benefi t payments, and represents a projection 
of the number of deaths by gender and age 
based on past statistics.

Assumed rate of expense    
Life   Non-life

In operating their businesses, insurance 
companies forecast their expenses, then 
incorporate this amount in their insurance 
premiums. This expense rate is called the 
assumed rate of expense.

Glossary (in Alphabetical Order)

C
Capital adequacy ratio    Banking

The ratio of capital to total assets. An indicator 
of whether a bank has enough capital, including 
common stock, versus credit risk assets (of 
total assets, those which could become 
non-performing). If a bank is unable to recover 
a large amount of loans, it can draw on capital 
and write off these loans. A sharp decrease in 
capital creates diffi culties in bank management.
 Capital adequacy ratio regulations ensure 
that banks are soundly managed by keeping 
the capital adequacy ratio above a certain level. 
This ratio is therefore an important indicator to 
show fi nancial soundness. For banks possessing 
business bases overseas, the internationally 
standardized regulations to preserve fi nancial 
soundness are a capital adequacy ratio of over 
8%, and for banks not possessing business 
bases overseas, in Japan a capital adequacy 
ratio of 4% is required.

Catastrophe reserve    Non-life

A type of policy reserve, under which, pursuant 
to the provisions of the Insurance Business Act 
of Japan, non-life insurance companies are 
required to accumulate each fi scal year as an 
amount calculated based on premium income 
to cover losses due to catastrophic events. 
In consideration of the special need for the 
non-life insurance business to cover a wide 
range of risks, the catastrophe reserve acts as 
a provision against the risk of large insurance 
claims resulting from earthquakes, typhoons 
and other catastrophic events. It is structured 
to be accumulated over the course of multiple 
fi scal years, and reversed during the fi scal year 
in which a disaster occurs.

Combined ratio    Non-life

The sum of a net loss ratio and net expense 
ratio. Indicates an insurance company’s 
profi tability in the primary business operations.

Compulsory automobile liability 
insurance    Non-life

Compulsory automobile liability insurance is 
legally required for all vehicles and provides 
protection for victims of traffi c accidents 
resulting in injury or death. Compulsory 
automobile liability mutual aid is similar. With 
compulsory automobile liability insurance 
(mutual aid), indemnity payments per person 
per accident are capped at ¥30 million for 
death, ¥40 million for serious residual disability 
and ¥1.2 million for injury. Benefi ts are not paid 
for vehicle or property damage.

Contingency reserve    Life    Non-life

Reserve to prepare for possible contingencies, 
including insurance risk and assumed interest 
rate risk.

Core profi t    Life

An indicator of profi ts (losses) in the primary 
insurance business over a one-year period. 
It is derived by subtracting from ordinary profi t 
any profi ts earned from operations other than 
the primary insurance business. Profi t categories 
subtracted from ordinary profi t include gains 
and losses on the sale of securities and 
one-time gains and losses, such as profi ts 
from the sale of assets owned by the insurance 
company.

D
Direct premiums written    Non-life

Premiums received from policyholders, 
calculated by subtracting direct surrender 
payments and other direct payments from 
direct premiums.

Duration    Life

A sensitivity index indicating the extent to which 
the present value of future cash fl ow (interest 
income, repayment of principal, receipt of 
premiums, payment of insurance benefi ts and 
dividends, etc.) from eligible assets (managed 
assets) and liabilities (policy liabilities) will be 
affected by interest rate fl uctuations. While a 
variety of types and methods for calculating 
duration exists, a method expressing the 
weighted average maturity of the cash fl ow 
in question is relatively widely used.

E
Earned/incurred (E.I.) loss ratio
Non-life

An indicator that represents the loss ratio 
incurred during the current period that takes 
into account the provision and reversal of 
reserve for outstanding losses and ordinary 
underwriting reserves calculated using the 
following formula: Earned/incurred (E.I.) loss 
ratio = (Net losses paid + Provision for reserve 
for outstanding losses + Loss adjustment 
expenses) / Earned premiums (excluding 
earthquake insurance and compulsory 
automobile liability insurance).
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Endowment insurance    Life

Endowment insurance entitles a benefi ciary 
to receive death or serious disability benefi ts 
upon the death or serious disability of the 
insured within an insurance period specifi ed 
when the policy is purchased, or to receive 
maturity benefi ts upon policy maturity.

ERM (enterprise risk management)  
Life   Non-life   Banking

An approach to accomplishing corporate 
strategic goals and sustainable growth in 
corporate value by conducting integrated 
recognition and control of all risks a company 
faces and seeking to optimize the risk from 
a company-wide perspective.

ESR (economic solvency ratio)    Life

ESR is one of the fi nancial soundness 
indicators, which measures whether an 
organization possesses suffi cient capital in 
relation to its risks. 
 Sony Life computes its ESR by dividing 
MCEV by the risk amount based on economic 
value. For details on MCEV and the risk 
amount based on economic value, please see 
“MCEV Results for Sony Life” in the Financial 
Data Book.

EV (embedded value)    Life

An indicator of the corporate value of a life 
insurance company. Sony Life discloses 
MCEV (market consistent embedded value) 
in conformity with the MCEV Principles. For 
details on MCEV, please see “MCEV Results 
for Sony Life” in the Financial Data Book.

Expense ratio    Life   Non-life

The ratio of expenses to insurance premiums. 
Used as an indicator of business effi ciency at 
insurance companies. Expenses are used for 
soliciting, maintaining and managing insurance 
as well as for payment of insurance claims.

F
Foreign currency-denominated 
insurance    Life

Insurance product in which insurance 
premiums are invested in foreign currency. 
Sony Life sells U.S. dollar-denominated 
insurance, in which policyholders pay the 
Japanese yen equivalent of the U.S. 
dollar-denominated insurance premiums 
and select the Japanese yen or U.S. dollar 
when they receive insurance claims.

Foundation internal ratings-based 
approach   Banking

The amount of credit risk assets is calculated 
mainly by the standard approach or internal 
rating based approach for computing the 
capital adequacy ratio. The standard approach 
calculates the amount of credit risk assets by 
using the risk weight set by authorities. On the 
other hand, the internal rating based approach 
calculates the amount of credit risk assets by 
using the default rate, etc. as estimated 
internally by fi nancial institutions that practice 
advanced risk management. This approach 
includes a fundamental internal rating based 
approach that partly uses the values set by 
authorities for loss rates at the time of default, 
and an advanced internal rating based approach 
that uses the values estimated internally by 
fi nancial institutions in every situation.

G
General accounts    Life

Accounts for managing fi nancial assets not 
included in separate accounts. This account 
guarantees policyholders a certain assumed 
interest rate, while the life insurance company 
bears the asset management risk.

Gross operating profi t    Banking

The total income from the four components 
of banking services income: net interest income, 
net fees and commissions, net trading income 
and net other operating income. Equivalent 
to gross profi t (sales minus purchases) and 
an indicator of the amount of profi ts a bank 
generates from its main services.

I
Individual annuities    Life

Policyholders are eligible for receiving annuity 
payments from funds accumulated by paid 
insurance premiums at a certain age 
prescribed in the policy. There are a variety 
of types depending on the period for receiving 
the annuity, structure of the annuity, method 
for paying premiums and death protection prior 
to receiving the annuity.

Individual variable annuities    Life

Individual annuity product in which assets 
are invested mainly in stocks and bonds, 
and annuity and surrender payments increase 
or decrease depending on investment returns. 
The individual policyholder bears the asset 
management risk.

Insurance premiums    Life   Non-life

Money paid by policyholders to an insurance 
company based on the insurance policy. 
Even after submitting an insurance policy 
application, no protection or compensation 
is provided unless premiums are paid.

Investment crowd funding    Banking

Investment crowd funding is an arrangement 
that uses the Internet to link venture 
companies’ fund-raising needs for their 
projects with investors’ money management 
needs. Unlike donation-type and purchase-type 
crowd funding, which do not involve monetary 
return, investors can receive dividends. 
Meanwhile, investment crowd funding has the 
feature of investment products associated with 
risks, whereby dividends may not be paid or 
the investment value may fall below the 
amount invested due to the performance of 
venture companies, etc.

L
Lapse and surrender rate    
Life   Non-life

Surrender refers to the cancellation of an 
insurance policy at some point in the future. 
Upon surrender, the policy is terminated, and 
from that point protection or coverage is lost. 
On the other hand, a lapse is when a 
policyholder fails to pay premiums within the 
payment grace period, causing the policy to 
lapse, from which point the policy will no 
longer provide protection.
 The lapse and surrender rate is the ratio 
of lapses and surrenders to policies in force at 
the beginning of the fi scal year. It is calculated 
by adding the total of lapses and surrenders 
for the year in question, and then dividing by 
the amount of policies in force at the beginning 
of the fi scal year.

Living benefi t insurance    Life

This insurance provides a lump-sum benefi t 
payment when the insured is diagnosed with 
a disease such as one of the three major 
diseases (cancer, heart attack or stroke).

Loss adjustment expenses    Non-life

Expenses incurred by an insurance company 
in examining an insured event. These include 
personnel and non-personnel expenses.
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Loss ratio    Non-life

The ratio of insurance claims paid to premium 
income. Used in analyzing the business of 
an insurance company and in calculating 
insurance premium rates. The net loss ratio 
is the ratio derived by adding loss adjustment 
expenses to net losses paid, then dividing by 
net premiums written.

N
Net fees and commissions    Banking

Fees and commissions charged for providing 
services. These refer to income generated by 
providing services, such as bank transfer fees 
and investment trust sales commissions, less 
the costs associated with providing these 
services.

Net interest income    Banking

Net interest income accounts for the largest 
percentage of the four income components 
of gross operating profi t. Banks generally use 
the deposits received from individuals and the 
funds raised in interbank markets to provide 
loans to individuals and companies and to 
invest in securities. Net interest income is the 
difference between the total interest received 
from loans and other items (interest income) 
and the total interest paid for deposits and 
other items (interest expenses). Net interest 
income is affected by changes in interest 
rates (e.g., if deposit interest rates rise while 
loan interest rates stay at the same levels, net 
interest income will decrease), and by deposit 
and loan balances.

Net other operating income    Banking

Net other operating income is derived from 
services other than the primary banking 
services income categories of net interest 
income, net fees and commissions, and net 
trading income. One example is buying and 
selling in dollars and other foreign currencies. 
In this case, after purchasing foreign currency 
at a certain price, any gain from a subsequent 
sale at a price higher than the purchase price 
would be recorded in other operating income, 
and any loss from a subsequent sale at a 
price lower than the purchase price would 
be recorded in other operating expenses.

Net premiums written    Non-life

Premiums received directly from policyholders 
(direct premiums written), adjusting for 
reinsurance premiums (subtracting reinsurance 
premiums paid and adding direct reinsurance 
premiums received).

Non-performing assets
Life   Non-life   Banking

Non-performing assets are claims against 
parties in bankruptcy, claims against parties 
in effective bankruptcy due to poor business 
or other reasons, and claims against parties 
at risk of bankruptcy. Non-performing assets 
also include loans for which principal or interest 
payments are past due by three months or 
more, and loans for which repayment on initial 
terms is impossible and interest has been 
reduced or exempted and the repayment 
of principal has been extended.

O
Over-the-counter (OTC) sales of 
insurance products at banks
Life   Non-life   Banking

A bank serves as an insurance agency to solicit 
insurance.

P
Policy amount in force    Life

Total amount of protection provided by life 
insurance companies to individual policyholders. 
This is different from the total amount of 
premiums paid by policyholders (premium 
income).

Policy reserves
(Underwriting reserves)    Life   Non-life

Reserves that insurance companies 
accumulate in advance, funded by premiums, 
investment income, and other sources, to 
prepare for future liabilities resulting from 
insurance policies, including payments of 
claims, annuities and benefi ts. 

Policy reserves and others
(Underwriting reserves)    Life   Non-life

Reserves recorded in the liabilities section 
of the balance sheets for which insurance 
companies are required in the Insurance 
Business Act of Japan to accumulate to 
prepare for the payment of future claims and 
other items to fulfi ll their obligations for paying 
claims and other actions based on insurance 
policies. Policy reserves and others include 
“reserve for outstanding claims” and “policy 
reserves.”

Policyholder loans    Life

As one of the asset management operations 
of life insurance companies, loans provided up 
to a certain level of the surrender payment on 
life insurance policies. In general, policyholders 
retain insurance protection and rights to receive 
dividends during the period of the policyholder 
loan. However, policyholder loans may not be 
available depending on the type of insurance.

Policyholders’ dividend reserve    Life

A reserve accumulated to fund dividend 
payments to policyholders pursuant to the 
provisions of the Insurance Business Act of 
Japan.

Positive spread    Life

The amount by which the actual investment 
income is higher than the expected investment 
income from the assumed interest rate.

R
Reference loss cost rates    Non-life

Non-life insurance premium rates comprise 
net insurance premium rates used for paying 
insurance claims and loading insurance 
premium rates used for operating insurance 
businesses. Net insurance premium rates 
calculated by the General Insurance Rating 
Organization of Japan are called reference loss 
cost rates. Member insurers of the organization 
can use the rates as the basis for calculating 
their own insurance premium rates.

Reinsurance    Life   Non-life

The insurance agreement that insurance 
companies conclude with domestic and 
overseas reinsurance companies for some 
of the insurance policies they underwrite in 
order to diversify risks on insurance policies.

Reserve for outstanding claims
(Reserve for outstanding losses)        
Life   Non-life

Reserve for the estimated amount of unfi xed 
insurance payments and unpaid insurance 
claims at the end of the fi scal year, among 
payment obligations for insurance claims, 
surrender value and other benefi ts.

Reserve for price fl uctuations
Life   Non-life

This reserve is set aside to prepare for losses 
caused by price fl uctuations in stocks, bonds 
and other assets held by an insurance company.
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Riders    Life   Non-life

Riders can enlarge the scope of protection in 
the primary policy by adding provisions to the 
primary coverage. Riders do not constitute a 
policy by themselves. Multiple riders can be 
added to the primary policy. Riders are 
canceled when the primary policy is canceled 
due to maturity, surrender or other reasons.

ROEV (return on embedded value)    
Life

ROEV is an indicator that refers to the growth 
potential of corporate value. The amount of 
increase of EV (embedded value), an indicator 
of a life insurance company’s corporate value, 
is deemed to be profi t that takes into account 
the unique aspects of life insurance 
accounting.
 Core ROEV is the growth rate of EV that 
excludes any fluctuation effects of the 
investment yield and discounted rate.

S
Separate accounts    Life

Separate accounts are used for variable life 
insurance, variable annuities and other 
insurance products to invest assets separately 
from the other fi nancial assets owned by an 
insurance company in order to pay investment 
returns directly to policyholders. 

Solvency margin    Life   Non-life

The solvency margin indicates payment ability. 
Insurance companies accumulate policy 
reserves to prepare for the payment of future 
claims, allowing them to adequately respond 
to risks within a normally anticipated range. 
However, unforeseen events can occur due 
to changes in the environment such as major 
disasters and substantial declines in stock 
prices. The solvency margin ratio is one 
measure used by regulatory authorities to 
determine how much an insurance company 
is able to pay in response to the risk of such 
unpredictable events.

Standard Mortality Table    Life

The Institute of Actuaries of Japan prepares 
a table that compiles data including mortality 
rates and average life expectancies by gender 
and age. Of these data, mortality rates are 
verifi ed by the Commissioner of Financial 
Services Agency of Japan, and then used 
as the assumed mortality rates in calculating 
standard policy reserves required under the 
Insurance Business Act of Japan.

Standard yield    Life   Non-life

The standard yield is the calculating rate 
insurance companies are required to use 
when accumulating policy reserves for future 
insurance payments.

Surrender payments    Life

Money refunded to the policyholder in the 
event that the insurance policy is surrendered 
or cancelled. Surrender payment amounts vary 
depending on several factors, including the 
type of insurance, insurance period and years 
elapsed.

T
Term insurance    Life

Term insurance entitles a benefi ciary to receive 
benefits in the event of death or serious 
disability of the insured within an insurance 
period specifi ed when the policy is purchased.

U
Underwriting profi t    Non-life

Underwriting profi t is calculated by subtracting 
any underwriting expenses (net losses paid 
and loss adjustment expenses, etc.) and 
operating, general and administrative expenses 
associated with underwriting from underwriting 
income (net premiums written, etc.), then 
adding or subtracting other income and 
expenses (income taxes associated with 
compulsory automobile liability insurance, etc.).

V
Variable life insurance    Life

Insurance product in which assets are 
invested mainly in stocks and bonds, and 
claims and surrender payments increase or 
decrease depending on investment returns. 
The individual policyholder bears the asset 
management risk. The minimum insurance 
payment is guaranteed, regardless of 
investment performance.

W
Whole life insurance    Life

Insurance that pays benefi ts in the event 
the insured dies or is disabled. Unlike term 
life insurance, protection continues for an 
entire life.
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The Financial Data Book is 
available only on 
SFH’s website.

https://www.sonyfh.co.jp/index_en.html

SFH uses its website to provide timely disclosure and promote 
a better understanding of the Sony Financial Group.

Press releases are sorted into SFH and four business 
segments. Headings make it easy to determine the 
content of each press release.

Click here for Corporate Governance.

The SFH website is accessible via smartphone.

SFH’s Website Information

Financial Data Book
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